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Financial Report of San Diego County

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

This section of the County of San Diego’s (County) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report provides a
narrative overview and analysis of the basic financial activities of the County as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2003. We hope that the information presented here, in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal,
provides you with a clearer picture of the County’s overall financial status.  Unless otherwise indicated, all
amounts in this section are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

¶ The assets of the County exceeded liabilities at the close of the fiscal year 2002-2003 by $2.3 billion
(net assets).  Of this amount, approximately $244 million is restricted for specific purpose (restricted
net assets), and $2.3 billion is invested in capital assets, net of related debt.  The remaining portion of 
the net assets represents a deficit balance in unrestricted net assets of approximately $237 million.

¶ The County’s total net assets decreased by approximately $418 million due in large part to the deficit.
The deficit was due to increased contributions attributed to the increased unfunded accrued actuarial
liability owed to the San Diego County Employees Retirement Association (SDCERA) as a result of the 

approved enhanced retirement benefits for members of SDCERA.
¶ In October 2002, the County issued approximately $737 million of Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds. 

A portion of the proceeds were used to escrow a principal amount of $156 million of the County’s 

outstanding 1994 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds.
¶ General revenues were $1.1 billion.  Of this amount, approximately $636 million or 56 percent was

attributable to state sales tax and motor vehicle fees while property taxes accounted for
approximately $459 million or 41 percent.

¶ The net expense for governmental activities was $1.5 billion. Public protection accounted for 
approximately $782 million or 50 percent of this amount while health and sanitation accounted for 
$265 million or 17 percent.

¶ At June 30, 2003, the General Fund’s total fund balance was approximately $599 million.  Of this
amount, the unreserved-undesignated fund balance was $269 million or 9 percent of the total fiscal
year 2002-2003 expenditures of $2.9 billion.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic financial statements. 

The County’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) Government-wide financial
statements 2) Fund financial statements, and 3) Notes to the basic financial statements. Required
Supplementary Information is included in addition to the basic financial statements.

The illustration below depicts the required components of the basic financial statements.

DetailSummary

Notes to the 
Basic Financial

Statements

Fund Financial
Statements

Government-wide
Financial

Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of County 
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

The statement of net assets presents information on all County assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses are reported in
this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and 
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type

activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government, public protection, public
ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, education, and recreational and cultural. The
business-type activities of the County include airport operations, wastewater management and sanitation
districts.

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like other state and local

governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the
funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable

resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a county’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better

understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The County maintains twenty-eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Tobacco Securitization Special Revenue Fund, and the
Tobacco Securitization Joint Special Revenue Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.  Data from 
the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the Combining Financial Statement and
Supplementary Information section in this report.

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the County charges customers –
either outside customers, or internal departments of the County.  Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The County maintains the
following types of proprietary funds: 

¶ Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for the Airport,
Wastewater Management and Sanitation Districts. Each is considered to be a major fund of the 
County.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

¶ Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally
among the County’s various functions.  Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of 
public works and communications equipment; the financing of materials and supplies (purchasing); for
start up services for new and existing county service districts; for the County’s uninsured risk
management activities; the financing of fleet services; for mail, printing and record storage services;
for facilities management activities; for the financing of information technology services; and for the 
financing of clothing and personal sundry items for persons institutionalized at various county
facilities. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

The County’s nine internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the 
proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided
in the form of combining statements in the Combining Financial Statement and Supplementary
Information section in this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.

Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of these
funds are not available to support the County's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information is presented concerning the County’s General Fund budgetary
schedule, and SDCERA pension schedules. The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General
Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance

with this budget. In addition, a budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the Tobacco
Securitization Special Revenue Fund for it was determined to be a major governmental fund. The SDCERA 
pension schedules have been provided to present SDCERA’s progress in funding its obligation to provide

pension benefits to County employees.

Combining Financial Statement and Supplementary Information section of this report presents

combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier that provide information for 
nonmajor governmental funds, enterprise and internal service funds and are presented immediately following
the Required Supplementary Information section of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

This is the second year that the County has presented its financial statements under the new reporting model
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial
Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) – for State and Local Governments.

Because this reporting model changed significantly both the recording and presentation of financial data, the 
County’s CAFR for fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 did not provide comparative information other than in its
MD&A.  This year marks the first time that two years of financial information in the GASB 34 format are

available.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Net Assets 
June 30, 2003

Analysis of Net Assets 

et assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the 

he largest portion of the County’s net assets (99 percent) reflects its investment of $2.3 billion in capital

lthough the County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that

n additional portion of the County’s net assets, $244 million (10 percent), represents resources that are

he remaining portion of the County’s net assets represents a deficit unrestricted net assets balance of $237 

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 1,861,646 1,724,081    82,211    84,625 1,943,857 1,808,706
Capital assets    2,665,784 2,618,279    71,756    66,371 2,737,540 2,684,650
Total assets    4,527,430 4,342,360 153,967 150,996 4,681,397 4,493,356
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities    1,999,103 1,502,993    464  477 1,999,567 1,503,470
Other liabilities   340,172  226,728  1,836  5,847 342,008    232,575
Total liabilities    2,339,275 1,729,721  2,300  6,324 2,341,575 1,736,045
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
 Net of related debt    2,261,697 2,178,892    71,293    66,026 2,332,990 2,244,918
Restricted   243,815  161,838  15    34,151 243,830    195,989
Unrestricted (317,357)  271,909    80,359    44,495 (236,998)    316,404
Total net assets (restated) $ 2,188,155 2,612,639 151,667 144,672 2,339,822 2,757,311

Activities
Business-type

Activities
TotalGovernmental

N
County, assets exceeded liabilities by $2.3 billion at the close of fiscal year 2002-2003. At the end of fiscal
year 2002-2003, the County had positive balances in two of its categories of net assets, (Invested in capital

assets net of related debt and Restricted net assets), however, its unrestricted assets had a deficit balance of 
$237 million.

T
assets (e.g. land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire
those assets. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending.

A
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets

themselves cannot be liquidated for these liabilities.

A

subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. External restrictions include those imposed by 
grantors, contributors, laws/regulations of other governments, or restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or legislation.

T
million (deficit of 10 percent).  This deficit is due in large part to the increased unfunded accrued actuarial
liability owed to the SDCERA as the result of approved enhanced retirement benefits for members of SDCERA.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Changes in Net Assets 

nalysis of Changes in Net Assets 
614 during the current fiscal year.

June 30, 2003

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $  408,860 380,996  27,336  42,345 436,196 423,341
Operating grants and contributions  1,288,166 1,173,494 3,769 5,763 1,291,935  1,179,257
Capital grants and contributions  40,587   30,128 839  501 41,426 30,629

General revenues:
 Property taxes   459,340 412,400 459,340 412,400
 Interest  30,213   39,041 1,437 2,694 31,650 41,735
 State sales tax and motor vehicle fees   636,225 605,175 636,225 605,175
 Other  3,964  5,011 3,964   5,011

  Total revenues 2,867,355 2,646,245 33,381  51,303 2,900,736  2,697,548
Expenses:
 General government 234,062 171,273 234,062 171,273
 Public protection 1,140,484 823,520 1,140,484 823,520
 Public ways and facilities 142,356 168,202 142,356 168,202
 Public assistance 1,035,065 825,028 1,035,065 825,028
 Health and sanitation 598,189 547,200 598,189 547,200
 Recreational and cultural 23,520   18,021 23,520 18,021
 Education 30,850   24,119 30,850 24,119
Interest on long-term debt 87,627   61,340 87,627 61,340
 Airport 7,125 7,973 7,125   7,973
 Wastewater Management 4,357 3,808 4,357   3,808
 Transit  17,085 17,085
 Sanitation Districts  15,216  15,306 15,216 15,306

  Total expenses 3,292,153 2,638,703 26,698  44,172 3,318,851  2,682,875
Excess (deficiency) before special
item and transfers (424,798) 7,542 6,683 7,131 (418,115) 14,673

Special item: gain (loss) on sale of properties 474  1,054 27 (5,145) 501 (4,091)
Transfers (160)   359 160 (359)

  Increase (decrease) in net assets (424,484)  8,955 6,870 1,627 (417,614) 10,582
Net assets at beginning of year (restated) 2,612,639 2,603,684 144,797   143,045 2,757,436  2,746,729
Net assets at end of year 2,188,155$ 2,612,639 151,667   144,672  2,339,822 2,757,311

Activities Activities
Governmental Business-type Total

A
The County’s net assets decreased by $417,
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)
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Governmental activities
Governmental activities decreased the County’s net assets by approximately $424 million.  This decrease was 
largely due to the increase in expenses of approximately $653 million or 25 percent while the increase in
revenues was approximately $221 million or eight percent.  These activities are further discussed below.

Revenue
Operating and capital grants and contributions increased by approximately $125 million or ten percent, due in

part to additional revenue realized for increased costs in various programs, including In Home Supportive
Services costs, which were higher in fiscal year 2002-2003 due to caseload growth and higher individual
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

provider costs.  Additionally, this increase may be attributable to reimbursement of increased expenditures
incurred for the East Mesa Detention Facility project. 

Property tax revenues increased by approximately $47 million or eleven percent during the year.  Most of this
increase is attributable to a continued strong real estate market and consequent growth in the assessed value
of property.

State sales tax and motor vehicle fees increased by approximately $31 million or five percent.  Most of this
increase is attributable to an increase in motor vehicle license fee revenue.  The growth in this revenue is due
to an increase in the number and values of vehicles registered statewide, influenced by the number and cost
of new car purchases. Additionally, in fiscal year 2002-2003, the County received one-time commercial
vehicle revenues.

Expenses
Total expenses for governmental activities were $3.3 billion. The majority of these expenses were for public

protection and public assistance. Of the total expenses, approximately $1 billion, or 33 percent, were 
ultimately financed by taxes.

Public protection expenses increased by approximately $317 or thirty-eight percent.  Most of this increase is
attributable to the public protection’s share of the increased unfunded accrued actuarial liability owed to the 
SDCERA.  In February 2002, the County Board of Supervisors adopted enhanced retirement benefits for 

members of SDCERA resulting in this increased obligation to SDCERA.

Public assistance expenses increased by approximately $210 million or twenty-five percent.  This was due in

part to the public assistance’s share of the increased unfunded accrued actuarial liability owed to the SDCERA 
as referred to above.  Additionally, services and supplies expenses increased due to an increase in the In
Home Supportive Services’ individual providers’ costs attributable to an increase in hourly wages and health
benefits, and an increase in demand for services.

Recreational and cultural expenses increased by approximately $5 million or thirty-one percent.  This increase

is attributable to an increase in salaries and benefits and other charges consisting of payments to external
entities for the purchase of land for open space preservation and habitat in the Department of Parks and
Recreation.

The charts on the previous page illustrate the County’s governmental expenses and revenues by function and

revenues by source.  The County’s governmental activities rely on several sources of revenue to finance
ongoing operations. As shown, for governmental activities overall, without regard to program, operating
grants and contributions are the largest single source of funds (45 percent). Operating grants and 
contributions are monies received from parties outside the County and are generally restricted to one or more 
specific programs.  Examples of operating grants and contributions include State and Federal revenue for
public assistance programs and for health and sanitation programs.  General revenues such as property taxes
and state sales tax and motor vehicle fees are not shown by program, but are effectively used to support
program activities Countywide. State sales tax and motor vehicle fees (22 percent) and property taxes (16
percent) are the second and third largest sources of funds for the County.  Public protection is the largest
function in expense (35 percent), followed by public assistance (31 percent) and health and sanitation (18 
percent). These ratios for revenues and expenses are substantially similar to 2002.

At the end of fiscal year 2002-2003, total revenue for the governmental activities was approximately $2.9
billion, while total expenses for governmental activities were approximately $3.3 billion.

Other factors concerning the finances of the County’s major governmental funds are discussed in the 
Governmental Funds section of the “Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds.” 
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(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)
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Business-type Activities
The County has three business-type activities: Airport, Wastewater Management, and Sanitation. Business-
type activities increased the County’s net assets by $6,870.  The total revenues and expenses were
significantly less than reported in the previous fiscal year due to the divestiture of the Transit Enterprise Fund,
which was effective June 28, 2002.

Revenue
At June 30, 2003, the total revenues including capital contributions and transfers for the business-type

activities were $33,381. In keeping with the intent of recovering all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges, business-type activities reported charges for services as their largest source of
revenue (82%). Operating grants and contributions as well as capital grants and contributions were the other
program revenue sources for the business-type activities.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

Expenses
At the end of fiscal year 2002-2003, the business-type activities reported total expenses of $26,698. The
program revenues (charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants and
contributions) financed all expenses recorded for the business-type activities.

As shown in the charts above, for all of the business-type activities, charges for services provide the largest
share of revenues (82 percent) followed by operating grants and contributions (11 percent).  For fiscal year 
2002-2003, the largest of the County’s business-type activities was the Sanitation Districts with total
expenses over $15 million, comprising over fifty percent of the total business activities.

Other factors concerning the finances of the County’s enterprise funds are discussed in the Proprietary Funds
section of the “Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds.”

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As noted above, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related

legal requirements.

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the County’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a

government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.  Types of Major Governmental
Funds reported by the County include the General Fund, Tobacco Securitization Special Revenue Fund and the
Tobacco Securitization Joint Special Revenue Fund. Nonmajor Governmental Funds include Special Revenue

Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital Project Funds.

As of the end of fiscal year 2002-2003, the County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund

balances of $1.35 billion, a decrease of $23 million in comparison with the prior year restated fund balance.
Approximately $846 million of the total June 30, 2003 amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is
available for spending at the County’s discretion.  The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it
is not available for new spending because it has already been committed, (1) to liquidate existing contracts

and purchase orders ($140 million), (2) for inactive landfill maintenance ($92 million), (3) to pay debt service
($72 million), and (4) for a variety of other purposes ($201 million).

Revenues for governmental functions overall totaled approximately $2.8 billion in the year ended June 30,
2003, which represents an 8% increase from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.  Expenditures for
governmental functions, totaling $3.4 billion, a twenty-five percent increase from the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2002, attributed in large part to additional costs associated with the increased unfunded accrued actuarial
liability in fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 due to the Board of Supervisors’ adoption of enhanced retirement
benefits for members of the SDCERA.

GENERAL FUND
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of fiscal year 2002-2003, the
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was approximately $388 million, while total fund balance was 
approximately $599 million, an increase of $28 million from fiscal year 2001-2002. As a measure of the 
General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to 
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents thirteen percent of total General Fund 
expenditures of $2.9 billion, while total fund balance represents twenty-one percent of that same amount.

TOBACCO SECURITIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
This is a Special Revenue Fund established in fiscal year 2001-2002 to account for the $411 million (net of
closing costs and reserve requirements) the County received from the Tobacco Asset Securitization
Corporation related to the sale of approximately 25 years of tobacco settlement revenue in fiscal year 2001-
2002.  The County will continue to invest these funds in investment products to maximize the sustained long-
term use of these dollars.  Revenue from use of money and property increased by approximately $5 million, or 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands)

187 percent in fiscal year 2002-2003, and is attributable in part to the investment of these monies for an 
entire fiscal year in fiscal year 2002-2003, as opposed to a partial year in fiscal year 2001-2002.

TOBACCO SECURITIZATION JOINT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
This is a Special Revenue Fund established in fiscal year 2001-2002 to account for the transactions of the San 
Diego County Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation and Tobacco Securitization Joint Powers Authority, two
component units, that are blended into the County’s financial statements.

Proprietary Funds 

The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.  The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for
the Airport, Wastewater Management, and Sanitation Districts Funds, all of which are considered to be major
funds of the County. Conversely, the Internal Service Funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements with the individual fund data provided in combining
statements, which can be found in the Combining Financial Statements and Supplemental Information section
of this report.

Airport
There was a slight change in the revenues and expenses of the Airport Enterprise Fund from the previous

year.
¶ Grant revenue decreased by $1,994 while charges for services increased by $1,917.
¶ Operating expenses decreased in fiscal year 2002-2003 due to a reduction in depreciation expense.

Wastewater Management
There was a slight change in the revenue and expenses of the Wastewater Management Enterprise Fund from
the previous year.

¶ Total revenue decreased by $159.  Charges for services increased by $390 while interest revenue and
capital contributions decreased by $544.

¶ Operating expenses increased by $334 while operating transfers out increased by $140.

Sanitation Districts
There was very little change in the revenues and expenses of the Sanitation Districts from the previous fiscal

year.
¶ Charges for services remained fairly constant, however interest revenue decreased from $2,286

reported in fiscal year 2001-2002 to $1,294 as reported in fiscal year 2002-2003.
¶ Operating expenses for fiscal year 2002-2003 was reported at $15,200, down from the $15,288 as

reported in fiscal year 2001-2002.

Fiduciary Funds 

The County maintains fiduciary funds for the assets of the Pension Trust Fund, an Investment Trust, and 
various Agency Funds.  As of the end of fiscal year 2002-2003, the net assets of the Pension Trust Fund
totaled $4.1 billion, representing an increase of $569,768 in total net assets since June 30, 2002. The change 
is primarily related to contributions by the County from the proceeds of pension obligation bonds. The
Investment Trust Fund’s net assets totaled $2.5 billion, with an increase in net assets of $554,244, primarily
resulting from an increase in contributions into the pooled investments relating to the proceeds from new 
school bond issues, offset by an increase in distributions from pooled investments relating to the use of school
bond proceeds.

General Fund budgetary highlights 

The County’s final budget differs from the original budget in that it contains supplemental appropriations
approved during the fiscal year for various programs and projects, as well as budget corrections and account
reclassifications.  At June 30, 2003, the variances between the original and final budgets for net current
revenues over (under) expenditures and for other financing sources were ($603,619) and $513,150,
respectively, for a total variance of ($90,469) in budgeted fund balance. Significant variances were caused

by:
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¶ $737.3 million from the issuance of Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds.  Bond proceeds were expended
to reduce the County’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability to SDCERA. 

¶ $36.1 million in capital projects, including $12.2 million in parks projects and land acquisition, $8.2 
million in projects related to public safety, $5.3 million in library projects, $4 million in projects for
San Pasqual Academy and the Polinsky Children’s Center, and $2.9 million to plan for the Waterfront
Park.  These projects were funded substantially by prior year’s fund balance, management reserves,
transfers of appropriations, grants, and donations from private parties.

¶ $11.2 million in increased payments for salaries and benefits.  Significant changes include an increase
of $14 million in incentives earned through the County’s Quality First program.  The Department of
Child Support Services had a decrease of $2.5 million due to reduced State and Federal revenues. 

¶ $22.9 million in payments for services and supplies.  The County appropriated an additional $10.1
million for information technology and telecommunications, funded substantially by prior year’s fund
balance and management reserves. In addition the Health and Human Services Agency had net 
supplemental appropriations of $11.7 million across a number of programs, due to increased fees and
State and Federal revenues.  The Department of Child Support Services had a net decrease of $6
million due to reduced State and Federal revenues.

¶ $30.9 million in net budget reclassifications between Federal revenues and State revenues for the

Health and Human Services Agency resulted from increased budgeted Federal revenues and decreased
budgeted State revenues.

Actual revenues fell short of the final budgeted amounts by $64 million, while expenditures fell short of the 
budget by $281.1 million.  The combination of revenue and expenditure shortfalls resulted in a net positive
operating variance of $217.1 million.  Other financing sources and uses of funds resulted in a negative

variance from budget of $11.3 million.  The variance of net change in fund balance from the final budget was 
a positive variance of $205.8 million. Some highlights of the actual results compared to budgeted results are: 

Salaries and Benefits.  In the current environment of uncertainty over State and Federal funding, many 

County functions deferred hiring staff for ongoing programs in anticipation of future budget constraints and
planned increased retirement costs beginning in fiscal year 2003-2004.  The total positive variance in this
category is $44.9 million Countywide.

Health and Sanitation and Public Assistance.  A decrease in expenditures for these functions within the 
Health and Human Services Agency of $91.1 million is related to reductions in service level requirements,

decreased need for contracted services, and reduced aid payments.  These lowered expenditures are offset by 
corresponding reductions in Federal and State revenue.

Strong real estate markets.  The real estate markets in San Diego County have been robust for several

years due to low interest rates and high demand for residential real estate.  Originally projected to begin to
show weakness in fiscal year 2002-2003, this segment of the economy contributed to positive variances in
several revenue categories, including $12.7 million in property and other taxes and $8 million in charges for
document and recording services, as part of the overall positive variance in changes for current services of 
$11.8 million.

Delayed expenditures.  The budget included $12 million in appropriations related to debt management,
including $7 million to commence a program of long-term debt prepayment.  With the uncertainty surrounding
funding sources from the State and in order to maintain flexibility for one-time resources, no prepayment was 
made.  In addition, Information Technology and other multi-year projects experienced delays, including $7.7
million in unspent appropriations for County-wide Enterprise Resource Planning projects and $5.9 million for 
the Sheriff’s Department.

Reserves. The County reserves from prior years’ fund balance decreased by $4.9 million.  Primarily this was 
attributed to changes in reserve for encumbrances, which decreased from $98.7 million in fiscal year 2001-
2002 to $94.6 million in fiscal year 2002-2003.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2003, the County’s capital assets for both the governmental and business-type activities
amounted to approximately $2.7 billion net of accumulated depreciation. The investment in capital assets 
includes land, construction in progress, structures and improvements, equipment, and infrastructure
(including roads, bridges, flood channels, and traffic signals). The significant expenditures for capital assets in
fiscal year 2002-2003 are as follows:

Governmental Activities
¶ $37,868 towards the construction of and improvements to County maintained roads.  These 

expenditures are ongoing.

¶ $29,984 towards the construction of the East Mesa Juvenile Detention Facility. Total project costs 
are estimated at $52,952.

¶ $4,446 for the reconstruction of Edgemoor Hospital. Total project costs are estimated at $5,690.
¶ $3,460 for acquisition of Derbas real property (Escondido) for the purposes of wildlife habitat

preservation and restoration.
¶ $2,666 for acquisition of real property for the replacement of the Downtown Courthouse.
¶ $2,605 for the North County Regional Center Courthouse Annex Remodel. Total project costs are 

estimated at $5,507.
¶ $2,589 towards acquisitions for the Multiple Species Conservation Program.
¶ $2,325 towards the Kearny Mesa Assessor Recorder County Clerk building. Total project costs are 

estimated at $6,868.
¶ $2,130 towards the construction of the Spring Valley Library. Total project costs are estimated at 

$3,459.
¶ $1,938 towards the construction of bridges.

Business-Type Activities
¶ $2,867 for the improvements at the Ramona Airport.  The costs include $1,096 for the runway

extension, $1,560 for the sewer construction which is estimated to cost a total of $2,437, and 
$214 towards the construction of the control tower which is estimated to cost a total of $2,242.

¶ $2,106 for the realignment of the taxiway at Palomar Airport.  Total project costs are estimated at

$4,728.
¶ $754 towards improvements in the Spring Valley Sanitation district including outfall manhole

replacement, Jamacha Boulevard 8” Sewer construction, and the Whitestone Canyon sewer line
upgrade.  Total of all projects’ costs are estimated at $6,600.

¶ $298 towards the replacement of the Galloway Pump Station Force Main in Alpine Sanitation
District.  Total project costs are estimated at $2,100.

¶ $260 towards the replacement of the Julian Sanitation District septic tank and aerobic digester.

Total project costs are estimated at $629. 

For government-wide financial statement presentation, governmental fund depreciable capital assets were
depreciated from acquisition date to the end of the current fiscal year. Governmental fund financial
statements record capital asset purchases as expenditures.

Additional information about the County's capital assets can be found in the notes to the basic financial
statements.

Long-Term Obligations 

At June 30, 2003, the County had outstanding governmental activity long-term obligations of $1.999 billion
and no outstanding general obligation bonds. Of this amount, $395 million pertains to outstanding certificates
of participation, $41 million pertains to capital leases, and $1.563 billion pertains to other long-term
obligations that include $824 million of taxable pension obligation bonds, $449 million of San Diego County
Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation Bonds, $101 million for claims and judgments, $101 million for 
landfill closures, $75.4 million for compensated absences, $7.1 million for other loans, $4.5 million for 
Redevelopment Agency revenue bonds, and approximately $1 million for arbitrage rebate.
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Long-term obligations for business-type activities totaled $494 thousand and consisted of $299 thousand for 
compensated absences and $195 thousand for a long-term contract payable in the Spring Valley Sanitation
District.

During fiscal year 2002-2003, the County’s total principal amount of long-term obligations for governmental 
activities increased by approximately $496 million. The increase is due primarily to the County of San Diego’s
issuance of $737.3 million of Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds.  The general long-term obligations for the
business-type activities increased by approximately $17 thousand.

The County’s credit ratings on its bonded program are as follows:

Moody’s Standard & Poor’s Fitch Ratings
Certificates of Participation A1 AA- AA-
Pension Obligation Bonds 
   1994 Series A
   2002 Series A, B & C 

Aa3
Aa3

AA-
AA-

Not rated 
AA-

In addition, the County has an Underlying General Obligation rating of Aa2 from Moody’s and an Issuer
Creditor Rating of AA from Standard & Poor’s.  These ratings reflect the County’s favorable general credit

characteristics, which include a strong local economy, a sound financial position and a moderate debt profile.
However, on October 2002, Moody’s placed a negative outlook on all California county debt (except San
Francisco).  This is a result of the State of California’s pending decision to divert revenue from local

governments due to any budget shortfall.

Useful bond ratios to management, citizens, and investors are as follows:

Fiscal Year 
2003

Fiscal Year 
2002

Net Bonded Debt $1,191,754 $690,308

Net Bonded Debt per 
Capita $402 $237
Ratio of Net Bonded

Debt to Assessed Value .51 percent .32 percent

In March of 2002, the County implemented a new enhanced retirement package resulting in the increased 

unfunded accrued actuarial liability to the SDCERA.  In October 2002, the County issued $737.3 million of 
taxable Pension Obligation Bonds to finance a portion of this liability.

Additional information about the County's long-term obligations can be found in the notes to the basic
financial statements. 

Economic factors and next year’s budget and rates 

¶ The fiscal year 2003-2004 General Fund budget utilized $149.2 million out of $388 million in unreserved
fund balance.  Fund balance is used as a source of funds for one-time items.

¶ The development of the fiscal year 2003-2004 budget was based on expectations for demand for services
and availability of funding to support those services.  Three related factors pose significant negative risks
to our expectations: the State of California’s budget crisis; the continuing weakness of the State’s
economy; and, the political and budgetary uncertainty brought on by the October 7, 2003 recall of
Governor Davis. 

o The U.S. and California economies continue to give mixed signals regarding solid growth. The San
Diego economy, however, continues to show positive but slow growth (i.e., gross regional product
at 7.7% for 2000, at 2.6% for 2001, at 2.4% for 2002, and at 3.3% for 2003).
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o The State of California’s budget crisis, which began in fiscal year 2001-2002, is fueled largely by a 
decline in taxable income. The decline in taxable income is directly related to the weakened
economy and the huge stock market declines that occurred beginning in March, 2000. The State
also faces legal challenges to debt financing a portion of its revenue shortfall. Counties, as agents
of the State, rely heavily on State revenues to fund locally provided programs. Further, the State 
has taken action in the past which has intertwined State revenues with local discretionary
revenues. (See discussion on Vehicle License Fees below.) The State’s budget crisis is not likely to 
be resolved soon. The Legislative Analyst’s Office has estimated a budget shortfall of 
approximately $7.8 billion for fiscal year 2004-2005 assuming the deficit financing plan for fiscal
year 2003-2004 succeeds.

o The Governor Elect took office in November 2003 and must balance campaign promises with the 
fiscal and legal realities facing State government.

¶ The County’s general purpose revenues, with the exception of vehicle license fees (VLF), (i.e., property
tax, sales tax, real property transfer tax, transient occupancy tax and other minor revenues) continue to
perform well. Specifically:

The largest source of general purpose revenues is property taxes representing 55% of the total.
Property taxes have not been directly impacted by weakness in the State economy. In contrast to the

slowdown in the job market, demand for housing, boosted by low interest rates, has remained strong 
as attested to by significant increases in property values. Property taxes for fiscal year 2003-2004 are
expected to exceed fiscal year 2002-2003 actuals by 7.8%.

VLF revenue is budgeted at a level 2.2% greater than the actual for fiscal year 2002-2003 and makes
up 30% of general purpose revenues. However, the actual fiscal year 2003-2004 VLF revenues will be
significantly below the fiscal year 2002-2003 level due to State policy actions. Specifically, in 1998,

the State reduced the VLF paid by the vehicle owners and backfilled the revenue loss to counties and
cities from State general funds. The fiscal year 2003-2004 State Budget eliminated the VLF backfill
and reinstated the 2% license fee to vehicle owners.  The VLF backfill was eliminated for the entire

fiscal year, but the reinstatement of the 2% fee was made effective October 1, 2003, in order to give
the Department of Motor Vehicles sufficient time to reprogram its computer system.  The County 
anticipates a shortfall of approximately $31 million as a result of this three-month funding gap.  In

addition, the State has chosen to keep the Realignment Program whole with respect to the portion
funded by VLF. That decision means the loss of an additional $7.5 million to the County’s general
purpose VLF revenue for a total of $38.5 million less than the $195 million budgeted in fiscal year
2003-2004. This revenue loss will be made up through a combination of over-realized revenues in

other general purpose revenue categories (as available), savings in departmental operations and 
unappropriated fund balance from fiscal year 2002-2003.

Sales tax, approximately 3.1% of general purpose revenues, has been more sensitive to the 
slowdown. It was budgeted conservatively at 2% below fiscal year 2002-2003 actuals but 6.8% above
the fiscal year 2002-2003 budgeted level.

The real property transfer tax makes up about 2.6% of the general purpose revenues.  It is based on
the dollar value of property sales and has been favorably impacted by the active real estate markets
in the current environment of low interest rates. This revenue, too, was budgeted conservatively at

20% below fiscal year 2002-2003 actuals, but 6.5% above the fiscal year 2002-2003 budgeted level.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for the 

money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, please
contact the Auditor and Controller’s Office, County of San Diego, located at 1600 Pacific Highway, San Diego,
California 92101.
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Component Unit

Governmental Business-Type First 5

Activities Activities Total Commission

ASSETS

Current assets:

   Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 792,586 70,910 863,496 152,091

   Cash with fiscal agent 609,772 609,772

   Collections in transit 7,538 3 7,541

   Imprest cash 533 2 535

   Investments 2 2

   Accounts and notes receivable 325,359 1,696 327,055 7,989

   Taxes receivable, net 15,983 15,983

   Internal balances (106) 106

   Advances to other funds 9,494 9,494

   Inventory of materials and supplies 9,725 9,725

   Deposits with others 487 487

   Prepaid items 8 8

      Total current assets 1,761,887 82,211 1,844,098 160,080

Noncurrent assets:

   Restricted assets:

      Investments 45,413 45,413

   Deferred charges 54,346 54,346

   Capital assets:

      Land, construction and contracts in progress 443,649 21,307 464,956

   Other capital assets, net of depreciation 2,222,135 50,449 2,272,584

    Total noncurrent assets 2,765,543 71,756

Total assets 4,527,430 153,967 4,681,397 160,080

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 75,000 1,616 76,616 1,852

Accrued payroll 38,475 178 38,653

Amount due for tax & revenue anticipation notes 139,039 139,039

Accrued interest 25,492 25,492

Advances from other funds 9,494 9,494

Deferred revenue 52,672 12 52,684

Current portion of long-term obligations 93,932 30 93,962

Total current liabilities 434,104 1,836 435,940 1,852

Noncurrent liabilities:

  Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 1,905,171 464 1,905,635

  Total noncurrent liabilities 1,905,171 464 1,905,635

Total liabilities 1,852

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,261,697 71,293 2,332,990

Restricted for:

   Capital projects 132 15 147

   Debt service 88,530 88,530

   Inactive landfill maintenance 92,218 92,218

   Other purposes 62,935 62,935

Unrestricted (317,357) 80,359 (236,998) 158,228

Total net assets $ 2,188,155 151,667 2,339,822 158,228
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Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Primary government:

Governmental activities:

   General government $ 234,062 121,070 1,190 5,347

   Public protection 1,140,484 170,221 163,817 24,711

   Public ways and facilities 142,356 19,017 51,577

   Public assistance 1,035,065 7,338 819,795

   Health and sanitation 598,189 83,629 250,030

   Recreational and cultural 23,520 5,426 459 10,032

   Education 30,850 2,159 1,298 497

   Interest expense 87,627

   Total governmental activities 3,292,153 408,860 1,288,166 40,587

Business-type activities:

   Airport 7,125 7,396 3,769

   Wastewater Management 4,357 4,496 6

   Sanitation Districts 15,216 15,444 833

   Total business-type activities 26,698 27,336 3,769 839

Total primary government 3,318,851 436,196 1,291,935 41,426

Component unit:

   First 5 Commission 24,016 39,116

Total component unit $ 24,016 39,116

General revenues:

  Taxes:

    Property taxes

    Franchise taxes

    State sales tax and motor vehicle fees

  Interest

Special item - gain on sale of properties

Transfers

 Total general revenues, special item, and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning (restated)

Net assets - ending

(Cont)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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(Cont)

Component Unit

Governmental Business-Type First 5

Activities Activities Total Commission  Functions/Programs

 Primary government:

 Governmental activities:

(106,455) (106,455)     General government

(781,735) (781,735)     Public protection

(71,762) (71,762)     Public ways and facilities

(207,932) (207,932)     Public assistance

(264,530) (264,530)     Health and sanitation

(7,603) (7,603)     Recreational and cultural

(26,896) (26,896)     Education

(87,627) (87,627)     Interest expense

(1,554,540) (1,554,540)     Total governmental activities

 Business-type activities:

4,040 4,040     Airport

145 145     Wastewater Management

1,061 1,061     Sanitation Districts

5,246 5,246     Total business-type activities

(1,554,540) 5,246 (1,549,294)  Total primary government

 Component Unit:

15,100   First 5 Commission

15,100  Total component unit

General revenues:

 Taxes:

459,340$         459,340    Property taxes

3,964 3,964    Franchise taxes

636,225 636,225    State sales tax and motor vehicle fees

30,213 1,437 31,650 3,873  Interest

474 27 501 Special item - gain on sale of properties

(160) 160 Transfers

1,130,056 1,624 1,131,680 3,873 Total general revenues, special item, and transfers

(424,484) 6,870 (417,614) 18,973  Change in net assets

2,612,639 144,797 2,757,436 139,255  Net assets - beginning (restated)

2,188,155$      151,667 2,339,822 158,228  Net assets - ending

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Tobacco

Tobacco Securitization

Securitization Joint Other Total 

General Special Revenue Special Revenue Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 355,746 332 265,081 621,159

Cash with fiscal agent 150,719 374,982 54,998 29,073 609,772

Collections in transit 6,996 258 7,254

Imprest cash 314 17 331

Investments 2 2

Taxes receivable 15,983 15,983

Accounts and notes receivable 164,901 889 382 114,018 280,190

Due from other funds 203,886 5 31,347 235,238

Advances to other funds 689 417 1,106

Inventory of materials and supplies 6,748 2,098 8,846

Deposits with others 487 487

Prepaid items 8 8

Restricted assets:

Investments 45,413 45,413

Total assets 905,984 376,208 55,380 488,217 1,825,789

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 42,361 13,213 55,574

Accrued payroll 35,347 2,101 37,448

Amount due for tax and revenue anticipation notes 139,039 139,039

Due to other funds 23,476 7,934 126,213 157,623

Advances from other funds 11,232 11,232

Deferred revenue 67,100 6,986 74,086

Total liabilities 307,323 7,934 159,745 475,002

Fund balances:

Reserved for encumbrances 94,617 45,061 139,678

Reserved for notes receivable and advances 7,551 30,331 37,882

Reserved for deposits with others 1,055 1,055

Reserved for inactive landfill maintenance 92,218 92,218

Reserved for inventory of materials and supplies 6,748 319 7,067

Reserved for debt service 41,813 30,020 71,833

Reserved for other purposes 101,361 13,567 40,359 155,287

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 119,421 119,421

Undesignated 268,963 368,274 637,237

Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:

Special revenue funds 79,338 79,338

Capital projects funds 9,771 9,771

Total fund balances 598,661 368,274 55,380 328,472 1,350,787

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 905,984 376,208 55,380 488,217 1,825,789

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Total fund balances-governmental funds $1,350,787

Pension obligation bonds originally issued in 1994 were partially refunded through the issuance of

new pension obligation bonds in 2002. These costs represent the deferred costs on the refunded

debt. These costs are to be capitalized and amortized over the remaining life of the 1994 pension

obligation bonds. 17,590

Bond discounts are expended in governmental funds in the year of sale and are capitalized and

amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purposes of the statement of net assets. 10,275

Costs of issuances are reported as expenditures in governmental funds and thus have the effect of

reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been used. In the government-wide

statements however, bond issuance costs are reported as a deferred charge and amortized over 

the life of the bond issue. 26,481

When capital assets (land, buildings, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are

purchased or constructed, the costs of those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental

funds. However, the statement of net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the

County as a whole. 2,566,515

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an

expenditure when due. (25,478)

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets will not be

available to pay for current-period expenditures. Those assets (for example, receivables) are

offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds and thus are not included in fund balance. 30,020

Liabilities for long-term debt are not accrued in governmental funds, but rather are recognized as

an expenditures when due. (7,686)

Bond premiums are recognized as revenue in governmental funds in the year of sale and are

recorded as a liability and amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds. (633)

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not due and payable in

the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, current and

long-term, are recorded in the statement of net assets. (1,895,579)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as

insurance and telecommunications, to individuals funds. The assets and liabilities of certain internal

service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 115,863

Net assets of governmental activities $2,188,155

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Tobacco

Tobacco Securitization

Securitization Joint Other Total 

General Special Revenue Special Revenue Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Revenues:

Taxes $ 396,415 50,420 446,835

Licenses, permits and franchises 28,840 10,495 39,335

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 36,246 4,990 41,236

Revenue from use of money and 

property 16,691 7,841 3,071 13,130 40,733

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 709,693 522,211 1,231,904

Federal 533,562 98,679 632,241

Other 49,853 16,263 66,116

Charges for current services 243,125 23,449 266,574

Other revenue 25,389 35,444 9,232 70,065

Total revenues 2,039,814 7,841 38,515 748,869 2,835,039

Expenditures:

Current:

General 192,720 113 17,041 209,874

Public protection 1,123,518 21,653 1,145,171

Public ways and facilities 21,855 101,347 123,202

Health and sanitation 569,914 30,611 600,525

Public assistance 945,562 91,905 1,037,467

Education 6,649 24,364 31,013

Recreational and cultural 19,884 921 20,805

Capital outlay 83,748 83,748

Debt service:

Principal 9,560 79,286 88,846

Interest 12,735 25,351 35,661 73,747

Total expenditures 2,892,837 35,024 486,537 3,414,398

 Excess of revenues over 

(under) expenditures (853,023) 7,841 3,491 262,332 (579,359)

Other financing sources (uses):

Sale of capital assets 11 463 474

Long term debt proceeds 560,450 436 560,886

Refunding bonds issued 176,890 176,890

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (176,890) (176,890)

Transfers in 478,806 290,191 768,997

Transfers (out) (156,879) (26,949) (589,317) (773,145)

Total other financing sources (uses) 882,388 (26,949) (298,227) 557,212

Excess of revenues over (under)

expenditures and other

financing sources (uses) 29,365 (19,108) 3,491 (35,895) (22,147)

Fund balances - beginning of year (restated) 570,352 387,382 51,889 364,305 1,373,928

Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for inventory of 

materials and supplies (1,056) 62 (994)

Fund balances - end of year $ 598,661 368,274 55,380 328,472 1,350,787

Financial Report of San Diego County

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

 AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds ($22,147)

Governmental funds accrue property tax revenue, which is deemed collectible within sixty days.

However, in the statement of activities the total amount estimated to ultimately be collected is

accrued. 12,658

Adjustment for reserve for inventory of materials and supplies. (994)

Long-term revenues are not available as current resources, and therefore are not reported as

revenue in the governmental funds. (1,138)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities

the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation

expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period. 36,710

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as

insurance and telecommunications, to individual funds. The adjustments for internal service funds

"close" those funds by charging additional amounts to participating governmental activities to

completely cover the internal service fund's costs for the year. 23,098

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures for 

the County's long term obligations for capital leases, claims and judgments, accumulated unpaid

employee leave balances, loans and arbitrage rebate, are not recognized until they mature. In the

statement of activities however, they are reported as expenses and liabilities as they accrue. (3,411)

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds in the year of sale and are capitalized

and amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purpose of the statement of net assets. 16,539

Repayment of bond principal as well as refunding of bonds which are considered a repayment of 

principal are reported as an expenditure in governmental funds and, thus, has the effect of reducing

fund balance because current financial resources have been used. For the County as a whole, 

however, the principal payments reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not

result in an expense in the statement of activities. The County's long term debt was reduced by the

amount of principal payments made to bond holders. 88,846

Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in governmental

funds because additional interest was calculated for bonds and notes payable and amortization of

capitalized bond discounts and premiums which are expended in governmental funds in the year

paid. (13,759)

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to the

change in fund balance. In the government-wide statements however, issuing debt increases 

long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and does not effect the statement of activities. (560,886)

Change in net assets of governmental activities ($424,484)

43

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement



Wastewater

Airport Management

ASSETS

Current assets:

   Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 4,717 1,705

   Collections in transit 3

   Imprest cash 1 1

   Accounts and notes receivable 1,177 1

   Due from other funds 820 642

   Advances to other funds 9,637

   Inventory of materials and supplies

   Total current assets 16,355 2,349

   Capital assets:

      Land 6,401 20

      Construction and contracts in progress 11,895

      Buildings and equipment 28,715 905

      Infrastructure

      Less accumulated depreciation (18,194) (457)

 Total noncurrent assets 28,817 468

Total assets 45,172 2,817

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,453 8

Accrued payroll 71 107

Accrued interest

Due to other funds 318 127

Claims and judgments

Advances from other funds

Compensated absences 12 18

Deferred revenue 12

Bonds, notes and loans payable

Total current liabilities 1,866 260

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 108 161

Claims and judgments

Bonds, notes and loans payable

    Total long-term liabilities 108 161

Total liabilities 1,974 421

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 28,817 468

Restricted for:

   Capital projects

   Other purposes

Unrestricted 14,381 1,928

Total net assets $ 43,198 2,396

(Cont)

Business-Type Activities 

June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Financial Report of San Diego County

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
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(Cont)

Governmental

Activities -

Internal

Sanitation Service

Districts Total Funds

ASSETS

Current assets:

   Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 64,488 70,910 171,427

   Collections in transit 3 284

   Imprest cash 2 202

   Accounts and notes receivable 1,178 3,178

   Due from other funds 285 1,747 19,127

   Advances to other funds 135 9,772 632

   Inventory of materials and supplies 879

   Total current assets 64,908 83,612 195,729

   Capital assets:

      Land 1,069 7,490

      Construction and contracts in progress 1,922 13,817 44,768

      Buildings and equipment 2,181 31,801 101,377

      Infrastructure 63,063 63,063

      Less accumulated depreciation (25,764) (44,415) (46,876)

 Total noncurrent assets 42,471 71,756 99,269

Total assets 107,379 155,368 294,998

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 155 1,616 19,426

Accrued payroll 178 1,027

Accrued interest 14

Due to other funds 597 1,042 54,938

Claims and judgments 32,578

Advances from other funds 278 278

Compensated absences 30 207

Deferred revenue 12 287

Bonds, notes and loans payable 860

Total current liabilities 1,030 3,156 109,337

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences 269 1,869

Claims and judgments 68,010

Bonds, notes and loans payable 195 195

    Total long-term liabilities 195 464 69,879

Total liabilities 1,225 3,620 179,216

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 42,008 71,293 98,270

Restricted for:

   Capital projects 15 15

   Other purposes

Unrestricted 64,131 80,440 17,512

Total net assets $ 106,154 151,748 115,782

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of

net assets are different because certain internal service fund assets and

liabilities are included with business-type activities (81)

Net assets of business-type activities 151,667

Business-Type Activities

June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Financial Report of San Diego County

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Wastewater

Airport Management
O PER ATIN G  R EVEN U ES

Charges for services $ 7,396 4,496
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenue 7,396 4,496

O PER A TIN G  EXPEN SES

Salaries 2,020 2,659
Repairs and maintenance 455 110
Equipment rental 521 357
Sewage processing
Contracted services 2,732 917
Depreciation 769 26
Utilities 166 8
Cost of material
Claims and judgments
Fuel
Other operating expenses 469 192

Total operating expenses 7,132 4,269

         Operating income 264 227

N O N O PER ATIN G  R EVEN U ES (EXPEN SES)

Interest and dividends 108 30
Grants 3,769
Interest expense
Other nonoperating revenue 
Gain (loss) on disposal of equipment 33

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 3,910 30

Income before contributions and transfers 4,174 257
Capital contributions 6
Transfers in 740
Transfers (out) (440) (140)

Change in net assets 4,474 123
Total net assets - beginning 38,724 2,273
Total net assets - ending $ 43,198 2,396

Financial R eport of San D iego County

PR O PR IETAR Y FU N D S

Year Ended June 30, 2003

STA TEM EN T O F R EVEN U ES, EXPEN SES, A N D

CH A N G ES IN  FU N D  N ET A SSETS

(In Thousands)

Enterprise Funds

B usiness-Type A ctivities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
46



(Cont)

G overnm ental
A ctivities -

Internal

Sanitation Service

Districts Total Funds

O PER ATIN G  R EVEN U ES

Charges for services $ 15,444 27,336 294,247
Miscellaneous 2,782

Total operating revenue 15,444 27,336 297,029

O PER A TIN G  EXPEN SES

Salaries 4,679 26,976
Repairs and maintenance 2,351 2,916 20,662
Equipment rental 878 1,433
Sewage processing 10,161 10,161
Contracted services 3,649 125,679
Depreciation 1,293 2,088 9,542
Utilities 174 19,087
Cost of material 36,696
Claims and judgments 32,578
Fuel 4,934
Other operating expenses 1,395 2,056 8,613

Total operating expenses 15,200 26,601 286,200

         Operating income 244 735 10,829

N O N O PER ATIN G  R EVEN U ES (EXPEN SES)

Interest and dividends 1,294 1,432 759
Grants 3,769
Interest expense (16) (16) (121)
Other nonoperating revenue 5 5
Gain (loss) on disposal of equipment (6) 27 (185)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,277 5,217 453

Income before contributions and transfers 1,521 5,952 11,282
Capital contributions 833 839 7,872
Transfers in 740 7,438
Transfers (out) (580) (3,450)

Change in net assets 2,354 6,951 23,142
Total net assets - beginning 103,800 92,640
Total net assets - ending $ 106,154 115,782

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of
activities are different because the net revenue (expense) of certain
internal service funds are reported with business-type activities. (81)

    Change in net assets of business-type activities $ 6,870

Financial R eport of San D iego County

STA TEM EN T O F R EVEN U ES, EXPEN SES, A N D

CH A N G ES IN  FU N D  N ET A SSETS

PR O PR IETAR Y FU N D S

Year Ended June 30, 2003

Enterprise Funds

(In Thousands)

B usiness-Type A ctivities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Wastewater

Airports Management Transit

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Cash received from customers $ 8,460 4,443 640

  Other receipts

  Cash received from other funds 130

  Cash payments to suppliers (2,562) (353) (3,625)

  Cash payments to employees (2,012) (2,638)

  Cash payments to other funds (1,986) (1,147) (167)

    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,030 305 (3,152)

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

  Property taxes

  Transfers from (to) other funds (445) (140)

  Advances from (to) other funds

    Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities (445) (140)

Cash flows from capital and related

  financing activities:

  Loans from other funds 414

  Loan to other funds 91

  Grant revenue 7,434

  Acquisition of capital assets (5,382)

  Capital contributions

  Proceeds from sale of equipment

  Principal paid on long-term debt

  Interest paid on long-term debt

    Net cash provided (used) by capital and

      related financing activities 2,557

Cash flows from investing activities:

  Interest 111 50 20

  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,253 215 (3,132)

  Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 468 1,490 3,132

  Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 4,721 1,705

Reconciliation of operating income:

Operating income 264 227

Adjustments to reconcile:

  Inc (dec) in compensated absences 18 4

  Inc (dec) in accrued payroll (1) 18

  Inc (dec) in due to other funds (124) 41 (167)

  Inc (dec) in accounts payable (159) 4 (3,625)

  Inc (dec) in claims and judgments

  Dec (inc) in accounts receivable 1,064 615

  Dec (inc) in inventory 69 38

  Dec (inc) in deferred credits

  Dec (inc) in due from other funds 130 (53) 25

  Dec (inc) in other current assets

  Depreciation 769 26

    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 2,030 305 (3,152)

Non-cash investing and capital financing activities:

  Accrued interest $ 3 20

(Cont)
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(Cont)

Governmental

Activities-

Internal

Sanitation Service

Districts Total Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Cash received from customers $ 15,063 28,606 311,059

  Other receipts 287

  Cash received from other funds 130

  Cash payments to suppliers (10,746) (17,286) (279,939)

  Cash Payments to employees (4,650) (26,837)

  Cash payments to other funds (2,652) (5,952) (16,388)

    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,665 848 (11,818)

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

  Property taxes 5 5

  Transfers from (to) other funds (585) 3,923

  Advances from (to) other funds (18) (18) (373)

    Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities (13) (598) 3,550

Cash flows from capital and related

  financing activities:

  Loans from other funds 414

  Loan to other funds 91

  Grant revenue 7,434

  Acquisition of capital assets (2,312) (7,694) (20,710)

  Capital contributions 833 833 7,142

  Proceeds from sale of equipment 686

  Principal paid on long-term debt (5) (5) (2,694)

  Interest paid on long-term debt (16) (16) (156)

    Net cash provided (used) by capital and

      related financing activities (1,500) 1,057 (15,732)

Cash flows from investing activities:

  Interest 1,456 1,637 851

  Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,608 2,944 (23,149)

  Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 62,880 67,970 195,063

  Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 64,488 70,914 171,914

Reconciliation of operating income:

Operating income 244 735 10,829

Adjustments to reconcile:

  Inc (dec) in compensated absences 22 95

  Inc (dec) in accrued payroll 17 56

  Inc (dec) in due to other funds 534 284 (5,083)

  Inc (dec) in accounts payable (25) (3,805) (38,272)

  Inc (dec) in claims and judgments 2,795

  Dec (inc) in accounts receivable 1,679 546

  Dec (inc) in inventory 107 1,040

  Dec (inc) in deferred credits 287

  Dec (inc) in due from other funds (381) (279) 6,334

  Dec (inc) in other current assets 13

  Depreciation 1,293 2,088 9,542

    Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,665 848 (11,818)

Non-cash investing and capital financing activities:

  Accrued interest $ 162 185 92
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Pension Investment

Trust Trust Agency 

Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 13,634 2,468,111 357,504

Cash with fiscal agent 237,767 8,164

Collections in transit 1,294 15,567

Imprest cash 31 5

Investments 4,240,950 103 1

Taxes receivable 194,995

Accounts receivable 45,308 29 15,322

Due from other funds 2,556 27,658 1,044

Capital assets, net 2,636

    Total assets 4,542,851 2,497,226 592,602

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 110,333 651

Due to other funds 44 8,898 64,825

Obligations under securities lending 329,126

Due to other governments 465,390

Amount due for commercial paper notes 61,736

    Total liabilities 439,503 8,898 592,602

NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes $ 4,103,348 2,488,328

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Pension Investment

Trust Trust

Fund Fund

ADDITIONS

Contributions:

Employer $ 616,113

Plan members 34,666

Contributions on pooled investments 14,687,119

                   Total contributions 650,779 14,687,119

     Investment earnings:

     Net increase in fair value of investments 92,507

     Interest income 60,561 44,736

     Securities lending income 5,446

     Other income 39,539

                   Total investment earnings 198,053 44,736

         Less investment expenses 43,919

         Less securities lending expenses 4,173

             Net investment earnings 149,961

                   Total additions 800,740 14,731,855

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits 222,514

Refunds of contributions 1,451

Distribution from pooled investments 7,007 14,177,611

                   Total deductions 230,972 14,177,611

                   Changes in net assets 569,768 554,244

Net assets - beginning of year 3,533,580 1,934,084

Net assets - end of year $ 4,103,348 2,488,328

Financial Report of San Diego County

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Financial Report of San Diego County

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2003

(Amounts Expressed In Thousands) 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

(A) The Financial Reporting Entity

The County of San Diego is a political subdivision of the State of California (the “State”) charged with
general governmental powers and governed by an elected five-member Board of Supervisors (the
“Board”).  The County provides a full range of general government services. As required by generally
accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the County of San Diego (the 
primary government) and its component units, entities for which the County is considered to be
financially accountable.  Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in
substance, part of the County’s operations, and the County Board of Supervisors is typically their
governing body.  They are reported as if they were part of the primary government, because they

benefit the County exclusively. A discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the
County.  This unit is discretely presented because its Board is not substantively the same as the 

County’s Board and it does not provide services entirely or almost entirely to the County. Management
applied the criteria of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, “The 
Financial Reporting Entity,” to determine whether the following component units should be reported as
blended or discretely presented component units.

(B) Blended Component Units

County Service Districts – These special district funds were established to provide authorized services
such as road, park, lighting maintenance, fire protection or ambulance service to specific areas in the
county.  They are financed by ad valorem property taxes in the area benefited or by special

assessments levied on specific properties.  These funds are included as special revenue funds.

Flood Control District – This fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures related to
providing flood control in the county.  It is financed primarily by ad valorem property taxes and federal

grants. This fund is included as a special revenue fund.

Lighting Maintenance District - This fund was established to provide street and road lighting services

to specified areas of the County.  Revenue sources include ad valorem taxes, benefit fees, state 
funding and charges to property owners.  This fund is included as a special revenue fund. 

Air Pollution Control District – This fund was established to provide for control of air pollution from
motor vehicles and other sources in order to attain health-based air quality standards.  Revenue 
sources include license and permit fees, fines, state and federal funds, charges to property owners
and vehicle registration fees.  This fund is included as a special revenue fund.

San Diego County Housing Authority – This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to
providing decent housing in a suitable environment for individuals who cannot afford standard private
housing.  Contracts with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development provide the major
funding sources. This fund is included as a special revenue fund. 

Sanitation Districts – These funds are used to account for the activities of all individual sanitation
districts governed by the County Board of Supervisors.  They are included as enterprise funds.

San Diego County Redevelopment Agency – This agency was established to provide a method of

eliminating slums and blighted areas, improving housing, expanding employment opportunities, and 
providing an environment for the social, economic and psychological growth, and well-being of all 
citizens of the County.  This agency is included in the debt service and capital projects funds.
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San Diego County Capital Asset Leasing Corporation (SANCAL) – This corporation was established to
finance the acquisition of county buildings and equipment.  It is a nonprofit corporation governed by a
five-member Board of Directors, which is appointed by the County Board of Supervisors.  This
corporation is included in the special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds.

San Diego County Employees’ Retirement Association (SDCERA) – This fund is a legally separate 
entity reported as if it were part of the primary government, because it exclusively benefits the
County by providing pensions for retired County employees. This fund is included in the fiduciary
funds.

County of San Diego In-Home Supportive Services Public Authority (IHSS) – This fund was established
to serve as the employer of record for the IHSS program which provides in-home assistance to low-
income aged, blind, and disabled individuals enabling them to remain safely in their own homes and
avoid institutionalization.  The IHSS program is State-Mandated. This fund is included in the special
revenue funds. 

The San Diego County Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation (“Corporation”) – This is a separate
legal nonprofit public benefit corporation created under the California Nonprofit Public Benefit

Corporation Law.  It was established to purchase tobacco settlement payments allocated to the County 
from the State of California, pursuant to the Master Settlement Agreement concluded on November
23, 1998 between the major tobacco companies and 46 states (including California), the District of 
Columbia and four U.S. Territories (see Note 5H for additional information regarding the sale by the 

County to the Corporation of all right, title and interest of the County to such monies).  The
Corporation is governed by the Board of Directors consisting of three members, two of which are 
employees of the County of San Diego and one independent director who is not an employee of the 

County.

The Tobacco Securitization Joint Powers Authority of Southern California (TSJPA) – This is a separate

legal public entity created by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement by and between the County of San
Diego and the County of Sacramento pursuant to the Government Code of the State of California.
The authority’s purpose is to finance a loan via the sale of bonds to the San Diego County Tobacco
Asset Securitization Corporation which in turn uses the loan proceeds to purchase the County’s future

tobacco settlement revenues under the Purchase and Sale Agreement.   The Authority is administered
by the Board of Directors consisting of three members, two members which are appointed by the 
County of San Diego Board of Supervisors and the third member is appointed by the Sacramento

County Board of Supervisors. The County changed its accounting policy from reporting the TSJPA as a 
discretely presented component to a blended component unit in the fiscal year. The net effect of the
change increased the beginning fund balance in the Tobacco Securitization Joint Special Revenue Fund 
by $51,889 and eliminated the discretely presented component unit fund balance of $11,236.

Separate financial statements for the individual blended component units described above may be
obtained by contacting the County Chief Financial Officer/Auditor and Controller’s Office, County of
San Diego, located at 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 166, San Diego, California 92101.

(C) Discretely Presented Component Unit

First 5 Commission of San Diego (Commission) – This fund was established by the County as a
separate legal entity to administer the County’s share of tobacco taxes levied by the State pursuant to
Proposition 10. Its purpose is to develop, adopt, promote and implement early childhood development
programs in the County. The Commission is a separate legal entity, and the County appoints a voting
majority of the Commission’s board.  The County is able to impose its will on the Commission, due to
its ability to change the appointees. The two boards (County and Commission) are not substantively
the same and the Commission does not provide services entirely or almost entirely to the County, but
to the citizens instead.
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Separate financial statements for the discretely presented component unit listed above can be
obtained by contacting the Chief Financial Officer/Auditor and Controller’s Office, County of San Diego,
located at 1600 Pacific Highway, Room 166, San Diego, California 92101.

(D) Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The basic government-wide financial statements, consisting of the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities, report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. Whenever possible, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the legally
separate component unit for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable

with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among

program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and

fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.
The focus of governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds.  The financial
information of each major fund is shown in a separate column in the fund financial statements, with

the data for all nonmajor governmental funds and nonmajor proprietary funds aggregated into two
single columns.

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the County except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  Revenues are 

primarily derived from taxes; licenses, permits and franchises; fines, forfeitures and penalties;
use of money and property; intergovernmental revenues; charges for services; and other
revenues.  Expenditures are expended for functions of general government, public protection,
public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public assistance, education, and recreational
and cultural.  They also include capital outlay, and debt service.

The Tobacco Securitization Special Revenue Fund accounts for tobacco settlement payments
allocated to the County from the State of California, pursuant to the Master Settlement
Agreement concluded on November 23, 1998 between the major tobacco companies and 46
states (including California), the District of Columbia and four U.S. Territories.   (See Note 5H
for additional information regarding the sale by the County to the Corporation of all right, title
and interest of the County to such monies)

The Tobacco Securitization Joint Special Revenue Fund accounts for the transactions of the 
San Diego County Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation and Tobacco Securitization Joint
Powers Authority, two component units, that are blended into the County’s financial
statements.
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The County reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds: 

The Airport Fund is used to account for the maintenance, operations and development of 
County airports.  A major objective of the airport program is to purchase and develop airport
property in order to create tax revenues and create jobs in the private sector. 

The Wastewater Management Fund accounts for operational services and support provided to
sanitation districts governed by the County Board of Supervisors.

The Sanitation District Funds are used to account for the activities of all individual sanitation
districts and sewer maintenance district governed by the County Board of Supervisors.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one County

department to other County departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Pension Trust Fund is under the control of the Board of Retirement.  The fund accumulates

employer and employee contributions and earnings from the fund’s investments.
Disbursements are made from the fund for retirements, disability and death benefits and
refunds.  This fund includes all assets of the retirement system.

The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the external portion of the County Treasurer’s
investment pool.  This fund consists of school districts, special districts and funds held for 
other governments.

The Agency Fund maintains assets held in an agent capacity for other governments,
organizations and individuals.  These assets do not support the County’s programs or services.

Any portion of the Agency Fund’s assets held at fiscal year end for other County funds, are 
reported in those funds rather than in the Agency Fund.

(E) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund 

financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as

all eligibility requirements have been met. For purposes of not overstating the true costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions, interfund activities have been eliminated from the
government-wide statement of activities.

All proprietary funds, the pension trust fund and the investment trust fund are accounted for on a flow
of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are

included on the balance sheet.  Fund equity for the proprietary funds (i.e., total net assets) is
segregated into restricted and unrestricted.  Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in total net assets.  Financial Accounting

Standards Board Statements issued after November 30, 1989, are not applied in reporting proprietary
fund operations.

For proprietary funds, operating activities generally relate to transactions and events reported as
components of operating income in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net
assets.  Operating revenues would include charges for providing goods and services; operating
expenses would include salaries and benefits, utilities, and payments to vendors and suppliers.  In
addition, nonoperating activities are used for any revenues or expenses that cannot be properly
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classified as components of operating income.  Examples of nonoperating activities would include
interest revenue, gain/loss on disposal of assets and capital expenses.

Governmental fund types are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual
(i.e., both measurable and available).  Available means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  The County considers this to be
one year for all items except property taxes, for which the County considers the period of availability
to be sixty days.  In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the
legal and contractual requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance.  Revenues that
are accrued include property taxes, sales tax, interest, and state and federal grants and subventions.
Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.  Exceptions to this
general rule include: (1) principal and interest on long-term debt which is recognized when due; and,
(2) accumulated unpaid vacation, sick leave, and other employee benefits which are reported in the 
period due and payable rather than in the period earned by employees.

Proprietary fund types, the pension trust fund, the investment trust fund and agency funds are
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized in the period earned

and expenses are recognized in the period incurred.  There are no unbilled utility service receivables
for the proprietary fund types. 

(F) Property Taxes

Taxes are levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property, which is situated in the 
County as of the preceding January 1 lien date.  However, upon a change in ownership of property or

completion of new construction, State law requires an accelerated recognition and taxation of changes 
in real property assessed valuation. For assessment and collection purposes, property is classified
either as “secured” or “unsecured” and is listed accordingly on separate parts of the assessment roll.

The “secured roll” is that part of the assessment roll containing locally assessed and State assessed
property secured by a lien, which is sufficient, in the opinion of the assessor, to secure payment of the
taxes.  Other property is assessed on the “unsecured roll.”

Property taxes on the secured roll are payable in two installments, due November 1 and February 1.
If unpaid, such taxes become delinquent after 5:00 p.m. on December 10 and April 10, respectively,
and a ten percent penalty attaches.  Property on the secured roll with unpaid delinquent taxes is

declared tax-defaulted after 5:00 p.m. on June 30th.  Such property may thereafter be redeemed by
payment of the delinquent taxes, the ten percent delinquency penalty, a ten dollar cost, a fifteen
dollar per parcel redemption fee (from which the State receives five dollars), and redemption penalty

of one and one-half percent per month starting July 1 and continuing until the end of redemption
collectively, the “Redemption Amount”.  If taxes remain unpaid after five years on the default roll, the 
property becomes subject to tax sale by the County Treasurer-Tax Collector.

Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due as of the January 1 lien date and become delinquent, if
unpaid, on August 31.  A ten percent penalty attaches to delinquent taxes on property on the 
unsecured roll and an additional penalty of one and one-half percent per month begins to accrue on

November 1.

As established by the Teeter Plan, the Controller allocates to the County and other agencies 100% of

the secured property taxes billed but not yet collected by the County; in return, as the delinquent
property taxes and associated penalties and interest are collected, the County retains such amounts in
the Agency Fund.  To the extent the Agency Fund tax loss reserves are higher than required, transfers
may be made to benefit the County’s General Fund.  The balance of the tax loss reserve as of June 30, 
2003 was $7 million, which is included in the General Fund for reporting purposes.
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(G) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity 

Cash and Investments

Investments in County funds are stated at fair value.  Securities that are traded on a national or 
international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at  current exchange  rates.  Short-
term investments in the Pension Trust Fund are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.  The
fair value of Pension Trust Fund real estate investments is based on independent appraisals.
Investments of the Pension Trust Fund that do not have an established market are reported at
estimated fair value.

For purposes of reporting cash flows, all amounts reported as "Equity in pooled cash and 
investments," "Collections in transit," and  "Imprest cash" are considered cash equivalents.  Pooled
cash and investment carrying amounts represent monies deposited in the County Treasurer's cash
management pool and are similar in nature to demand deposits (i.e., funds may be deposited and

withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penalty). Allocations of assets and liabilities to 
individual funds related to reverse repurchase agreements are not considered cash equivalents for 
purposes of cash flow reporting.  For “Cash with fiscal agent” information see Note 4A.

 Inventories

Inventories, which consist of expendable supplies, are stated at average cost.  They are accounted for

as expenditures at the time of purchase and reported in the balance sheet of the General Fund and 
the Special Revenue Funds as an asset with an offsetting reserve.  Inventory held by the Road Fund, a
special revenue fund, and the proprietary fund types is carried at average cost and is expended when

consumed.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the fund financial statements for the governmental fund 
types at time of purchase.  These assets are capitalized at cost in the statement of net assets.  In the
case of acquisitions through gifts or contributions, such assets are recorded at fair market value at the 

time received.  Capitalization thresholds are as follows:

Structures and improvements   $50

Infrastructure (permanent road
  divisions, county service areas,
  sanitation and special districts)

   $25

Infrastructure (all others)     $50
Equipment (governmental activities)    $  5

Depreciation is charged over the capital assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method 
for proprietary and governmental fund types.  Where applicable, the hours/miles-of-service method is
used for proprietary fund type equipment. Governmental fund type depreciation is only shown in the

statement of activities.  Proprietary fund type depreciation is shown both in the fund statements and
the statement of activities.  The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Structures and improvements    50 years
Infrastructure 10-50 years
Equipment (governmental fund type) 5-20 years

Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabilities expected to be financed with resources from governmental and proprietary fund 

types are accounted for in the statement of net assets. Long-term liabilities of all proprietary fund 
types are also accounted for in the respective funds. 
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Amounts recorded as accumulated leave benefits include an amount representing salary-related
payments such as the employer's share of Social Security and Medicare taxes associated with
payments made for such compensated absences.  Accumulated leave benefits including vacation, sick
leave, and compensatory time worked in the amount of approximately $75.4 million for the
governmental fund types as of June 30, 2003, is recorded in the statement of net assets.  These 
amounts would not be expected to be liquidated from expendable available financial resources but
would be expected to be liquidated in future years as employees elect to use these benefits as
prescribed by Civil Service rules and regulations.

Reservation of Fund Balances 

In the fund statements, reserves represent those portions of fund balance not available for
appropriation or legally segregated for a specific future use.

(2) Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

(A) Fund Deficits

The following funds have an accumulated deficit at June 30, 2003:

Capital Projects Funds: 
  San Diego County Redevelopment Agency (SDCRA) $  6,236

Internal Service Funds: 
  Risk Financing $  23,943

The deficit within the SDCRA fund is due to the use of loan proceeds in advance of the receipt of

benefit fees or incremental tax revenues.  This deficit will be reduced in future years upon the receipt
of the incremental tax revenues.  The deficit in the Risk Financing fund is due to the prior years’
recognition of liabilities based on actuarial studies.  The County intends to reduce the deficit by

focusing resources on injury prevention via a Countywide education and safety training program.  The 
County anticipates this program will reduce the growth in the liability for new injury claims, and 
therefore the deficit, by 5% to 10% per year.

(3) Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

(A) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and 
the government-wide statement of net assets

Total fund balance of the County's governmental funds, $1,350,787, differs from net assets of
governmental activities, $2,188,155, reported in the statement of net assets. The difference primarily
results from the long-term economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 

accounting in the statement of net assets versus the current financial resources measurement focus
and modified accrual basis of accounting in the governmental fund balance sheets.
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Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Assets

Total Long-term Internal Reclassi- Statement

Governmental Assets, Service fications and of Net Assets

Funds Liabilities (1) Funds (2) Eliminations Totals

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 628,744$ 171,913 800,657
Cash with fiscal agent 609,772 609,772
Investments 45,415 45,415
Taxes receivable, net 15,983 15,983
Internal balances (106) (106)
Accounts and notes
 receivable 280,190 3,178 41,991 325,359
Due from other funds 235,238 19,208 (254,446)
Advances to other funds 1,106 632 (1,738)
Inventory of materials and
 supplies 8,846 879 9,725
Deferred charges and other
 assets 495 54,346 54,841
Capital assets 2,566,515 99,269 2,665,784
  Total Assets 1,825,789 2,620,861 295,079 (214,299) 4,527,430

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 55,574 19,426 75,000
Accrued payroll 37,448 1,027 38,475
Amount due for tax & revenue
 anticipation notes 139,039 139,039
Accrued interest 25,478 14 25,492
Due to other funds 157,623 54,938 (212,561)
Advances from other funds 11,232 (1,738) 9,494
Deferred credits and other
 liabilities 74,086 (21,701) 287 52,672
Long-term liabilities 1,895,579 103,524 1,999,103
  Total liabilities 475,002 1,899,356 179,216 (214,299) 2,339,275

FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETS
Total fund balances/net assets 1,350,787 721,505 115,863 2,188,155

  Total liabilities and fund
  net assets 1,825,789$ 2,620,861 295,079 (214,299) 4,527,430
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(1) Pension obligation bonds originally issued in 1994 were partially refunded through the issuance
of new pension obligation bonds in 2002. These costs represent the deferred costs on the
refunded debt. These costs are to be capitalized and amortized over the remaining life of the 
1994 pension obligation bonds.

Net deferred costs of refunded bonds  $  17,590

Bond discounts are expended in governmental funds in the year of sale and are capitalized and 
amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purposes of the statement of net assets.

Net bond discount $      10,275

Costs of issuances are reported as expenditures in governmental funds and thus have the effect
of reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been used. In the
government-wide statements, bond issuance costs are reported as a deferred charge and
amortized over the life of the bond issue.

Net cost of issuance  $  26,481

Total deferred charges and other assets  $  54,346

When capital assets (land, buildings, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities
are purchased or constructed, the costs of those assets are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. However, the statement of net assets includes those capital assets among 
the assets of the County as a whole.

Cost of capital assets $  3,443,675
Accumulated
depreciation (877,160)

Net capital assets $  2,566,515

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an
expenditure when due.

Total accrued interest  $    (25,478)

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets will not be 
available to pay for current-period expenditures.  Those assets (for example, receivables) are
offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds and thus are not included in fund
balance.

Adjustment of deferred revenue  $  30,020

Liabilities for long-term debt are not accrued in governmental funds, but rather are recognized
as expenditures when due.

Pension obligation liability $  (7,686) 

Bond premiums are recognized as revenue in governmental funds in the year of sale and are
recorded as a liability and amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds.

Total bond premiums $    (633) 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities  $  21,701
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Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not due and payable
in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, current
and long-term, are reported in the statement of net assets.    Balances at June 30, 2003 were: 

Bonds and notes payable $(1,231,298)
Capital lease (40,000)

Arbitrage   (752) 
Compensated absences (73,294)

Landfill closure (101,000)

Tobacco securitization corporation debt service  (449,235)

Total long term liabilities $(1,895,579)

(2)   Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
insurance and telecommunications, to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of certain
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 

Costs $     115,863

(B) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide
statement of activities

The net change in fund balances for governmental funds $(22,147) differs from the change in net 
assets for governmental activities $(424,484) reported in the statement of activities. The differences
arise primarily from the long-term economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting in the statement of activities versus the current financial resources measurement focus
and modified accrual basis of accounting in the governmental funds.  The effect of the differences is
illustrated in the following table.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances/Statement of Activities

Total Long-Term Capital- Internal Long-term Statement

Governmental Revenues/ Related Service Debt of Activities

Funds Expenses (3) Items (4) Funds (5) Transactions (6) Totals

Revenues:

Taxes 446,835$ 12,658 459,493

Licenses, permits and franchises 39,335 39,335

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 41,236 41,236

Revenue from use of money and

property 40,733 760 41,493

Aid from other governmental

agencies:

State 1,231,904 1,231,904

Federal 632,241 632,241

Other 66,116 66,116

Charges for current services 266,574 (994) 21,030 286,610

Other revenue 70,065 (1,138) 68,927

Total revenues 2,835,039 10,526 21,790 2,867,355

Expenditures:

Current:

General 209,874 22,031 17,695 (15,538) 234,062

Public protection 1,145,171 2,255 (7,973) 1,031 1,140,484

Public ways and facilities 123,202 19,952 (798) 142,356

Health and sanitation 600,525 286 (2,622) 598,189

Public assistance 1,037,467 (308) (3,473) 1,379 1,035,065

Education 31,013 27 (190) 30,850

Recreational and cultural 20,805 2,795 (80) 23,520

Debt service: 83,748 (83,748)

Capital outlay

Principal 88,846 (88,846)

Interest 73,747 121 13,759 87,627

Total expenditures 3,414,398 (36,710) 2,680 (88,215) 3,292,153

Other financing sources (uses):

Sale of capital assets 474 474

Proceeds of long term debt 560,886 (560,886)

Operating transfers (net) (4,148) 3,988 (160)

Refunding bonds issued 176,890 (176,890)

Payment to refunded bond

escrow agent (176,890) 176,890

Total other financing sources (uses) 557,212 3,988 (560,886) 314

Net change for the year (22,147)$ 10,526 36,710 23,098 (472,671) (424,484)

Explanation of differences between governmental fund operating statements and the statement of 
activities:

(3)   Governmental funds accrue property tax revenue, which is deemed collectible within sixty days. 
However, in the statement of activities the total amount estimated to ultimately be collected is
accrued.

Property Taxes    $    12,658

62



Financial Report of San Diego County

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2003

(Amounts Expressed In Thousands) 

Adjustment for reserve for inventory of materials and supplies.

 Adjustment  $     (994)

Long-term revenues are not available as current resources, and therefore are not reported as
revenue in the governmental funds.

Adjustment of deferred revenue     $    (1,138)

(4) Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the 
current period.

Loss on Disposal of assets     $  (137,345)

Capital outlay  257,539

Depreciation expense  (83,484)

   Difference     $     36,710

(5)    Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as 
insurance and telecommunications, to individual funds.  The adjustments for internal service
funds "close" those funds by charging additional amounts to participating governmental
activities to completely cover the internal service fund's costs for the year.

Adjustments     $     23,098

(6) Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures for 
the County’s long term obligations for capital leases, claims and judgments, accumulated unpaid
employee leave balances, loans and arbitrage rebate, are not recognized until they mature.  In 
the statement of activities however, they are reported as expenses and liabilities as they accrue.

Other  miscellaneous debt – public protection function    $     (1,031)

Other  miscellaneous debt – public assistance function    $     (1,379)

Other  miscellaneous debt – general function    $     (1,001)

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds in the year of sale and are capitalized
and amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purpose of the statement of net
assets.

  Cost of issuance – general function     $     16,539

     Total adjustments - general function     $     15,538

Repayment of bond principal as well as refunding of bonds which are considered a repayment of
principal are reported as an expenditure in governmental funds and, thus, has the effect of
reducing fund balance because current financial resources have been used. For the County as a
whole, however, the principal payments reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and 
do not result in an expense in the statement of activities.  The County's long term debt was 
reduced by the amount of principal payments made to bond holders.

Principal payments made     $     88,846

Pension obligation bond proceeds - refunding     $   176,890
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Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in governmental
funds because additional interest was calculated for bonds and notes payable and amortization
of capitalized bond discounts and premiums that are expended in the governmental funds in the
year paid.

Accrued interest     $    (10,734)

Amortization of bond  premium 11
Amortization of bond discounts     (3,036)

 Total additional interest      $    (13,759)

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to
the change in fund balance.  In the government-wide statements, however, issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and does not affect the statement 
of activities. Bond proceeds were received from:

 Pension obligation bond proceeds – new borrowing    $  (560,450)

Alpine capital lease proceeds  (436)

Total new borrowing    $  (560,886)

Pension obligation bond proceeds - refunding    $  (176,890)

 (4) Detailed Notes on all Funds

(A) Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments, Cash, Investments, and Obligations under 
Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The County maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by the County as well as 
other agencies for which the County Treasury is the depository.  The San Diego County Treasurer
issues a separate annual financial report on the County Investment Pool.  This report may be obtained
by writing to the San Diego County Treasurer, Room 152, County Administration Center, 1600 Pacific
Highway, San Diego, California, 92101 or by calling (619) 531-4743.  Copies are also available on the
internet at www.sdtreastax.com.

Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the balance sheet as “Equity in pooled cash and
investments.”  Interest earned on the pooled deposits is accrued in a pooled interest apportionment
agency fund and is allocated based on the average daily cash balances of the participating funds.
State law requires that interest income related to certain funds be considered income of the General
Fund of the County. Such interest has been recorded as revenue in the General Fund. 

“Cash with fiscal agent” represents amounts on deposit with trustees for the Air Pollution District,
SANCAL, Pension Trust Fund, Housing Authority, Pension Obligation Bonds, Redevelopment Agency, 
Teeter Commercial Paper Notes, and for repayment of the General Fund Tax and Revenue Anticipation
Notes.

“Investments,” represents the Inactive Wastesite Fund investments, the Pension Trust Fund
investments and stocks and bonds held for other agencies.

Deposit and investment reconciliation as reported in the basic financial statements are summarized as
follows:

Deposits:  At year-end the carrying amount of the County’s deposits was $27,644 consisting of 
$27,252 in demand deposits and $392 in collateralized deposits.  Of the balance $692 was covered by
federal deposit insurance and $26,952 was uncollateralized according to State statutes which require
depositories having public funds on deposit to maintain a pool of securities with the agent of the
depository having a market value of at least 10% in excess of the total amount of all public funds on
deposit.  Bank balance and carrying amount with various financial institutions (Cash with fiscal agents)
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was $855,703 and entirely classified as Category 1 investments.  Of this amount, $292,765 was
deposited with the trustee and held in investments that are insured or registered or for which the 
securities are held in SDCERA and TSJPA’s name. The balance of $562,938 was held by the trustee in
the County’s name.

Investments:  State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, 
agencies and instrumentalities, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or P-1
by Moody’s Commercial Paper Record, bankers acceptances, repurchase and reverse repurchase
agreements, medium-term notes, and negotiable certificates of deposit issued by national and state 
licensed or chartered banks or federal or state savings and loan associations.  Pension Trust Fund
investments are authorized by the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937.  Statutes authorize
“Prudent Expert” guidelines as to the form and types of investments which may be purchased.  The
County’s investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the
entity at year end.  Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the 
securities are held by the County or its agent in the County’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured
and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by counter party’s trust department or
agent in the County’s name.  There were no investments with a risk Category 2 at June 30, 2003.
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the 
counter party, or by its trust department or agent but not in the County’s name. 

Fa ir

1 3 Va lu

Investments ca tegorized

Bankers  acceptances $ 89,966 89,966

Repurchase  agreements 325,000 65,426 390,426

Commercia l paper 1,209,825 1,209,825

US government securitie s 1,819,163 158,734 1,977,897

Negotiable ce rtifica tes o f depos it 325,275 325,275

Corpora te  notes 61,300 61,300

Corpora te  bonds 872,577 872,577

Common and pre fe rred stock 2,077,433 2,077,433

Mutua l funds 319,100 319,100

Investments  he ld by the  County for o ther agencies:

US government securitie s 103 103

Corpora te  bonds 1 1

Common stock 2 2

Subtota l 6,690,679$ 633,226 7,323,905

Investments not ca tegorized

Investments he ld by broker dea le rs  under security loans:

US government securitie s 16,990

Corpora te  bonds 81,928

Common and pre fe rred stock 204,490

Mutua l funds 15,000

Rea l esta te equity 471,348

Tota l investments 8,113,661$

Category

e
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Reconciliation of the Statements of Net Assets to Total Investments at June 30, 2003:

Primary

Government

Fiduciary

Funds Sub-Total

Component

 Unit Total

Equity in pooled cash and investments 863,496$ 2,839,249 3,702,745 152,091 3,854,836

Cash with fiscal agent 609,772 245,931 855,703 855,703

Collections in transit 7,541 7,541 7,541

Imprest cash 535 535 535

Investments 2 4,241,054 4,241,056 4,241,056

Restricted investments 45,413 45,413 45,413

Total 1,526,759 7,326,234 8,852,993 152,091 9,005,084

Less:

  Cash with fiscal agents (855,703)

  Collections in transit (7,541)

  Imprest cash (535)

  Deposits (27,644)

Total investments 8,113,661$

A total of $3,827,193 of investments is reported in the Equity in pooled cash and investments fund
financial statements. Fair values and estimates of fair values are provided monthly by an independent
pricing agency and such values are not supported by any guarantees on the part of the pool sponsor 
or the pricing agency. The County and certain school districts are mandated by state statues to
participate in the County Treasurer’s investment pool and represent 96 percent of the total pooled
cash and investments on hand at June 30, 2003.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements: State statutes permit the County to enter into reverse repurchase
agreements; that is, a sale of securities with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase them in the 
future at the same price plus a contract rate of interest.  The County had no reverse repurchase
agreements outstanding at June 30, 2003.

Securities Lending Transactions: Under the provisions of State statutes, the County Treasurer lends
U.S. government obligations and SDCERA lends U.S. government obligations, domestic and
international bonds and equities to broker-dealers and other entities (borrowers) for collateral that will 
be returned for the same securities in the future.  The County’s custodial bank manages the securities
lending programs for the County Treasurer and receives cash and securities as collateral pledged at
102 percent of the market value of securities lent.  Fiscal agents for SDCERA manage the securities
lending programs and receive cash securities pledged at 102 percent of fair value for domestic
securities lent and 105 percent of the fair value of international securities lent.  Additional collateral
has to be provided the next business day if its value falls to 100 percent or less of the market value of
the securities lent.  The collateral securities cannot be pledged or sold by the County Treasurer or
SDCERA unless the borrower defaults.  No more than 20 percent of the Treasurer’s pooled investment
portfolio may be lent at one time.  There is no restriction on the amount of SDCERA securities that
may be lent at one time.  Securities on loan at year-end are presented as unclassified in the preceding
schedule of custodial credit risk and represent transactions of the SDCERA pension trust fund.  At
year-end, the pension trust fund has no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts
SDCERA owes the borrowers exceeds the amounts the borrowers owe SDCERA.  The term to maturity
of securities loans is generally matched with the term to maturity of the cash collateral.  Such
matching existed at fiscal year end.

(B) Restricted Assets-Investments

Certain investments have been restricted by operation of law to fund post closure landfill costs over a
30-year period.  These investments are recorded in the Inactive Wastesite Special Revenue Fund.
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(C) Capital Assets

Primary Government
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2003 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

uilding and infrastructure projects are recorded as construction in progress until completion.

epreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 15,949

cilities 5

l and cultural 6
9,

se – governmental activities $ 9

Beginning

Balance at

July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases

Ending Balance at

June 30, 2003
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 250,622$ 16,249 (915) 265,956
Construction and contracts in progress 243,145 70,559 (136,011) 177,693

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 493,767 86,808 (136,926) 443,649
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 802,072 132,919 (3,569) 931,422
Equipment 156,015 19,711 (11,834) 163,892
Road network 1,974,564 37,868 2,012,432
Bridge network 36,487 1,938 38,425

Total capital assets, being depreciated 2,969,138 192,436 (15,403) 3,146,171
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (243,663) (22,680) 3,561 (262,782)
Equipment (76,832) (14,508) 10,055 (81,285)
Road network (513,933) (55,124) (569,057)
Bridge network (10,198) (714) (10,912)

Total accumulated depreciation (844,626) (93,026) 13,616 (924,036)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 2,124,512 99,410 (1,787) 2,222,135
Governmental activities capital assets, net 2,618,279$ 186,218 138,713 2,665,784

B
Intangible projects such as software acquisition and implementation are recorded as contracts in
progress until implementation is completed.

D

Public protection 6,021
Public ways and fa 9,915
Health and sanitation 563
Public assistance 328
Education 56
Recreationa 52
Internal Service Funds 542

Total depreciation expen 3,026
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Business Type Activities:

t Enterprise Fund 

ype Activities:

t Enterprise Fund 

Beginning

Ba lance  at

July 1,

2002 Increases Decreases

Ending

Ba lance  at

June 30,

2003

Capita l assets, not be ing depreciated:

Land and improvements 6,401$ 6,401

Construction in progress 6,734 5,161 11,895

Tota l capita l assets, not be ing depreciated 13,135 5,161 18,296

Capita l assets, be ing depreciated:

Buildings and equipment 28,715 28,715

Tota l capita l assets, be ing depreciated 28,715 28,715

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and equipment (17,425) (769) (18,194)

Tota l accumulated depreciation (17,425) (769) (18,194)

Tota l capita l assets, be ing depreciated, net 11,290 (769) 10,521

Airport Enterprise  Fund capita l assets, net 24,425$ 4,392 28,817

Airport Enterprise Fund Airport Enterprise Fund 

Wastewater ManagemenWastewater Managemen

Beginning

Balance at

July 1,

2002 Increases Decreases

Ending

Balance at

June 30,

2003

Capita l assets, not be ing depreciated:

Land and improvements 20$ 20

Tota l capita l assets, not be ing depreciated 20 20

Capita l assets, be ing depreciated:

Buildings and equipment 898 7 905

Tota l capita l assets, be ing depreciated 898 7 905

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and equipment (430) (27) (457)

Tota l accumulated depreciation (430) (27) (457)

Tota l capita l assets, be ing depreciated, net 468 (20) 448

W astew ater Management Enterprise

Fund capita l assets, net 488$ (20) 468
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Sanitation Districts Enterprise FundSanitation Districts Enterprise Fund

Beginning

Balance at

July 1,

2002 Increases Decreases

Ending

Balance

at

June 30,

2003

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land and improvements 1,069$ 1,069

Construction in progress 443 1,479 1,922

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,512 1,479 2,991

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and equipment 2,181 2,181

Infrastructure 62,238 832 (7) 63,063

Total capital assets, being depreciated 64,419 832 (7) 65,244

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and equipment (1,814) (48) 901 (961)

Infrastructure (22,659) (2,144) (24,803)

Total accumulated depreciation (24,473) (2,192) 901 (25,764)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 39,946 (1,360) 894 39,480

Sanitation Districts Enterprise Fund capital assets, net 41,458$ 119 894 42,471
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In the fiscal year 2001-2002 Sanitation Districts schedule, the accumulated depreciation for Buildings
and equipment was overstated by $901 and the accumulated depreciation for the Infrastructure was 
understated by $901.  The correction has been made for the fiscal year 2002-2003 schedule.

(D)  Leases

(1)  Lease Revenue
The County leases real property to the public sector and other governmental agencies.  The lease
revenues for both non-cancelable and cancelable leases for the year ended June 30, 2003 were
approximately $12 million.  The future minimum lease revenue from the non-cancelable leases is as
follows:

Fiscal Year 

Minimum
Lease

Revenue
2003-2004 $  10,368,063

2004-2005 10,094,281

2005-2006 9,995,049

2006-2007 9,756,177

2007-2008 8,782,073

077 155,577,5672008-2

Total $ 204,573,210

(2) Lease Commitments
s commitments under long-term property operating lease agreements for facilities used

r operations.  These leases do not meet the criteria for capitalization under FASB Statement 13.  The
nder the terms of several non-cancelable operating leases for real property used

The County ha
fo
County is the lessee u
to house certain County facilities.  The combined rental cost for which the County is obligated under
these leases is as follows:

Fiscal Year 
Minimum
Payments

2003-2004 $ 

2004-2005 4

10,125

8,31

7,7922005-2006

2006-2007 5,942

2007-2008 2,596

2008-2014 7,933

Total $ 42,702

real property g leases, inclu
y $26.7 million.

Total rental expense for all operatin ding short-term cancelable leases for
the year ended June 30, 2003, was approximatel

ty leases, the County has also entered into long-term operating leases for

Certain buildings and equipment a e being leased und leases as defined in FASB Statement
13.  The present value of th lease obligati en capitalized in the statement of net
assets and is reflected as that stateme ounty assumes responsibility for all
maintenance, repair, and str cations under the terms of the lease agreements.

In addition to real proper
personal property, a large portion of which represents data processing and duplicating equipment.
Many of these leases are subject to annual adjustment based upon negotiations. Management
expects that in the normal course of business, leases that expire will be renewed or replaced by other
leases. Total rental expense for these operating leases for the year ended June 30, 2003, was approxi-
mately $12.3 million.

r er capital
e minimum on has be
a liability in nt. The C
uctural modifi

69



Financial Report of San Diego County

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2003

(Amounts Expressed In Thousands) 

The capital lease property classes at June 30, 2003 consis the following:ted of

June 30,
impro $

Capital Lease Property Class  2003
Structures and vements 35,475
Equipment 5,385

Total $ 40,860

Future minimum lease payments under capital leases consisted of the following at June 30, 2003: 

Fiscal Year

Minimum
Lease

Payments

2004     $ 5,367 

2005  4,463 

2014-2018    15,263 

2019-2023  6,125 

2006  4,348 

2007  3,785 

2008  3,455 

2009-2013    15,351 

Total minimum lease payments    58,157 

Less: amount representing interest   (17,297)

Net lease payments $ 40,860

(E) Short Term Obligations

otes

otes), which fund the County’s annual operating cash flow fluctuations, and the issuance of Teeter

Commercial Paper, which fund payments to public agencies o share of property taxes levied.

The County of San Diego bears the risk of loss on delinquent property taxes that go unpaid; however, 

it also benefits from the penalties a these delin erty taxes when they are paid.

Short-term borrowing ing the year ended June 30, 2003 was as follows:

The County’s short term borrowing program consists of its annual Tax and Revenue Anticipation N

(N

f their full

quent propssociated with

activity dur

Redeeme

icipation Not 0

pt Principal 0 50,600

incipal 9,900 6   9,900

$60,100 6 36 60,

Beginning
Balance at 

July 1, 2002 Issued d

Ending
Balance at 

June 30, 2003

Tax and Revenue Ant es   $ 135,00  135,000

Teeter B-1 Tax - Exem $50,200 39,60  39,200

Teeter B-2 Taxable Pr 22,53  22,536

     Total Teeter 2,1 500    61,736

n July 3, 2002, the County of San Diego issued $135 million of Notes with an interest maturity date
aturity date of July 31, 2003. The Notes carry an interest rate of 3%

nd a yield of 1.75%. As of June 30, 2003, accrued interest of $4,039 has been recorded in the 

O
of June 30, 2003 and principal m
a
General Fund with the Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes obligation for a total obligation of 
$139,039.

In 1995 the County of San Diego Board of Supervisors approved the Master Teeter Resolution
providing the terms and conditions of its teeter plan obligations.  Pursuant to this resolution the
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County is able to issue additional Series B Teeter Commercial Paper for each fiscal year. On May 13,
2003, the Board of Supervisors adopted a resolution for the additional Series B borrowings to finance 
the uncollected property taxes and assessments attributable to the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003.
The Teeter commercial paper shall mature not more than 270 days after date of issuance and is not
subject to redemption prior to maturity.  The payment of principal and interes  series is
supported by an irrevocable direct pay l it that will expire on June 22,

igations consis ificates of ation,
y financin , r lon bligations. nding

30, 2003 were as s:

1) Governmental Activities

t on each
etter of cred 2007.

(F) General Long-Term Obligations

Outstanding general long-term obl
capital lease obligations, third part

at June 30,
g leases

2003
and othe

t of cert
g-term o

particip
Outsta

long-term obligations at June follow

(

1993 Certificates of participation

issued December, 1996 4.00 - 6.00% 2019 37,690 33,170

issued June, 1997 4.00 - 4.80% 2004 28,035 3,430

4.00 - 4.94% 2022 73,115 60,475

ation

issued September, 1999 3.60 - 4.75% 2009 15,010 11,140

2000 Certificates of participation

issued May, 2000 4.50 - 5.125% 2010 51,620 38,775

2002 Certificates of participation

issued May, 2000 2.00 - 3.30% 2011 26,060 23,405

Total certificates of participation 601,560$ 395,285

Obligation Interest Rate

Final

Maturity

Date

Original

Amount

Amount

Outstanding

San Diego County Capital Asset Leasing Corporation (SANCAL):

issued March, 1993 3.00 - 5.75% 2013 7,640$ 5,080

1993 Certificates of participation

issued March, 1993 3.25 - 5.10% 2007 26,085 10,065

1993 Certificates of participation

issued May, 1993 2.50 - 5.625% 2012 203,400 100,175

1996 Certificates of participation

issued May, 1996 4.30 - 5.50% 2018 52,230 37,780

1996 Certificates of participation

1997 Certificates of participation

1997 Certificates of participation

issued July, 1997 4.00 - 5.00% 2025 80,675 71,790

1998 Certificates of participation

issued January, 1999

1999 Certificates of particip
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(1)  Governmental Activities (continued)

Obligation Interest Rate

Final

Maturity

Date

Original

Amount

Amount

Outstanding

Capitalized Leases:

San Diego Regional Building Authority

  Lease beginning September 2001 2.15 - 5.25% 2019 36,960 35,475

Third party financing leases with

various beginning dates from

August, 1997 to the present 4.24 - 8.00% 2002 - 2008 10,720 5,385

Total capitalized leases 47,680 40,860

Other long-term obligations:

Capital loans:

  Department of Transportation loans

 Beginning March 2001 5.63% 2017 3,584 3,154

  United States Department of Agriculture 1.00% 2028 4,486 3,611

  California Bank & Trust 7.75% 2007 436 323

Taxable pension obligation bonds:

1994 Series A 4.7 - 6.6% 2007 430,430 87,055

2002 Series A, B & C 3.88 - 6.125% 2032 737,340 737,340

Redevelopment Agency revenue bonds 4.75 - 6.75% 2020 5,100 4,530

San Diego County Tobacco Asset

Securitization Corporation 4.00 - 6.00% 2043 466,840 449,235

Arbitrage rebate 752

Compensated absences 75,370

Claims and judgments 100,588

Landfill closure 101,000

Total other long-term obligations 1,648,216 1,562,958

Total governmental activities 2,297,456$ 1,999,103

The certificates of participation (COP) of the SANCAL non-profit corporation are secured by annual 

base rental lease payments payable primarily by the County General Fund for use of the facilities

constructed or equipment purchased from the proceeds. There are also encumbrances on the facilities

constructed with the proceeds of the SANCAL. The capital leases between the County and SANCAL

have been eliminated for financial reporting purposes and the related assets and long-term obligation

they (e.g. certificates of participation of SANCAL) are reported as San Diego County's assets and debt,

respectively.

lso, the County, in compliance with the Tax Reform Act of 1986 and subsequent U.S. Treasury
egulations, has performed arbitrage rebate calculations to determine probable amounts due to the 
ederal government.  An estimate of probable arbitrage rebate in the amount of $752 has been
cluded in the statement of net assets. 

A
R
F
in

72



Financial Report of San D iego County

N O TES TO  BASIC FIN AN CIAL STATEM EN TS
Year Ended June 30, 2003

(Am ounts Expressed In Thousands)

73

(2) Business-Type Activities 

Obligation Interest Rate

Final
Maturity

Date
Original
Amount

Amount
Outstanding

Other long-term obligations:
Airport

Compensated absences $ 120

Wastewater Management
Compensated absences 179

Sanitation Districts
Long-term contract payable - 

Spring Valley 5,639 195
Total business-type activities 5,639$ 494
(3)  Long-term obligation activity for the year ended June 30, 2003 was as follows:

Governmental Activities

The following liabilities have been liquidated in prior years in the following governmental funds:

Liability Fund(s) Used to Liquidate in Prior Years
Arbitrage rebate Debt Service Fund – Nonprofit Corporation
Claims and judgments Internal Service Fund - Risk Financing
Compensated absences General Fund; Special Revenue Funds – County Library, Road,

Cable TV, Air Pollution; Internal Service Funds – Facilities 
Management, Fleet Services, Purchasing, Mail Print & Records

Landfill closures General Fund

Obligation

Beginning
Balance at

July 1, 2002 Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance at
June 30, 

2003

Amounts
Due

within
One
Year

Bonds and notes payable:
Certificates of participation 433,790$ (38,505) 395,285$ 38,400
Redevelopment Agency 4,655 (125) 4,530 130
San Diego County Tobacco
Securitization Corporation 458,795 (9,560) 449,235 1,830
Taxable pension obligation bonds 282,900 737,340 (195,845) 824,395 9,630
Capital loans 4,277 4,922 (2,111) 7,088 396

Total bonds and notes payable 1,184,417 742,262 (246,146) 1,680,533 50,386
Other liabilities:

Capitalized leases 46,604 (5,744) 40,860 3,431
Arbitrage rebate 836 (84) 752
Claims and judgments 97,794 35,372 (32,578) 100,588 32,578
Compensated absences 72,342 3,045 (17) 75,370 7,537
Landfill closures 101,000 101,000

Total other liabilities 318,576 38,417 (38,423) 318,570 43,546
Total governmental activities 1,502,993$ 780,679 (284,569) 1,999,103$ 93,932
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Business-Type Activities

The following is a schedule of debt service requirements to maturity, for long-term bond and note 
obligations outstanding at June 30, 2003.

Prior Year D efeasance of D ebt

In prior years, the County defeased certain lease revenue bonds or certificates of participation (COP’s) 
by placing the proceeds of the original issue plus additional County contributions in an irrevocable 
trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old obligations.  Accordingly, the trust 
account assets and the liability for the defeased obligations are not included in the County’s financial 
statements.  At June 30, 2003, $147.9 million of bonds or COPs outstanding are considered defeased.

Advance Refunding of Long-Term  D ebt 

On February 12, 2002, The Board of Supervisors of the County adopted enhanced retirement benefits 
for members of the SDCERA.  As a result of these benefits, the County incurred an increased 
obligation pursuant to the Retirement Law as an unfunded accrued actuarial liability to the SDCERA. 

Obligation

Beginning
Balance at

July 1, 2002 Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance at
June 30, 

2003

Amounts
Due

within
One Year

Airport
Compensated absences 102$ 18 120 12

Wastewater Management 
Compensated absences 175 4 179 18

Sanitation Districts
Julian sanitation loan 5 (5)
Contract payable 195 195

Total Sanitation Districts long-term 
liabilities 200 (5) 195

Total business-type activities 477$ 22 (5) 494 30

Fiscal Year 
Ending

 June 30 Principal Interest Total
2004 50,421$ 89,915 140,336
2005 55,990 84,951 140,941
2006 61,999 81,821 143,820
2007 65,771 78,365 144,136
2008 48,979 75,179 124,158
2009 - 2013 206,146 423,207 629,353
2014 - 2018 169,813 400,437 570,250
2019 - 2023 200,565 386,564 587,129
2024 - 2028 234,264 375,713 609,977
2029 - 2033 304,105 366,921 671,026
2034 - 2038 90,865 71,048 161,913
2039 - 2043 191,615 42,348 233,963
Total 1,680,533$ 2,476,469 4,157,002
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On October 3, 2002, the County of San Diego issued $737,340 of Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds.

These bonds were issued with four series: Series A in the amount of $132,215 which are fixed rate

Current Interest Bonds; Series B1 in the amount of $100 million which carry a variable rate are 

Auction Rate Securities; Series B2-4 in the amount of $405,125 are also Auction Rate Securities which

have been swapped to fixed; and Series C in the amount of $100 million, which are fixed rate Public

Income Notes (PINES). The County has entered into a swap agreement with two providers for the 

Series B2-4 bonds.  These bonds carry a fixed rate of 5.31%.   A portion of the proceeds, $176,890,

was placed in an escrow account to be used to retire interest and principal on $156,425 of the 

County’s outstanding 1994 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds. 

In order for the County to remain within its revenue constraints, a portion of the 1994 Taxable

Pension Obligation Bonds was defeased by placing in escrow, certain proceeds of the October 2002

bond issuance.  This resulted in an economic loss of $184.  The 1994 bonds had a remaining life of 

approximately 5 years and have been replaced with $100 million, 30 year variable rate debt and a $56 

million of 30 year fixed rate debt resulting in the economic loss.   The variable rate debt is subject to

market fluctuations.

Inactive Landfill Closure Costs

to closed landfills, post-closure costs for these landfills,

including facilities maintenance and groundwater monitoring over a 30-year period, are estimated at

$101 million in current year costs.  This amount has been recorded in the statement of net assets.

Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations.  The 

County has funded this liability from cash reserves realized in prior years.

(G) Special Assessment Debt 

The County Treasurer-Tax Collector acts as an agent for property owners and bondholders in collecting
and forwarding special assessment monies.  The County is not obligated for repayment of any special
assessment bonds and all special assessment debt is solely the obligation of various separate
governmental agencies.  The amount of special assessment debt outstanding for which the County is a
fiduciary is $17.6 million at June 30, 2003.

The County maintains seventeen waste disposal sites that were closed prior to 1985.  Consistent with

State and Federal regulations pertaining
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Year Ended June 30, 2003
(Amounts Expressed In Thousands) 

s

Governm

Gener 25,201 190,143 (41) 190,102

Tobacco Securitization

   Special Revenue Fund 889 889 889

Tobac

   Spe 7

Other 2

Intern 9

Total go 9

Busines type activities:

Airpor 1,009 233 1,410 1,410

Wastew  Management 1 2 3 3

Sanita 3

(H) Receivables and Payables 

(1) Receivables at June 30, 2003, were as follows:

Receivables Accounts Interest

Due From

 Other

Gov't

Agencies Notes Loans Other

Total

Receivables

Allowance

For

Doubtful

Accounts

Receivable

Net

ental activities:

al Fund 5,863$ 1,719 150,497 842 6,021

co Securitization Joint

cial Revenue Fund 382 5 387 38

governmental funds 36,493 340 77,185 15,164 129,182 129,18

al service funds 313 2,865 1,621 4,799 4,79

vernmental activities 43,940 2,059 230,547 842 6,021 41,991 325,400 (41) 325,35

s-

t 168

ater

tion Districts 283 283 28

siness-type activities 169 1,009 518 1,696 1,69

ent Unit:

Commission 654 7

Total bu 6

Compon

First 5 ,335 7,989 7,98

mponent Unit $ 654 7,335

9

Total Co 7,989 7,989

(2) Payables at June 30, 2003, were as follows:

Ma jo r funds

Gene ra l fund 32,058$ 9,912 117 274 42,361

Nonma jo r funds 12,426 641 144 2 13,213

Inte rna l se rvice funds 17,428 198 1,800 19,426

o ta l gove rnmenta l a ctivitie s 61,912 10,751 261 2,076 75,000

us ine ss -type  a ctivitie s :

Airpo rt e nte rprise  fund 1,427 26 1,453

W as te w a te r manage me nt fund 8 8

Payab le s Vendo rs

Due  to

O the r

Gov't

Agency

Aid  to

Ind ividua l O the r

To ta l

Pa yab le s

Gove rnmenta l a ctivitie s :

T

B

San ita tio n d is tricts  fund 142 13 155

o ta l bus ine s s -tT ype  a ctivitie s 1,577 13 26 1,616

omC ponent un it

Firs t 5  commiss ion 1,852 1,852

o ta l comT ponent un it 1 ,852$ 1,852
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(I) Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

(1) Transfers in/transfers out at June 30, 2003 were as follows:

reimbursement of project costs, lease payments,

ent costs.

From To Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds $  149,562

Internal Service Funds 7,317

Total General Fund  156,879

Tobacco Securitization Special

  Revenue Fund General Fund    26,949

Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund  451,048

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  137,439

Enterprise Funds

  Airport    740

Internal Service Funds 90

Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds  589,317

Enterprise Funds

   Airport Nonmajor Governmental Funds    424

Internal Service Funds 16

   Total Airport    440

Entreprise Funds

   Wastewater Management Internal Service Funds 15

Nonmajor Governmental Funds    125

    Total Wasterwater Management    140

Internal Service Funds General Fund    809

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 2,641

Total Internal Service Funds 3,450

Total $  777,175

The purpose of these transfers was primarily for 

initiation fees, bank activity posting and replacem
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(2) Due to/due from other funds at June 30, 2003 were as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund  Amount

General fund Tobacco Securitization Special

  Revenue Fund  $  7,934

Nonmajor Governmental Funds   122,547

Enterprise Funds

Airport 93

Wastewater Management 23

Sanitation Districts     1 

Internal Service Funds   53,201

Trust and Agency Funds   20,087

Total General Fund   203,886

Tobacco Securitization Special

  Revenue Fund Trust and Agency Funds     5 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund  4,990

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  1,438

Enterprise Funds

Airport  196

Wastewater Management 63

Sanitation Districts 52

Internal Service Funds  799

Trust and Agency Funds   23,809

Total Nonmajor Governmental Funds   31,347

Enterprise Funds

Airport Nonmajor Governmental Funds  481

Internal Service Funds  102

 820

Enterprise Funds

Wastewater Management General Fund 58

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 26

Enterprise Funds

Sanitation Districts  541

Internal Service Funds     9 

Trust and Agency Funds     8 

Total Wastewater Management  642

Entreprise Funds

Sanitation Districts Internal Service Funds     1 

Trust and Agency Funds  284

 285

Internal Service Funds General Fund   15,053

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  1,560

Enterprise Funds

Airport 25

Wastewater Management 34

Sanitation Districts     3 

Internal Service Funds  750

Trust and Agency Funds  1,702

Total Internal Service Funds   19,127

Trust and Agency Funds General Fund  3,375

Nonmajor Governmental Funds  161

Enterprise Funds

Airport     3 

Wastewater Management     7 

    1 

Internal Service Funds 77

Trust and Agency Funds   27,634

Total Trust and Agency Funds   31,258

Total  $  287,370

Trust and Agency Funds  237

Total Airport

Total Sanitation Districts

Sanitation Districts
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(3)  Advances to/from at June 30, 2003 were as follows: 

Advances Advances

To From

Other Funds Other Funds

$    689

  3

   768

   414

   287

   10,177

County Service Districts

Nonprofit Corporation – Debt Service

Redevelopment Agency – Debt Service

Redevelopment Agency – Capital Projects

General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Flood Control District

9,637

   135    278

   632

Total $    11,510    11,510

Special District Loans

Airport

Enterprise Funds

Sanitation Districts

Internal Service Funds
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(J) Divestiture of the County Transit System 

On February 13, 2002, the Board of Supervisors approved divestiture of the County Transit System to 

the Metropolitan Transit Development Board (MTDB) to be effective on June 28, 2002.  The County

accounted for the transit system in the Transit Enterprise Fund.   At June 30, 2002, a liability of $3.8

million was established to reflect cash and equivalents held in the Transit Fund pending disposition

instructions from San Diego Association of Governments.  A cash flow statement for the current year

is included to reflect the disposition of the cash and equivalents which were held at June 30, 2002.

(5) Other Note Disclosures

(A) Commitments and Contingencies 

(1) Litigation

In addition to the accrued liability for litigation and Workers Compensation claims described in Note
5B, the County has a potential liability of $21 million that could result if unfavorable final decisions

is a named defendant.  Appropriations are 
udgeted annually for those portions of obligations coming due that fiscal year. Estimates of potential

ties described above include estimates of claims incurred but not reported at June 30, 2003.

) Unrecorded Leave Benefits

ounty employees have unrecorded accumulated benefits of approximately $122.5 million in sick

ave.  These benefits are not payable to employees upon termination and are normally liquidated in 

ture years as employees elect to use their benefits as prescribed by Civil Service rules and

gulations. Accumulated vacation, sick leave, and compensatory time-off for which employees are 

ligible for payment upon separation have been recorded as current or long-term liabilities in the

ppropriate proprietary funds and the statement of net assets as described in Note 1G. 

) Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes

n July 1, 2003, the County issued $255 million of Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (Notes); the

rincipal and interest will be due on the maturity date of June 30, 2004. The fiscal year 2003-2004

otes carry an interest rate of 1.75% and a yield of .92% and are subject to scheduled set aside.

) Third Party Debt

he tax code allows for certain types of nongovernmental borrowers to take advantage of tax-exempt

nancing through a governmental agency.  The County of San Diego as a governmental agency, has 

xempt debt to qualified borrowers.  The County of San Diego is not responsible for the 

payment of the debt.  Accordingly, no liability for these bonds have been recorded in the statement of 

et assets.

ortgage Revenue Bonds

ortgage Revenue Bonds are issued to provide construction and permanent financing to developers of

ulti-family residential rental projects located in the County to be partially occupied by persons of low

r moderate income.  Between 1995 and 1999, the County issued $24 million of Mortgage Revenue

onds of which $22 million were still outstanding as of June 30, 2003.

were rendered in numerous lawsuits to which the County
b
liabili
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Certificates of Participation

he County has implemented a conduit program whereby the County is the issuer of tax-exempt

ue
$51.5 million of COPs to finance the purchase of real property.  In March 2000, the County entered 

e San Diego Museum of Art to issue $6 million of COPs to finance
certain museum improvements.  In April 2000, the County entered into a lease with the Salk Institute

acquisition, construction and equipping of certain research
facilities.  In May 2001, the County entered into a lease agreement with the University of San Diego to 

ion of COPs to finance certain capital improvements for the University.  In September
2002, the County entered into a lease with the San Diego-Imperial Counties Developmental Services

Reassessment District Improvement Bonds 

Reassessment District Improvement Bonds were issued to provide for refunding an earlier issuance of 

) Federal and State Programs 

mounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor

uch

ounts, if any, to be immaterial.

) SDCERA

, or currencies in which the seller agrees to make delivery at a specified future date of a 

ecified instrument at a specified price or yield. Risks arise from the possible inability of counter-

their contract.  The risks of loss from these off-balance sheet financial

instruments include minimal credit risks, but include the possibility that future changes in market 

T
bonds and loans the proceeds to a qualifying for profit or nonprofit organization.   These organizations
make payments to the County equal to the debt service on the bonds.  Beginning in April 1998, $112
million in Certificates of Participation (COPs) have been issued to provide funding for construction of
capital improvements and refunding of prior obligations for a hospital and medical center located
within the County.  In December 1998, the County entered into a lease agreement with the San Diego
Natural History Museum to issue $15 million of COPs to finance certain museum improvements.  In
September 1999, the County entered into a lease agreement with the Burnham Institute to iss

into a lease agreement with th

to issue $15 million of COPs to finance the

issue $36.9 mill

to issue $10.8 million in COPs to finance the acquisition of their headquarter facility.  In January 2003,
the County entered into a lease agreement with Chabad Jewish Academy to issue $11.7 million in
COPs to finance the construction of certain educational buildings.  As of June 30, 2003, $251 million of
such COPs are still outstanding.

Improvement Bonds for an assessment district.  The district issued $28.8 million of Improvement 

Bonds in July 1991 to finance the acquisition of certain infrastructure improvements specially

benefiting properties within an assessment district.  In July 1997, the district issued $21.8 million of 

Reassessment Bonds to refund the original issuance, of which $16.5 million were still outstanding as 

of June 30, 2003.

(5

A

agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already

collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures that

may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the County expects s

am

(6

SDCERA is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk to generate earnings and stabilize

excess earnings from active management of fixed income securities and common stocks.  Managed 

futures contracts include, but are not limited to, contracts for delayed delivery of securities,

commodities

sp

parties to meet the terms of

prices may make such financial instruments less valuable (market risk).  Not reflected in the pension

trust fund financial statements are commitments to acquire real estate for investment totaling $81

million and alternative equity for $102.3 million.
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(7) Deposits for Other Agencies

The Treasurer is a named paying agent for various bonds issued by other agencies, e.g., school 

mpensation total risk liability at June 30, 2003. At June 30, 2003, the amount of these liabilities,
reported, was estimated at $100.6 million, including
in workers' compensation.  The County began allo-

cating the cost of providing claims service to all its operating funds as a "premium" charge expressed

districts, pursuant to the bond covenants.  The proceeds from these issues are deposited in the

County pool or as specified in the bond resolution. The amounts deposited belong to the specific

agency which issued the bonds and are not assets of the County. The County has no liability with

respect to these issues, the repayment of these bonds are from advalorem taxes levied on the

properties in the school district.

(B) Risk Management

The County operates a Risk Management Program, whereby it is self-insured for premises liability at 
medical facilities, medical malpractice, errors and omissions, false arrest, forgery, and general liability.
The County purchases insurance for property damage, certain casualty claims, public officials bond, 
employee dishonesty, faithful performance, volunteers, excess workers’ compensation (for losses
greater than $1 million), airport comprehensive, and loss of money and securities based upon site
locations. Settlements in the areas covered have not exceeded insurance coverage for each of the
past three fiscal years.   During fiscal year 1994-1995, the County established an Internal Service
Fund (ISF) to report all of its uninsured risk management activities.  Risk management liabilities are 
reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated. An actuarial evaluation was used to determine the public liability and workers
co
including an estimate for claims incurred but not
$17.2 million in public liability and $83.4 million

as a percentage of payroll beginning fiscal year 1996-1997.  Changes in the balances of claim
liabilities for fiscal year 2001-2002 and 2002-2003 were as follows:

Current-Year Ending

Fiscal Year J

Beginning
Balance at 
uly 1, 2002

Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates

Claim
Payments

Balance at 
June 30, 

2003
2001-2002 $   84,210 46,344 (32,760) 97,794

r the purpose of providing regional planning and mutual assistance
in the event of an emergency or disaster in the region including accidents involving hazardous waste.

is governed by the Unified Disaster Council composed of one voting member from
each represented jurisdiction.  A contractual agreement requires that the cities provide one-half of the

r Freeway Emergencies (S.A.F.E.). These Authorities
are governed by two seven-member boards, consisting of representatives from the city councils of the
incorporated cities within the County and two members of the County Board of Supervisors.  The 

2002-2003 97,794 35,372 (32,578) 100,588

(C) Joint Venture

The County is a participant with seventeen incorporated cities in a joint venture to operate an
emergency services organization fo

The organization

total required funding each year.  The County, by agreement, also provides one-half of the required
yearly funding.  Any participant may terminate participation in the agreement by giving 120 days
notice prior to the beginning of the next fiscal year.  Total participant contributions for fiscal year
2002-2003 were $860. The organization had a cumulative surplus of $32 at June 30, 2003.  Separate
financial statements for the joint venture may be obtained from the County Chief Financial
Officer/Auditor and Controller.

(D) Jointly Governed Organizations

The County Board of Supervisors jointly governs two service authorities, the Service Authority for
Abandoned Vehicles and the Service Authority fo
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purpose of the authorities is to provide for the removal of abandoned vehicles on streets and highways
cy call boxes on major freeways within the County, respectively.

Funding for the authorities is derived from vehicle license fee surcharges, which are collected by the

rpose of the Partnership is to provide employment training to area 
residents.  Funding for such training is provided by State and Federal grants. 

The County also jointly governs the San Dieguito River Valley Authority, the Serra Cooperative Library

le financial report that includes
fin cial statements and required supplementary information for the pension plan.  The financial
report may be obtained by writing to the San Diego County Employee rement Association, 401 
West A Street, Su , San Diego, Ca fornia 9 ing (619) 515-01

(2)  Basis of Accounting and Fair ve e No and ctively).

(3) Fundin

State statutes require member contributions to be actuarially determined to provide a specific
efit.  Member contribution rates, as a percentage of salary, vary according to age

at entry, benefit tier level, and certain negotiated contracts which provide for the County to pay a

(4)  Annual Pension Cost

n actuarial valuation is not yet available to provide current annual pension costs and comparative

and to provide for freeway emergen

State and deposited into the County Treasury.  The County provides minimal administrative staff 
support for these authorities.

The County Board of Supervisors and the San Diego City Council jointly govern the San Diego
Workforce Partnership (Partnership).  The Partnership's Board of Directors consists of two members of
the County Board of Supervisors, two members from the San Diego City Council and one member of a
charitable organization. The pu

System, Southern California Regional Training and Development Center, and the Van Horn Regional
Treatment Facility.  The governing boards of these entities consist of representatives from the County
and/or other regional governments  and  other  counties.   The County does not appoint a voting
majority to the above boards.  Services provided by these entities include park land acquisition,
coordination of library services, regional governmental training, and treatment of emotionally
disturbed youth.

(E) San Diego County Employees’ Retirement System

(1)  Plan Description

The SDCERA administers a multi-employer plan which provides retirement, disability, and death
benefits for plan members and beneficiaries pursuant to the County Retirement Law of 1937, as
enacted and amended by the State legislature.  The plan is integrated with the Federal Social Security
System.  Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to members and beneficiaries at the discretion of the
SDCERA Board of Retirement.  SDCERA issues a publicly availab

an
s Reti

ite 1300 li 2101 or by call 30.

1G, respeValue of In stments (Se tes 1E

g Policy

statutory level of ben

portion of the employees' contribution.  Member contribution rates (weighted average) expressed as a
percentage of salary are 8.39%-8.85% for general members and 9.27% for safety members.  The 
County is also required by State statutes to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the fiscal
year 2002-2003 rates, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are 0% for general members 
and 6.87% for safety members.

In March 2002, the County implemented a new enhanced retirement package.  In October 2002, the
County issued taxable Pension Obligation Bonds to fund a portion of its statutory obligations arising
from enhanced benefits.  Member and County contribution rates will be adjusted to cover enhanced
benefits.

A
figures with the prior year.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the County’s annual pension cost
was zero.  The County’s actual contribution during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, totaled $5.3
million, resulting in a net pension obligation of $7.7 million as of June 30, 2002.  The required
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contribution rates, as adopted by the SDCERA Board, were determined as part of the June 30, 2001
actuarial valuation based on entry-age actuarial cost method.  The actuarial assumptions included (a)
an 8.25% investment rate-of-return, (b) projected salary increases of 4.5% per year, and (c) cost-of-
living increases for retirees of 3%. 

(5) Three-Year Trend Information:

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 

Annual
Pension

Cost (ARC) 
Percentage of

ARC Contributed

Net
Pension

Obligation
2000 $14,341 $14,341
2001 4,927 41.3% 15,548
2002 100% 7,686

etiree health benefits may be available to eligible retirees to the extent that the Board of Retirement
. The Board of Supervisors and the Board 

of Retirement adopted a funding mechanism under 401(h) of the Internal Revenue Service Code,
f the County’s contributions to be deposited to a separate account each year.

The amount of the contributions placed in this account are then withdrawn from the investment

imately $269.1
million at June 30, 2003, a $16.5 million decrease from the previous fiscal year.

(7) Equity and Bond Swaps and Futures Contracts

SDCERA utilizes various financial instruments, such as, equity and bond interest rate swap

pose the pension trust fund to the risk of dealing with financial
unter parties and their ability to meet the terms of the contracts. Forward contracts for the

ear Advance

nue Bonds in 1995 by the San Diego County Redevelopment Agency, the 

ounty Airport Enterprise Fund funded the initial expenditures of the Agency’s two airport projects.  The 

The Board of Retirement elected to offset the County’s annual required contributions (ARC) for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2000 from the considerable surplus within the Pension Trust Fund.
Therefore, no County monies were expended for the ARC.

(6) Retiree Health Benefits:

R
on an annual basis approves the payments of such benefits

which calls for a portion o

earnings which exceed the assumed rate of return of the portfolio, and placed in the retirement fund 
to ensure the funding of the pension benefits are made whole and complete. The health benefits fund
began its funding with $19.9 million that can only be used to pay retirement health benefits.

Approximately 9.65 thousand retirees or surviving spouses are eligible to receive these benefits.
SDCERA recognizes the cost of providing those benefits by expending annual insurance premiums,
which approximated $20 million for fiscal year 2002-2003.  A reserve established by the SDCERA 
Board of Directors for the payment of postretirement health care benefits was approx

agreements and stock and bond futures contracts, in order to synthetically create exposure to the 
equity and bond markets.  These financial instruments are intended to be equivalent to the asset they
are designed to emulate, and SDCERA management believes such investments offer significant
advantages over the direct investment in securities, including lower transaction fees and custody
costs.  The SDCERA governing board of directors has adopted a policy whereby specified amounts of
cash and certain securities equal the exposures resulting from these agreements.

The use of swap agreements does ex
co
purchase of certain commodities are reported at fair market value in the financial statements.
Obligations to purchase the commodities are not recognized until the commodities are delivered.

(F) Prior Y

Prior to the issuance of Reve

C

Redevelopment Agency is required to reimburse the Airport Enterprise Fund, which spent approximately

$9.6 million on the projects consisting of $3.7 million for initial expenditures and $5.9 million for 2001.
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The Agency pays interest on advances, but is not responsible for payment until funds are available for

this purpose. As of June 30, 2003, interest of approximately $3.7 million has accrued on these

advances.

(G) New Governmental Accounting Standards

No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures”. This
statement modifies, establishes, a nds certain financial statement losure requirements.
Modifications to the note disclosur rily foc nue re policies; b) action
taken in re fican f ual  c) debt service
requirement tion rm fund GASB Statement
No. 38 was partia emented in t us year.  For the year ended
adopted the disc rovisions for re les, pay terfund transf short-term debt 
per GASB 38 re ents. Accordingly, certain note ures have bee  or added to
comply with the provisions of this statement. 

he Tobacco Securitization Authority of Southern California (the “Authority”) issued $466.8 million in
Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed Bonds in January of 2002 (the

“Bonds”), in order to fund the Authority’s loan to San Diego Tobacco Asset Securitization Corporation,

Attorney
enerals of 46 states, the District of Columbia, The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, U.S. Virgin

ed to distribute 50% 
f the Tobacco Settlement Payments it received to California counties (including the County) and four

s is based upon population, with adjustments

fects of tobacco.

ligations of the Authority payable solely from payments made by the
Corporation, from Tobacco Settlement Payments purchased from the County, between the Corporation

In June 2001, GASB issued Statement
nd resci  disc
es prima us on: a) reve cognition

sponse to signi
s; d) obliga

t violations o
s; e

legal or contract
debt; and f) inter

provisions;
balease ) short-te

he
lances.

Jully impl previo
ceivab

ne 30, 2003, the County
elosure p

quirem
ables, in

disclos
rs and
n revised

(H) Securitization of Tobacco Settlement Revenues

T
aggregate principal amount of

a California non-profit public benefit corporation (the “Borrower”) pursuant to a loan agreement
between the Authority and the Borrower.  The Borrower in turn used the net proceeds of the financing,
in the amount of $411 million, to pay to the County, in return for the County’s transfer to the 
Corporation of all of the County’s right, title and interest in and to and under a Master Settlement
Agreement (the “MSA”), as agreed to by the State and participating jurisdiction, and a Memorandum
of Understanding (the “MOU”) and a supplemental agreement (the “ARIMOU”) among the State of 
California, all California counties and four California cities, including the right of the County to receive
Tobacco Settlement Payments.   The MSA was entered into in November 1998, among the
G
Islands, American Samoa and the Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Islands and collectively, the
“Settling States” and the four largest tobacco manufacturers.  Under the terms of the MSA, the 
settling  tobacco  companies agreed,  among  other  things, to make  periodic  payments in perpetuity
(“Tobacco Settlement Payments”) in exchange for being released from claims related to the use of
tobacco products.  Under the MOU and the ARIMOU, the State of California agre
o
cities; the relative amounts to be received by the countie
being made in response to each decennial U.S. census. When the Tobacco Settlement Payments
became available to the County, the County Board of Supervisors adopted Board Policy E-14, which
establishes guidelines for the allocation of these revenues to new and expanded programs that would
serve these targeted populations and also promote healthy lifestyles.  The emphasis is on prevention
and education, and is intended to reduce the abuse of alcohol, tobacco and other addictive
substances, improve mental health services, significantly reduce violence and abuse, reduce the
incidence of chronic and infectious diseases, and provide education regarding the ef

Prior to its sale of the Tobacco Settlement Payments, the County of San Diego had received
approximately  three years of  annual payments.  The County expects to use approximately $29.4
million annually from the proceeds from the sale (which were deposited in an endowment fund and
invested in municipal securities) for Board Policy E-14 purposes.

The bonds are limited ob

and the Authority.  For the year ended June 30, 2003, $35,444 of Tobacco Settlement Payments was 
recorded as Other revenue in the Tobacco Securitization Joint Special Revenue Fund.  The bonds do
not constitute a charge against the general credit of the Authority or the County and neither will the 
Authority (except from loan payments by the Corporation) or the County be obligated to pay the 
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interest on or principal of these bonds.  These bonds do not constitute a debt, liability or obligation
(legal, moral or otherwise) of the County.

Future debt service requirements of the Authority as of June 30, 2003 are as follows:

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30 Principal Interest

Total Debt
Service

2004 $   1,830 24,892 26,722

2005 2,155 24,818 26,973

2006 2,015 24,732 26,747

2007 1,890 24,652 26,542

2008 2,065 24,557 26,622

2009-2013 12,750 121,050 133,800

2014-2018 15,245 117,631 132,876

00 137,4202019-2023 24,620 112,8

2024-2028 39,880 104,919 144,799

2029-2033 64,305 91,679 155,984

2034-2038 90,865 71,048 161,913

2039-2043   191,615  42,348    233,963 

 Total $449,235   785,126 1,234,361

.
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues:

Taxes $ 383,730 383,730 396,415 12,685

Licenses, permits and franchises 28,296 28,296 28,840 544

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 33,624 38,098 36,246 (1,852)

Revenue from use of money and property 20,622 20,627 17,236 (3,391)

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 920,812 868,901 709,693 (159,208)

Federal 427,182 457,513 533,562 76,049

Other 49,162 51,944 49,853 (2,091)

Charges for current services 204,635 231,323 243,125 11,802

Other revenue 19,520 24,010 25,389 1,379

Total revenues 2,087,583 2,104,442 2,040,359 (64,083)

Expenditures:

Current:

General:

      Board of supervisors district # 1 810 1,325 1,122 203

      Board of supervisors district # 2 840 1,314 1,314

      Board of supervisors district # 3 790 1,279 1,177 102

      Board of supervisors district # 4 790 1,179 1,171 8

      Board of supervisors district # 5 931 1,429 1,253 176

      Board of supervisors general office 1,153 1,162 1,082 80

      Clerk of the board of supervisors 5,376 6,588 5,514 1,074

      CAC major maintenance 2,238 2,238 2,238

      Chief administrative office 3,736 4,779 4,482 297

      Community enhancement 5,479 3,470 3,468 2

      Community projects 10,000 9,553 9,496 57

      Community services 8,403 17,301 3,572 13,729

      Land use and environment 493 1,772 1,666 106

      Financing and general government group 42,374 44,094 11,295 32,799

      Auditor and controller 26,929 34,164 31,938 2,226

      Assessor/recorder/county clerk 27,609 38,946 38,847 99

      Treasurer/tax collector 13,205 16,005 15,685 320

      County counsel 14,915 22,720 21,119 1,601

      Human resources 17,484 22,019 20,306 1,713

      Civil service commission 398 485 394 91

      Register of voters 8,244 10,216 8,249 1,967

      County technology office 8,015 9,227 7,989 1,238

      Countywide general expense 6,149 34,107 5,683 28,424

      Contribution to capital outlay 6,900 6,900 6,900

      Contingency reserve 11,000 11,000 11,000

      Department of public works 617 670 584 86

      Health and human services agency 2,428 2,528 2,331 197

Total general 227,306 306,470 201,975 104,495

(Cont)
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(Cont)

Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Public protection:

      Grand jury $ 478 509 465 44

      District attorney 87,410 127,411 122,636 4,775

      Child support 57,937 68,088 68,008 80

      Public defender 38,150 56,488 54,165 2,323

      Alternate public defender 12,179 16,379 15,186 1,193

      Defense attorney / contract administration 6,664 8,664 8,299 365

      Contributions for trial courts 69,766 120,547 117,812 2,735

      Sheriff 375,723 512,333 493,449 18,884

      Probation 132,985 172,865 162,352 10,513

      Agriculture, weight & measures 11,136 15,591 14,563 1,028

      Dept. of animal services 10,658 14,433 13,611 822

      LAFCO administration 200 200 200

      Health & human services agency 2,939 2,994 2,798 196

      Medical examiner 5,300 7,407 7,185 222

      Planning and land use 23,137 30,325 26,784 3,541

      Public safety 4,762 20,317 5,643 14,674

      Citizen's law enforcement review board 466 627 565 62

      Land use and environment group 3,267 9,758 3,508 6,250

      Assessor / recorder / county clerk 12,129 14,070 14,070

      Department of public works 181 302 295 7

      Office of emergency services 1,778 2,611 1,468 1,143

Total public protection 857,245 1,201,919 1,133,062 68,857

Public ways and facilities:

      Public works 4,601 24,219 23,955 264

Total public ways and facilities 4,601 24,219 23,955 264

Health and sanitation:

      Health and human services agency 530,691 592,196 547,319 44,877

      Environmental health 29,660 39,984 36,867 3,117

      Department of public works 453 869 869

Total health and sanitation 560,804 633,049 585,055 47,994

Public assistance:

      Health and human services agency 883,532 988,880 942,695 46,185

      Housing and community development 9,895 13,298 10,371 2,927

Total public assistance: 893,427 1,002,178 953,066 49,112

Education:

      Farm and home advisor 577 6,753 6,680 73

Total education 577 6,753 6,680 73

Recreational and cultural:

      Parks and recreation 17,867 25,328 22,361 2,967

Total recreational and cultural 17,867 25,328 22,361 2,967

Debt service:

      Countywide general expense 37,718 20,107 12,735 7,372

Total debt service 37,718 20,107 12,735 7,372

Total expenditures 2,599,545 3,220,023 2,938,889 281,134

Excess of revenues over

   (under) expenditures (511,962) (1,115,581) (898,530) (217,051)

(Cont)
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(Cont)

Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Other financing sources (uses):

Sale of capital assets $ 11 11

Transfers in 497,357 497,133 478,806 (18,327)

Transfers (out) (167,576) (214,652) (207,586) 7,066

Long term debt proceeds 25 560,475 560,450 (25)

Refunding bonds issued 176,890 176,890

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (176,890) (176,890)

Encumbrances, beginning of year 98,676 98,676 98,676

Total other financing sources (uses) 428,482 941,632 930,357 (11,275)

Net change in fund balance (83,480) (173,949) 31,827 205,776

Fund balances - beginning of year 83,480 327,094 327,094

Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for inventory of 

materials and supplies (1,056) (1,056)

Fund balances - end of year $ 153,145 357,865 204,720

Budgeted Amounts

GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)
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Explanation of differences between budget to actual comparison schedule using the operating statement

format and GAAP revenues and expenditures:

REVENUES:

  Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from

    budgetary comparison schedule 2,040,359$         

  Differences-budget to GAAP 

                 Adjustment to cash for fair market value (545)

  Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 

  expenditures, and changes in fund balance-governmental funds 2,039,814$         

EXPENDITURES:

  Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriation"

    from budgetary comparison schedule 2,938,889$         

  Differences-budget to GAAP

                 Year end encumbrances are added to actual expenditures 

                   for budgetary basis but not included in GAAP (46,052)

  Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

  expenditures, and changes in fund balance - governmental funds 2,892,837$         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

  Actual amounts (budgetary basis) from budgetary 

   comparison schedule 930,357$           

  Differences - budget to GAAP

                   Transfer Out - year end encumbrances are added

                   to actuals transfers out for budgetary basis but

                   not included for GAAP 50,707

                   Beginning of Year encumbrances are included in

                   budget  in the budgetary basis but not included

                   for GAAP (98,676)

  Total other financing sources (uses) as reported on the statement of revenues,

  expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 882,388$           
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GENERAL FUND
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Financial Report of San Diego County

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL



Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues:

Revenue from use of money and property $ 5,696 5,696

Other revenue 29,400 29,400 (29,400)

Total revenues 29,400 29,400 5,696 (23,704)

Expenditures:

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over

   (under) expenditures 29,400 29,400 5,696 (23,704)

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers (out) (29,400) (29,400) (26,949) 2,451

Total other financing 

   sources (uses) (29,400) (29,400) (26,949) 2,451

Net change in fund balance (21,253) (21,253)

Fund balances - beginning of year 387,372 387,372

Fund balances - end of year $ 366,119 366,119

TOBACCO SECURITIZATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Financial Report of San Diego County

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Budgeted Amounts



Explanation of differences between budget to actual comparison schedule using the operating statement

format and GAAP revenues and expenditures:

REVENUES:

  Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation" from

    budgetary comparison schedule $5,696

  Differences-budget to GAAP 

                 Adjustment to cash for fair market value 2,145

  Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 

  expenditures, and changes in fund balance-governmental funds $7,841
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Budgetary Information

General Budget Policies

An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year for the governmental funds.  The annual resolution
adopts the budget at the object level of expenditures within departments.   Annual budgets are not
required to be adopted for: the Tobacco Securitization Joint Special Revenue Fund (a major fund);
SANCAL, a non-profit corporation, and Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds (other governmental
funds). Unencumbered appropriations for the governmental funds lapse at fiscal year-end. 
Encumbered appropriations are carried forward to the subsequent fiscal year.  Budgets for the
governmental funds are adopted on a basis of accounting that is different from generally accepted 
accounting principles.

The major areas of differences are as follows:

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds.  Encumbrances (e.g., purchase

orders, contracts) are reported as budgeted expenditures in the year the commitment to purchase
is incurred.  For GAAP purposes in the fund financial statements, encumbrances outstanding at 
fiscal year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures

and liabilities, because the appropriations for these commitments will be carried forward and the
commitments honored in the subsequent fiscal year.

Long-term capital lease obligations are not budgeted as an expenditure and source of funds in the

year the asset is acquired.  Under a GAAP basis, in the fund financial statements such obligations
are included as an expenditure and source of funds in the year the asset is acquired.

Loans and deposits to other agencies, if any, and their subsequent repayments are budgeted as
expenditures and revenues, respectively.  Under a GAAP basis in the fund financial statements,
these items are not recognized as expenditures and revenues.

On a budgetary basis, unrealized gains and losses on the fair value of investments are not
recognized.  For GAAP purposes, such gains or losses are recognized.

Appropriations may be adjusted during the year with the approval of the Board of Supervisors.
Additionally, the Chief Financial Officer is authorized to approve certain transfers and revisions of
appropriations within a department.  Such adjustments are reflected in the final budgetary data.
Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control by the Board of Supervisors is the department level.

Supplemental appropriations during the year ended June 30, 2003, amounted to $826.5 million in the 

General Fund. 
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San Diego County Employees’ Retirement System

Schedule of Funding Progress (in millions) (unaudited):

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
June 30 

Actuarial
Value of 
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability
(AAL)

Entry Age 
(b)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded
Ratio
(a/b)

Covered
Payroll

(c)

UAAL as a 

Percentage
Of Covered 

Payroll
(b-a)/(c)

2000 $3,568.7 3,248.8 109.8% $672.5
2001 3,745.6 3,506.8 106.8% 731.1
2002 3,831.3 5,078.0 1,246.7 75.4% 810.3 153.8%

The actuarial valuation for June 30, 2003 is not yet available to provide information to update the Schedule of

Funding Progress table.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ROAD FUND

HCD FUND

AIR POLLUTION FUND

LIGHTING DISTRICT FUND

COUNTY LIBRARY FUND

ASSET FORFEITURE PROGRAM FUND

INMATE WELFARE PROGRAM FUND

INACTIVE WASTESITES FUND

CABLE TV FUND

PARKLAND DEDICATION FUND

NONPROFIT CORPORATION FUND

Financial Report of San Diego County
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This fund was established to receive and expend special park land dedication fees to developers of land as a

condition for approval of any development.  The fees are then used for the purchase of land and the development of

land for park or recreational facilities. These facilities serve the future residents of such developments. In lieu of

the payment of these fees, the developer may dedicate land for park or recreational facilities.

The nonprofit corporation fund, San Diego County Capital Asset Leasing Corporation, was established as a cost-

effective means of financing the purchase of necessary equipment and the acquisition and construction of

permanent buildings on behalf of the County through the sale of tax exempt certificates of participation.

This fund was established to account for assets which have been seized by law enforcement agencies during the

investigation of criminal activities. These monies and the interest derived therefrom are used for the prevention,

investigation, apprehension and prosecution of drug and other criminal law violators.

This fund was established to receive telephone and other vending commissions and profits from stores operated in

connection with the county jail and probation facilities. Fund expenditures, by law, must be solely for the benefit,

education and welfare of confined inmates.

This fund was established to receive one-time homeowner association deposits and residual funds from the sale of

the County's Solid Waste System. Expenditures include repairs, maintenance and care for the County's inactive

landfill sites in accordance with all applicable governmental regulations, laws and guidelines.

This fund was established to account for revenue earned and expenditures made for cable television related

projects appropriated for the benefit of the cable subscribers who have paid the user fees for this fund.

This fund was established to provide for control of air pollution from motor vehicles and other sources in order to

attain health based air quality standards. Revenue sources include license and permit fees, fines, state and federal

funds, charges to property owners and vehicle registration fees.

This fund was established to provide street and road lighting services to specified areas of the County. Revenue

sources include ad valorem taxes, benefit fees, state funding and charges to property owners. 

This fund was established to provide library services for the unincorporated area as well as some of the

incorporated cities within the county. The County Library now operates a headquarters, 31 branches, 2

bookmobiles and 1 adult literacy site. Property taxes provide most of the fund's revenues, federal aid, state aid

and fines provide the remaining revenues.

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

This fund was established to provide for maintenance and construction of roadways and for specialized engineering

services to other governmental units and the public. Revenues consist primarily of the County's share of state

highway user taxes and are supplemented by federal funds, vehicle code fines, and fees and reimbursements for

engineering services provided.

The Housing and Community Development Fund was established to receive federal community development block

grants as well as state grants. Expenditures are for special projects related to various housing programs within the

County.



COUNTY SERVICE DISTRICTS FUNDS

FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT FUND

HOUSING AUTHORITY FUND

REALIGNMENT FUND

PUBLIC SAFETY FUND

IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY FUND

OTHER SPECIAL DISTRICTS FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

PENSION OBLIGATION BONDS FUND

NONPROFIT CORPORATION FUND

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND

This fund receives proceeds of redevelopment area incremental taxes and interest revenues based on a trust

agreement between the agency and a trustee bank for payment of principal and interest due on revenue bonds.

Pledged installments from the county airport system are deposited with a trustee and are available if taxes and

interest are insufficient to pay debt service payments. In addition to the pledged amounts, a bond reserve was

funded with bond proceeds.
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This authority was established for the administration of the IHSS registry, investigation of the qualifications and

background of potential registry personnel, referral of registry personnel to IHSS recipients and the provision for

training of providers and recipients. Financing is provided by the Social Services Realignment fund, federal and

state programs.

This fund receives payments from the County and other agencies for payment of principal and interest due on 1994

taxable pension obligation bonds. The debt issue was used to satisfy the County's requirement to amortize the

unfunded actuarial accrued liability with respect to retirement benefits accruing to members of the association. The

obligation of the County to make payments with respect to the bonds is an absolute and unconditional priority

obligation of the County imposed by law and payment of principal and interest on the bonds is not limited to any

special source of funds.

These special district funds were established to provide authorized services such as road, park, lighting

maintenance, fire protection or ambulance service to specific areas in the County. They are financed by ad valorem

property taxes in the area benefited or by special assessments levied on specific properties.

This fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures related to providing flood control in the county.

It is financed primarily by ad valorem property taxes and federal grants.

Financial Report of San Diego County

This fund receives rental payments based on lease purchase agreements from the capital outlay fund and the

general fund for payment of principal and interest due on certificates of participation. These debt issuances are

legal obligations of a nonprofit corporation and were issued to finance the purchasing of necessary equipment and

the acquisition and construction of permanent buildings by the County. Debt is secured by the lease purchase

payments from the County.

This fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures related to providing decent housing in a

suitable environment for individuals who cannot afford standard private housing. Contracts with the U.S.

Department of Housing and Urban Development provide the major funding sources.

This fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures related to providing health, mental health and

public assistance programs to qualifying individuals. It is based upon the state health and welfare realignment act

of 1991. The financing is provided by a one-half cent sales tax as provided in the State’s Revenue and Taxation

Code

This fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures related to providing public safety services such

as sheriffs, fire protection, county district attorneys and county corrections. It does not include courts, but provides

for an allocation to cities. It is financed by a one-half sales and use tax passed through a voter approved state

proposition.

These funds were established to receive user fees, land lease revenues, fines and state funding. Expenditures

include retracement or remonument surveys, improvements for grazing lands, wildlife propagation and aviation

purpose capital improvements and repairs.



CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND

EDGEMOOR DEVELOPMENT FUND

NONPROFIT CORPORATION FUND

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
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This fund is used to account for the proceeds of redevelopment area incremental taxes, interest revenues and

temporary loans. Redevelopment project expenditures, in accordance with California community redevelopment

law, include redevelopment planning, design, improvement cost, professional services and administrative costs.

This fund is used exclusively to finance the acquisition, construction and completion of permanent public

improvements including public buildings and for the costs of acquiring land and permanent improvements. The

fund may also be used to make annual payments on bond indebtedness for the construction of public facilities and

to acquire public facilities through lease purchases. Revenues are obtained from the sale of fixed assets, from lease

or rental of county-owned facilities, and from other funds such as grants and contributions when allocated by the

Board of Supervisors to the fund.

This fund is used exclusively for assisting in the development of the Edgemoor property. The Edgemoor property

represents approximately 375 acres of county owned land and 50 acres owned by the Grossmont Union High School

District in the Santee area. Future development may include parks, a library, housing, a fire station, post office and

others.  Revenues are derived from the sale or lease of land within the Edgemoor property.

This fund is used to account for the expenditure of the proceeds from the sale of nonprofit corporation certificates of

participation for the purchase of various types of equipment and the acquisition and construction of permanent

buildings by the County.
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Total

Nonmajor

Special Debt Capital Governmental

Revenue Service Projects Funds

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 236,018 3,103 25,960 265,081

Cash with fiscal agent 1,720 26,832 521 29,073

Collections in transit 183 75 258

Imprest cash 17 17

Accounts and notes receivable 108,426 352 5,240 114,018

Due from other funds 19,085 30 12,232 31,347

Advances to other funds 3 414 417

Inventory of materials and supplies 2,098 2,098

Deposits with others 380 107 487

Prepaid items 2 6 8

Restricted assets:

Investments 45,413 45,413

Total assets 413,345 30,731 44,141 488,217

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8,173 5,040 13,213

Accrued payroll 2,101 2,101

Due to other funds 107,839 424 17,950 126,213

Advances from other funds 768 287 10,177 11,232

Deferred revenue 5,856 1,130 6,986

Total liabilities 124,737 711 34,297 159,745

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances 44,988 73 45,061

Reserved for notes receivable and advances 30,331 30,331

Reserved for deposits with others 1,055 1,055

Reserved for inactive landfill maintenance 92,218 92,218

Reserved for inventory of materials and supplies 319 319

Reserved for debt service 30,020 30,020

Reserved for other purposes 40,359 40,359

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 86 86

Undesignated 79,252 9,771 89,023

Total fund balances 288,608 30,020 9,844 328,472

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 413,345 30,731 44,141 488,217
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Air Lighting

Road HCD Pollution District

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 39,224 3,906 29,640 1,181

Cash with fiscal agent 1

Collections in transit 6 98

Imprest cash 3 1

Accounts and notes receivable 7,107 22,502 811 29

Due from other funds 1,874 253 146 7

Advances to other funds

Inventory of materials and supplies 1,779 96

Deposits with others 23

Prepaid items

Restricted assets:

Investments

Total assets 50,016 26,661 30,793 1,217

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,611 1,739 146 3

Accrued payroll 1,139 371

Due to other funds 1,208 4,556 194 23

Advances from other funds

Deferred revenue 465 4 92

Total liabilities 5,423 6,299 803 26

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances 17,850 18,888 114

Reserved for notes receivable and advances 20,352

Reserved for deposits with others 700

Reserved for inactive landfill maintenance

Reserved for inventory of materials and supplies 96

Reserved for other purposes 24,653 610

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures

Undesignated 2,090 10 10,306 467

Total fund balances 44,593 20,362 29,990 1,191

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 50,016 26,661 30,793 1,217

(Cont)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

101

SPECIAL REVENUE

June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)



Asset Inmate

County Forfeiture Welfare Inactive

Library Program Program Wastesites

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 7,159 4,108 8,007 49,050

Cash with fiscal agent

Collections in transit 11 21 1 2

Imprest cash 5 8

Accounts and notes receivable 9 3 339

Due from other funds 132 18 56 216

Advances to other funds

Inventory of materials and supplies 107 22 87 6

Deposits with others

Prepaid items

Restricted assets:

Investments 45,413

Total assets 7,423 4,172 8,159 95,026

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 100 68 174 1,040

Accrued payroll 478 49

Due to other funds 335 27 489 431

Advances from other funds

Deferred revenue 1,867 1,282

Total liabilities 913 95 2,530 2,802

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances 4,140 519 875

Reserved for notes receivable and advances

Reserved for deposits with others 

Reserved for inactive landfill maintenance 92,218

Reserved for inventory of materials and supplies 107 22 87 6

Reserved for other purposes

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 86

Undesignated 2,177 3,536 4,667

Total fund balances 6,510 4,077 5,629 92,224

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 7,423 4,172 8,159 95,026

(Cont)

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

(In Thousands)

June 30, 2003
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County

Parkland Nonprofit Service

Cable TV Dedication Corporation Districts

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 2,136 7,334 97 14,536

Cash with fiscal agent 1,466

Collections in transit 7

Imprest cash

Accounts and notes receivable 3

Due from other funds 88 34 94

Advances to other funds

Inventory of materials and supplies 1

Deposits with others 2

Prepaid items

Restricted assets:

Investments

Total assets 2,228 7,375 1,563 14,632

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 11 14 607

Accrued payroll 58 6

Due to other funds 14 457 458

Advances from other funds 768

Deferred revenue 848

Total liabilities 83 457 14 2,687

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances 83 560 193

Reserved for notes receivable and advances

Reserved for deposits with others 

Reserved for inactive landfill maintenance

Reserved for inventory of materials and supplies 1

Reserved for other purposes

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures

Undesignated 2,061 6,358 1,549 11,752

Total fund balances 2,145 6,918 1,549 11,945

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,228 7,375 1,563 14,632

(Cont)

(Cont)

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2003

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

(In Thousands)
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Flood

Control Housing

District Authority Realignment

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 20,462 6,946 24,798

Cash with fiscal agent 253

Collections in transit 19 17

Imprest cash

Accounts and notes receivable 13,121 33,421

Due from other funds 95 111 1,257

Advances to other funds 3

Inventory of materials and supplies

Deposits with others 54 301

Prepaid items 2

Restricted assets:

Investments

Total assets 20,633 20,751 59,476

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 62 1,511

Accrued payroll

Due to other funds 222 823 37,843

Advances from other funds

Deferred revenue 1,298

Total liabilities 284 3,632 37,843

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances 1,358

Reserved for notes receivable and advances 3 9,976

Reserved for deposits with others 54 301

Reserved for inactive landfill maintenance

Reserved for inventory of materials and supplies

Reserved for other purposes 15,096

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures

Undesignated 3,838 6,842 21,633

Total fund balances 20,349 17,119 21,633

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 20,633 20,751 59,476

(Cont)

(Cont)
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IHSS Other Total

Public Public Special Special

Safety Authority Districts Revenue

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 13,825 1,398 2,211 236,018

Cash with fiscal agent 1,720

Collections in transit 1 183

Imprest cash 17

Accounts and notes receivable 31,081 108,426

Due from other funds 14,340 291 73 19,085

Advances to other funds 3

Inventory of materials and supplies 2,098

Deposits with others 380

Prepaid items 2

Restricted assets:

Investments 45,413

Total assets 59,246 1,689 2,285 413,345

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 75 12 8,173

Accrued payroll 2,101

Due to other funds 58,767 1,570 422 107,839

Advances from other funds 768

Deferred revenue 5,856

Total liabilities 58,767 1,645 434 124,737

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances 367 41 44,988

Reserved for notes receivable and advances 30,331

Reserved for deposits with others 1,055

Reserved for inactive landfill maintenance 92,218

Reserved for inventory of materials and supplies 319

Reserved for other purposes 40,359

Unreserved:

Designated for subsequent years' expenditures 86

Undesignated 112 3 1,851 79,252

Total fund balances 479 44 1,851 288,608

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 59,246 1,689 2,285 413,345
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SPECIAL REVENUE
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Pension Total

Obligation Nonprofit Redevelopment Debt 

Bonds Corporation Agency Service

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 20 1,128 1,955 3,103

Cash with fiscal agent 2,333 24,069 430 26,832

Accounts receivable 340 12 352

Due from other funds 16 6 8 30

Advances to other funds 414 414

Total assets 2,369 25,957 2,405 30,731

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Due to other funds 424 424

Advances from other funds 287 287

Total liabilities 711 711

Fund balances:

Reserved for debt service 2,369 25,957 1,694 30,020

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2,369 25,957 2,405 30,731

DEBT SERVICE
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Total

Capital Edgemoor Nonprofit Redevelopment Capital 

Outlay Development Corporation Agency Projects

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 11,609 1,187 9,146 4,018 25,960

Cash with fiscal agent 521 521

Collections in transit 75 75

Accounts and notes receivable 5,222 7 11 5,240

Due from other funds 11,741 5 45 441 12,232

Deposits with others 107 107

Prepaid items 6 6

Total assets 28,685 1,274 9,712 4,470 44,141

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 4,619 421 5,040

Due to other funds 17,840 2 108 17,950

Advances from other funds 10,177 10,177

Deferred revenue 1,130 1,130

Total liabilities 23,589 2 10,706 34,297

Fund balances:

Reserved for encumbrances 66 7 73

Unreserved 5,096 1,206 9,712 (6,243) 9,771

Total fund balances 5,096 1,272 9,712 (6,236) 9,844

Total liabilities

and fund balances $ 28,685 1,274 9,712 4,470 44,141
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2003

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

CAPITAL PROJECTS
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Special Debt Capital Total

Revenue Service Projects Nonmajor

Funds Funds Funds Governmental
R evenues:

Taxes $ 45,861 534 4,025 50,420
Licenses, permits and franchises 10,495 10,495
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 2,173 2,817 4,990
Revenue from use of money and 
property 9,741 1,364 2,025 13,130
Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 492,095 30,116 522,211
Federal 97,486 1,193 98,679
Other 6,227 6,356 3,680 16,263

Charges for current services 23,407 42 23,449
Other revenue 6,492 2,740 9,232

Total revenues 693,977 8,254 46,638 748,869

Expenditures:
Current:

General 2,006 11,068 3,967 17,041
Public protection 21,382 271 21,653
Public ways and facilities 101,347 101,347
Health and sanitation 30,442 169 30,611
Public assistance 91,905 91,905
Education 24,364 24,364
Recreational and cultural 921 921

  Capital outlay 83,748 83,748
  Debt service
      Principal 1,093 78,193 79,286
      Interest 73 35,588 35,661
Total expenditures 273,533 124,849 88,155 486,537

 Excess of revenues over 
   (under) expenditures 420,444 (116,595) (41,517) 262,332

O ther financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets 463 463
Transfers in 83,565 119,855 86,771 290,191
Transfers (out) (537,437) (1,161) (50,719) (589,317)
Long term debt proceeds 436 436

Total other financing 
   sources (uses) (453,436) 118,694 36,515 (298,227)

Net change in fund balances (32,992) 2,099 (5,002) (35,895)

Fund balances - beginning of year 321,538 27,921 14,846 364,305
Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for inventory of 
materials and supplies 62 62

Fund balances - end of year $ 288,608 30,020 9,844 328,472
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Air Lighting

Road HCD Pollution District

Revenues:

Taxes $ 21,766 709

Licenses, permits and franchises 77 7,053

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 58 1,244

Revenue from use of money and property 1,045 711 27

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 48,809 1,565 10

Federal 2,576 10,019 1,811 1

Other 964 4,702

Charges for current services 14,045 413 289

Other revenue 1,288 102 150 4

Total revenues 89,664 11,085 17,649 1,040

Expenditures:

Current:

General

Public protection

Public ways and facilities 97,325 1,443

Health and sanitation 26,445

Public assistance 5,278

Education

Recreational and cultural

Debt service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures 97,325 5,278 26,445 1,443

Excess of revenues over 

   (under) expenditures (7,661) 5,807 (8,796) (403)

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 1,293 3,273

Transfers (out) (1,484) (1,562) (3,542)

Long term debt proceeds

Total other financing

   sources (uses) (191) (1,562) (269)

Net change in fund balances (7,852) 4,245 (9,065) (403)

Fund balances - beginning of year 52,445 16,117 39,018 1,594

Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for inventory of materials

   and supplies 37

Fund balances - end of year $ 44,593 20,362 29,990 1,191

(Cont)
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(Cont)

Asset Inmate

County Forfeiture Welfare Inactive

Library Program Program Wastesites

Revenues:

Taxes $ 18,466

Licenses, permits and franchises

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 815

Revenue from use of money and property 142 90 3,348 3,499

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 1,293 89

Federal 5

Other 11

Charges for current services 1,288 302 919

Other revenue 729 37 8 512

Total revenues 21,923 942 3,658 5,030

Expenditures:

Current:

General

Public protection 1,068 2,762 11,179

Public ways and facilities

Health and sanitation

Public assistance

Education 24,364

Recreational and cultural

Debt service

Principal 980

Interest 14

Total expenditures 24,364 1,068 2,762 12,173

Excess of revenues over 

   (under) expenditures (2,441) (126) 896 (7,143)

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 2,454 400 1,500

Transfers (out) (1,410) (1,597) (153)

Long term debt proceeds

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 1,044 (1,197) 1,347

Net change in fund balances (1,397) (126) (301) (5,796)

Fund balances - beginning of year 7,923 4,181 5,911 98,020

Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for inventory of materials

   and supplies (16) 22 19

Fund balances - end of year $ 6,510 4,077 5,629 92,224

(Cont)

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)
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(Cont)

County

Parkland Nonprofit Service

Cable TV Dedication Corporation Districts

Revenues:

Taxes $ 2,419

Licenses, permits and franchises 2,143 1,198

Fines, forfeitures and penalties

Revenue from use of money and property 46 145 144 304

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 34

Federal

Other 55 484

Charges for current services 44 5,891

Other revenue 6 25

Total revenues 2,239 1,343 199 9,157

Expenditures:

Current:

General 1,864 70

Public protection 877

Public ways and facilities 1,685

Health and sanitation 3,997

Public assistance

Education

Recreational and cultural 138 783

Debt service

Principal 113

Interest 59

Total expenditures 1,864 138 70 7,514

Excess of revenues over 

   (under) expenditures 375 1,205 129 1,643

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 71 58,800 45

Transfers (out) (76) (664) (59,049) (1,307)

Long term debt proceeds 436

Total other financing

   sources (uses) (5) (664) (249) (826)

Net change in fund balances 370 541 (120) 817

Fund balances - beginning of year 1,775 6,377 1,669 11,128

Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for inventory of materials

   and supplies

Fund balances - end of year $ 2,145 6,918 1,549 11,945

(Cont)

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE

Year Ended June 30, 2003
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Flood

Control Housing Public

Districts Authority Realignment Safety

Revenues:

Taxes $ 2,501

Licenses, permits and franchises

Fines, forfeitures and penalties

Revenue from use of money and property 67 133

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 37 145 257,499 182,439

Federal 1 83,072

Other 11

Charges for current services 36 4

Other revenue 2,730 901

Total revenues 5,372 84,266 257,499 182,439

Expenditures:

Current:

General

Public protection 5,496

Public ways and facilities

Health and sanitation

Public assistance 85,196

Education

Recreational and cultural

Debt service

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures 5,496 85,196

Excess of revenues over 

   (under) expenditures (124) (930) 257,499 182,439

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 1,050 1,679 13,000

Transfers (out) (410) (265,478) (198,414)

Long term debt proceeds

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 1,050 1,269 (252,478) (198,414)

Net change in fund balances 926 339 5,021 (15,975)

Fund balances - beginning of year 19,423 16,780 16,612 16,454

Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for inventory of materials

   and supplies

Fund balances - end of year $ 20,349 17,119 21,633 479

(Cont)
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(Cont)

IHSS Other Total

Public Special Special

Authority Districts Revenue

Revenues:

Taxes $ 45,861

Licenses, permits and franchises 24 10,495

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 56 2,173

Revenue from use of money and property 40 9,741

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 175 492,095

Federal 1 97,486

Other 6,227

Charges for current services 176 23,407

Other revenue 6,492

Total revenues 40 432 693,977

Expenditures:

Current:

General 72 2,006

Public protection 21,382

Public ways and facilities 894 101,347

Health and sanitation 30,442

Public assistance 1,431 91,905

Education 24,364

Recreational and cultural 921

Debt service

Principal 1,093

Interest 73

Total expenditures 1,431 966 273,533

Excess of revenues over 

   (under) expenditures (1,391) (534) 420,444

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 83,565

Transfers (out) (1,258) (1,033) (537,437)

Long term debt proceeds 436

Total other financing

   sources (uses) (1,258) (1,033) (453,436)

Net change in fund balances (2,649) (1,567) (32,992)

Fund balances - beginning of year 2,693 3,418 321,538

Increase (decrease) in:

Reserve for inventory of materials

   and supplies 62

Fund balances - end of year $ 44 1,851 288,608
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Pension Total

Obligation Nonprofit Redevelopment Special Debt

Bonds Corporation Agency Aviation Service

Revenues:

Taxes $ 534 534

Revenue from use of money

and property 7 1,318 39 1,364

Aid from other governmental agencies:

Other 6,350 6 6,356

Total revenues 6,357 1,318 579 8,254

Expenditures:

Current:

General 10,900 168 11,068

Debt service

Principal 39,420 38,505 125 143 78,193

Interest 14,365 20,738 299 186 35,588

Total expenditures 64,685 59,411 424 329 124,849

Excess of revenues over 

(under) expenditures (58,328) (58,093) 155 (329) (116,595)

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 60,477 59,049 329 119,855

Transfers (out) (1,161) (1,161)

Proceeds of refunding bonds

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Total other financing 

sources (uses) 60,477 57,888 329 118,694

Net change in fund balances 2,149 (205) 155 2,099

Fund balances - beginning of year 220 26,162 1,539 27,921

Fund balances - end of year $ 2,369 25,957 1,694 30,020
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Total

Capital Edgemoor Nonprofit Redevelopment Capital 

Outlay Development Corporation Agency Projects

Revenues:

Taxes $ 2,322 1,703 4,025

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 2,817 2,817

Revenue from use of money and 

property 1,287 262 398 78 2,025

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 30,116 30,116

Federal 1,193 1,193

Other 3,680 3,680

Charges for current services 42 42

Other revenue 2,674 66 2,740

Total revenues 44,131 262 398 1,847 46,638

Expenditures:

Current:

General 3,280 687 3,967

Public protection 271 271

Health and sanitation 169 169

Capital outlay 76,606 7,142 83,748

Total expenditures 79,886 169 7,142 958 88,155

Excess of revenues over 

(under) expenditures (35,755) 93 (6,744) 889 (41,517)

Other financing sources (uses):

Sale of capital assets 463 463

Transfers in 86,771 86,771

Transfers (out) (50,719) (50,719)

Total other financing

sources (uses) 36,052 463 36,515

Net change in fund balances 297 556 (6,744) 889 (5,002)

Fund balances - beginning of year 4,799 716 16,456 (7,125) 14,846

Fund balances - end of year $ 5,096 1,272 9,712 (6,236) 9,844

(In Thousands)
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Taxes $ 21,630 21,750 21,766 16

Licenses, permits and franchises 53 53 77 24

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 58 58

Revenue from use of money and property 1,933 1,933 1,153 (780)

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 50,093 50,093 48,809 (1,284)

Federal 3,862 16,466 2,576 (13,890)

Charges for current services 14,364 15,981 14,045 (1,936)

Other revenue 14 14 1,288 1,274

Total revenues 91,949 106,290 89,772 (16,518)

Expenditures

Current:

Public ways and facilities

    Public works road 163,261 150,932 115,175 35,757

Total expenditures 163,261 150,932 115,175 35,757

Excess of revenues over

   (under) expenditures (71,312) (44,642) (25,403) 19,239

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 407 1,497 1,293 (204)

Transfers (out) (1,484) (1,484) (1,484)

Encumbrances, beginning of year 27,345 27,345 27,345

Total other financing 

   sources (uses) 26,268 27,358 27,154 (204)

Net change in fund balance $ (45,044) (17,284) 1,751 19,035
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Aid from other governmental agencies:

Federal $ 31,349 35,651 10,019 (25,632)

Other 126 134 964 830

Other revenue 102 102

Total revenues 31,475 35,785 11,085 (24,700)

Expenditures

Current:

Public assistance

    Housing and community dev. 26,708 31,018 5,278 25,740

Total expenditures 26,708 31,018 5,278 25,740

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures 4,767 4,767 5,807 1,040

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers (out) (4,767) (4,767) (1,562) 3,205

Total other financing

   sources (uses) (4,767) (4,767) (1,562) 3,205

Net change in fund balance $ 4,245 4,245

Financial Report of San Diego County
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Licenses, permits and franchises $ 6,714 6,714 7,053 339

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 490 490 1,244 754

Revenue from use of money and property 310 310 813 503

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 1,039 1,839 1,566 (273)

Federal 1,935 2,187 1,811 (376)

Other 3,062 3,061 4,702 1,641

Charges for current services 704 704 413 (291)

Other revenue 148 148

Total revenues 14,254 15,305 17,750 2,445

Expenditures

Current:

Health and sanitation

   Air pollution control 38,282 48,790 45,333 3,457

Total expenditures 38,282 48,790 45,333 3,457

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (24,028) (33,485) (27,583) 5,902

Other financing sources (uses)

Sale of capital assets 2 2

Transfers in 3,273 3,273 3,273

Transfers (out) (3,542) (3,542) (3,542)

Encumbrances, beginning of year 22,389 22,389 22,389

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 22,120 22,120 22,122 2

Net change in fund balance $ (1,908) (11,365) (5,461) 5,904

Financial Report of San Diego County
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Taxes $ 700 700 709 9

Revenue from use of money and property 50 50 31 (19)

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 10 10 11 1

Charges for current services 250 250 290 40

Other revenue 4 4

Total revenues 1,010 1,010 1,045 35

Expenditures

Current:

Public ways and facilities

   Public works lighting district 1,822 1,803 1,558 245

Total expenditures 1,822 1,803 1,558 245

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (812) (793) (513) 280

Other financing sources (uses)

Encumbrances, beginning of year 21 21 21

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 21 21 21

Net change in fund balance $ (791) (772) (492) 280

Financial Report of San Diego County
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Taxes $ 20,004 20,004 18,466 (1,538)

Revenue from use of money and property 288 288 162 (126)

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 1,624 1,640 1,293 (347)

Federal 5 5

Charges for current services 893 893 1,288 395

Other revenue 564 664 727 63

Total revenues 23,373 23,489 21,941 (1,548)

Expenditures

Current:

Education

   County library 28,984 31,048 28,505 2,543

Total expenditures 28,984 31,048 28,505 2,543

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (5,611) (7,559) (6,564) 995

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 2,400 2,454 2,457 3

Transfers (out) (1,014) (1,761) (1,410) 351

Encumbrances, beginning of year 3,975 3,975 3,975

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 5,361 4,668 5,022 354

Net change in fund balance $ (250) (2,891) (1,542) 1,349

Financial Report of San Diego County

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

COUNTY LIBRARY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Budgeted Amounts

120



Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Fines, forfeitures and penalties $ 600 641 815 174

Revenue from use of money and property 99 99

Other revenue 37 37

Total revenues 600 641 951 310

Expenditures

Current:

Public protection

Sheriff's asset forfeiture 1,661 1,661 1,298 363

Probation asset forfeiture 180 180 69 111

DA asset forfeiture 194 170 24

DA asset forfeiture - state 50 50

Total expenditures 1,841 2,085 1,587 498

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (1,241) (1,444) (636) 808

Other financing sources (uses)

Encumbrances, beginning of year 61 61 61

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 61 61 61

Net change in fund balance $ (1,180) (1,383) (575) 808
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues $

Revenue from use of money and property 3,960 3,960 3,357 (603)

Charges for current services 302 302

Other revenue 350 350 8 (342)

Total revenues 4,310 4,310 3,667 (643)

Expenditures

Current:

Public protection

Sheriff's inmate welfare 5,209 4,092 2,289 1,803

Probation inmate welfare 421 568 567 1

Total expenditures 5,630 4,660 2,856 1,804

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (1,320) (350) 811 1,161

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 400 400 400

Transfers (out) (2,107) (2,931) (2,378) 553

Encumbrances, beginning of year 1,086 1,086 1,086

Total other financing

   sources (uses) (621) (1,445) (892) 553

Net change in fund balance $ (1,941) (1,795) (81) 1,714
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues $

Revenue from use of money and property 45 45 3,502 3,457

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 432 532 89 (443)

Other 11 11

Charges for current services 11,571 13,415 918 (12,497)

Other revenue 597 597 512 (85)

Total revenues 12,645 14,589 5,032 (9,557)

Expenditures

Current:

Public protection

   Inactive waste site management 15,658 16,240 11,317 4,923

Debt service 80 1,004 994 10

Total expenditures 15,738 17,244 12,311 4,933

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (3,093) (2,655) (7,279) (4,624)

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 472 1,972 1,500 (472)

Transfers (out) (174) (244) (153) 91

Long tem debt proceeds 111 111 111

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 409 1,839 1,458 (381)

Net change in fund balance $ (2,684) (816) (5,821) (5,005)

Financial Report of San Diego County
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Licenses, permits and franchises $ 2,069 2,069 2,143 74

Revenue from use of money and property 49 49

Charges for current services 44 44

Other revenue 6 6

Total revenues 2,069 2,069 2,242 173

Expenditures

Current:

General

Media and public relations 2,181 2,250 1,947 303

Total expenditures 2,181 2,250 1,947 303

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (112) (181) 295 476

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 70 71 71

Transfers (out) (76) (76) (76)

Encumbrances, beginning of year 93 93 93

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 87 88 88

Net change in fund balance $ (25) (93) 383 476
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Licenses, permits and franchises $ 1,408 1,408 1,198 (210)

Revenue from use of money and property 200 200 159 (41)

Total revenues 1,608 1,608 1,357 (251)

Expenditures

Current:

Recreational and cultural

    Parks & recreation parkland dedication 6,289 5,349 698 4,651

Total expenditures 6,289 5,349 698 4,651

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (4,681) (3,741) 659 4,400

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers (out) (1,114) (664) 450

Encumbrances, beginning of year 944 944 944

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 944 (170) 280 450

Net change in fund balance $ (3,737) (3,911) 939 4,850
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Taxes $ 2,155 2,155 2,419 264

Revenue from use of money and property 225 230 321 91

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 92 92 35 (57)

Other 484 484

Charges for current services 6,859 6,589 5,891 (698)

Other revenue 116 116

Total revenues 9,331 9,066 9,266 200

Expenditures

Current:

Public protection

   Sheriff 1,873 1,888 1,321 567

   Public works 642 793 678 115

Public ways and facilities

   Public works 3,491 7,151 1,705 5,446

Health and sanitation

   Health & human services 4,417 4,187 4,090 97
   Public works 96 128 33 95

Recreational and cultural

   Parks & recreations 2,553 2,564 807 1,757

Debt service 377 439 396 43

Total expenditures 13,449 17,150 9,030 8,120

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (4,118) (8,084) 236 8,320

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 9 45 45

Transfers (out) (476) (513) (206) 307

Long tem debt proceeds 1,039 1,039 1,018 (21)

Encumbrances, beginning of year 473 473 473

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 1,045 1,044 1,330 286

Net change in fund balance $ (3,073) (7,040) 1,566 8,606
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Licenses, permits and franchises $ 2,067 2,067 2,501 434

Revenue from use of money and property 105 105 101 (4)

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 400 400 37 (363)

Federal 1 1

Charges for current services 46 46 36 (10)

Other revenue 3,280 4,428 2,730 (1,698)

Total revenues 5,898 7,046 5,406 (1,640)

Expenditures

Current:

Public protection

   Public works flood control district 8,540 10,943 6,854 4,089

Total expenditures 8,540 10,943 6,854 4,089

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (2,642) (3,897) (1,448) 2,449

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 1,050 1,050

Encumbrances, beginning of year 1,558 1,558 1,558

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 1,558 2,608 2,608

Net change in fund balance $ (1,084) (1,289) 1,160 2,449

Financial Report of San Diego County
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FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICTS FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues $

Revenue from use of money and property 133 133

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 150 350 145 (205)

Federal 77,936 85,339 83,072 (2,267)

Other 289 264 11 (253)

Charges for current services 4 4

Other revenue 1,313 1,214 901 (313)

Total revenues 79,688 87,171 84,266 (2,905)

Expenditures

Current:

Public assistance

    Housing authority 83,750 89,856 85,196 4,660

Total expenditures 83,750 89,856 85,196 4,660

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (4,062) (2,685) (930) 1,755

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 3,910 2,417 1,679 (738)

Transfers (out) (411) (411) (410) 1

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 3,499 2,006 1,269 (737)

Net change in fund balance $ (563) (679) 339 1,018

Financial Report of San Diego County

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

HOUSING AUTHORITY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State $ 257,024 251,690 257,499 5,809

Total revenues 257,024 251,690 257,499 5,809

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures 257,024 251,690 257,499 5,809

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 13,000 13,000 13,000

Transfers (out) (281,133) (281,133) (265,478) 15,655

Total other financing

   sources (uses) (268,133) (268,133) (252,478) 15,655

Net change in fund balance $ (11,109) (16,443) 5,021 21,464

Financial Report of San Diego County

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REALIGNMENT FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State $ 181,458 181,458 182,439 981

Total revenues 181,458 181,458 182,439 981

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures 181,458 181,458 182,439 981

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers (out) (203,761) (203,761) (198,781) 4,980

Encumbrances, beginning of year 3,243 3,243 3,243

Total other financing

   sources (uses) (200,518) (200,518) (195,538) 4,980

Net change in fund balance $ (19,060) (19,060) (13,099) 5,961

Financial Report of San Diego County

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PUBLIC SAFETY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues $

Revenue from use of money and property 49 49

Total revenues 49 49

Expenditures

Current:

Public assistance

   Health & human services 3,889 2,645 1,472 1,173

Total expenditures 3,889 2,645 1,472 1,173

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (3,889) (2,645) (1,423) 1,222

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 3,767 2,627 (2,627)

Transfers (out) (1,258) (1,258)

Encumbrances, beginning of year 122 122 122

Total other financing

   sources (uses) 3,889 1,491 (1,136) (2,627)

Net change in fund balance $ (1,154) (2,559) (1,405)

Financial Report of San Diego County

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

IHSS PUBLIC AUTHORITY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Budgeted Amounts
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Actual Variance

Amounts with Final

Budgetary Budget-

Original Final Basis Pos (Neg)

Revenues

Licenses, permits and franchises $ 16 16 24 8

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 172 172 67 (105)

Aid from other governmental agencies:

State 4,447 4,447 175 (4,272)

Federal 1 1

Other 176 176

Total revenues 4,635 4,635 443 (4,192)

Expenditures

Current:

General

  Agriculture weights & measures grazing 25 25 25

  Agriculture weights & measures fish & game 40 80 47 33

Public ways and facilities

  Public works special aviation 4,618 3,878 894 2,984

Debt service

Total expenditures 4,683 3,983 966 3,017

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures (48) 652 (523) (1,175)

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers (out) (740) (1,033) (293)

Total other financing

   sources (uses) (740) (1,033) (293)

Net change in fund balance $ (48) (88) (1,556) (1,468)

Financial Report of San Diego County

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Budgeted Amounts

132

OTHER SPECIAL DISTRICTS FUND
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(In Thousands)



ROAD AND COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT FUND

PURCHASING FUND

SPECIAL DISTRICT LOANS FUND

RISK FINANCING FUND

FLEET SERVICES FUND

MAIL, PRINT & RECORDS FUND

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT FUND

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY FUND

OTHER MISCELLANEOUS FUND

133

This fund was established to provide for the financing of clothing and personal sundry items for persons

institutionalized at various County facilities.

This fund was established to account for the financing of software applications for human resources, payroll,

and financial systems as well as telecommunication services provided to other county departments on a cost

reimbursement basis.

Financial Report of San Diego County

This fund was established to account for the financing of General Services' Fleet vehicles provided to other

County departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

This fund was established to account for the financing of general services' mail, printing and record storage

services provided to other county departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

This fund was established to account for the financing of public service utilities, property management, and

architectural and engineering services provided to other county departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds are established to account for services furnished to other county departments and are

financed primarily by these service charges. Because they are exempt from budgetary control, they are free

to employ commercial accounting techniques, and are often used in situations where a more accurate

determination of operating results is desired.

This fund was established to account for the financing of public works and communications equipment

provided to other county departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

This fund accounts for the financing of materials and supplies provided to county departments on a cost

reimbursement basis.

This fund was established to provide financing for start up services for new and existing county service

districts on a cost reimbursement basis.

This fund was established to account for all of the county's uninsured risk management activities.
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Road and Special

Communication District

Equipment Purchasing Loans

ASSETS

Current assets:

   Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 13,645 2,848 214

   Collections in transit 34

   Imprest cash 200

   Accounts and notes receivable 36 7

   Due from other funds 359 1,788 63

   Advances to other funds 632

Inventory of materials and supplies

Total current assets 14,040 4,877 909

   Capital assets:

       Contracts in progress

       Buildings and equipment 23,113 73

  Less accumulated depreciation (11,490) (65)

   Total noncurrent assets 11,623 8

Total assets 25,663 4,885 909

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 20 1,496

Accrued payroll 104

Accrued interest

Due to other funds 808 54

Claims and judgments 

Compensated absences 24

Deferred Revenue

Bonds, notes, and loans payable

   Total current liabilities 828 1,678

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences 218

 Claims and judgments

   Total noncurrent liabilities 218

Total liabilities 828 1,896

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 11,623 9

Unrestricted 13,212 2,980 909

Total net assets $ 24,835 2,989 909

(Cont)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

Financial Report of San Diego County



(Cont)

Mail,

Risk Fleet Print & Facilities

Financing Services Records Management

ASSETS

Current assets:

   Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 81,504 16,546 1,691 7,674

   Collections in transit 74 51 25

   Imprest cash 1 1

   Accounts and notes receivable 11 22 87 33

   Due from other funds 1,759 1,019 664 1,085

   Advances to other funds

Inventory of materials and supplies 528 241 33

Total current assets 83,274 18,189 2,735 8,851

   Capital assets:

       Contracts in progress

       Buildings and equipment 76,032 1,446 425

  Less accumulated depreciation (33,991) (916) (247)

   Total noncurrent assets 42,041 530 178

Total assets 83,274 60,230 3,265 9,029

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,948 1,619 279 1,919

Accrued payroll 144 94 685

Accrued interest 14

Due to other funds 4,681 86 51 4,572

Claims and judgments 32,578

Compensated absences 31 15 137

Deferred Revenue 287

Bonds, notes, and loans payable 822 38

   Total current liabilities 39,207 2,716 477 7,600

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences 280 139 1,232

 Claims and judgments 68,010

   Total noncurrent liabilities 68,010 280 139 1,232

Total liabilities 107,217 2,996 616 8,832

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 41,219 493 158

Unrestricted (23,943) 16,015 2,156 39

Total net assets $ (23,943) 57,234 2,649 197

(Cont)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Financial Report of San Diego County



(Cont)

Information Other

Technology Miscellaneous Total

ASSETS

Current assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 45,439 1,866 171,427

Collections in transit 100 284

Imprest cash 202

Accounts and notes receivable 2,978 4 3,178

Due from other funds 12,390 19,127

Advances to other funds 632

Inventory of materials and supplies 77 879

Total current assets 60,807 2,047 195,729

   Capital assets:

Contracts in progress 44,768 44,768

Buildings and equipment 288 101,377

Less accumulated depreciation (167) (46,876)

   Total noncurrent assets 44,768 121 99,269

Total assets 105,575 2,168 294,998

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 11,944 201 19,426

Accrued payroll 1,027

Accrued interest 14

Due to other funds 44,513 173 54,938

Claims and judgments 32,578

Compensated absences 207

Deferred Revenue 287

Bonds, notes, and loans payable 860

   Total current liabilities 56,457 374 109,337

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences 1,869

Claims and judgments 68,010

   Total noncurrent liabilities 69,879

Total liabilities 56,457 374 179,216

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 44,768 98,270

Unrestricted 4,350 1,794 17,512

Total net assets $ 49,118 1,794 115,782
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)
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Road and Special 

Communication District Risk

Equipment Purchasing Loans Financing

Operating revenues

Charges for services $ 4,775 34,641 42,002

Miscellaneous 304 403

Total operating revenue 4,775 34,945 42,405

Operating expenses

Salaries 2,962

Repairs and maintenance 2,290 56

Equipment rental 628

Contracted services 2,402

Depreciation 1,540 2

Utilities 85

Cost of material 28,253

Claims and judgments 32,578

Fuel 568 7

Other operating expenses 414 197

Total operating expenses 4,812 34,592 32,578

Operating income (loss) (37) 353 9,827

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest and dividends 292 57

Interest expense 

Loss on disposal of equipment (16)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 276 57

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 239 410 9,827

Capital contributions (2)

Transfers in 120 63

Transfers (out) (1,000) (142)

Change in net assets (643) 331 9,827

Total net assets--beginning 25,478 2,658 909 (33,770)

Total net assets--ending $ 24,835 2,989 909 (23,943)

(IN THOUSANDS)
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(Cont)

Mail,

Fleet Print & Facilities

Services Records Management

Operating revenues

Charges for services $ 21,193 11,613 62,000

Miscellaneous 73 1,877

Total operating revenue 21,193 11,686 63,877

Operating expenses

Salaries 3,927 2,408 17,679

Repairs and maintenance 3,650 584 14,063

Equipment rental 10 40 755

Contracted services 1,684 780 7,940

Depreciation 7,849 95 23

Utilities 334 47 18,621

Cost of material 2 7,214

Claims and judgments

Fuel 4,215 23 121

Other operating expenses 383 283 7,109

Total operating expenses 22,054 11,474 66,311

Operating income (loss) (861) 212 (2,434)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest and dividends 349 31 30

Interest expense (91) (30)

Loss on disposal of equipment (145) (16) (8)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 113 (15) 22

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (748) 197 (2,412)

Capital contributions 732

Transfers in 4,710 2 1,016

Transfers (out) (180) (110) (809)

Change in net assets 4,514 89 (2,205)

Total net assets--beginning 52,720 2,560 2,402

Total net assets--ending $ 57,234 2,649 197

(Cont)

(In Thousands)
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(Cont)

Information Other

Technology Miscellaneous Total

Operating revenues

Charges for services $ 115,166 2,857 294,247

Miscellaneous 15 110 2,782

Total operating revenue 115,181 2,967 297,029

Operating expenses

Salaries 26,976

Repairs and maintenance 19 20,662

Equipment rental 1,433

Contracted services 112,873 125,679

Depreciation 33 9,542

Utilities 19,087

Cost of material 1,227 36,696

Claims and judgments 32,578

Fuel 4,934

Other operating expenses 227 8,613

Total operating expenses 112,873 1,506 286,200

Operating income (loss) 2,308 1,461 10,829

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest and dividends 759

Interest expense (121)

Loss on disposal of equipment (185)

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 453

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 2,308 1,461 11,282

Capital contributions 7,142 7,872

Transfers in 1,527 7,438

Transfers (out) (1,209) (3,450)

Change in net assets 10,977 252 23,142

Total net assets--beginning 38,141 1,542 92,640

Total net assets--ending $ 49,118 1,794 115,782
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Financial Report of San Diego County

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN



Road and Special

Communication District Risk

Equipment Purchasing Loans Financing

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Cash received from customers

(including other funds) $ 4,997 34,998 41,774

   Other receipts

  Cash payments to suppliers 14 (32,034) (26,656)

  Cash payments to employees (2,967)

  Internal activity-payments to other funds (2,948) 438 (888)

    Net cash provided to operating activities 2,063 435 14,230

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

  Transfers from (to) other funds (882) (79) (63)

  Advances from (to) other funds (373)

    Net cash used for non-capital

      financing activities (882) (79) (436)

Cash flows from capital and related

  financing activities:

  Acquisition of capital assets (2,810)

  Capital contributions

  Proceeds from sale of equipment 115

  Principal paid on long-term debt

  Interest paid on long-term debt

    Net cash used for capital and

      related financing activities (2,695)

Cash flows from investing activities:

  Interest 270 62

Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (1,244) 418 (436) 14,230

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 14,889 2,663 650 67,275

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 13,645 3,081 214 81,505

Reconciliation of operating income:

Operating income (loss) (37) 353 9,827

Adjustments to reconcile:

  Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 10

  Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll (8)

  Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 73 (332) 3,063

  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (34) (355) (824)

  Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments 2,795

  Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (36) (2) (6)

  Decrease (increase) in inventory 308 716

  Decrease (increase) in deferred credits

  Decrease (increase) in due from other funds 249 51 (625)

  Decrease (increase) in other current assets

  Depreciation 1,540 2

      Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,063 435 14,230

Non-cash investing and capital financing activities:

  Accrued interest $ (22) 5

(Cont)
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(Cont)

Mail,

Fleet Print & Facilities 

Services Records Management

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Cash received from customers

(including other funds) $ 20,955 11,495 68,646

   Other receipts 287

  Cash payments to suppliers (8,405) (8,048) (46,766)

  Cash payments to employees (3,914) (2,426) (17,530)

  Internal activity-payments to other funds (2,518) (1,254) (5,377)

    Net cash provided to operating activities 6,118 (233) (740)

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

  Transfers from (to) other funds 4,530 (108) 207

  Advances from (to) other funds

    Net cash used for non-capital

      financing activities 4,530 (108) 207

Cash flows from capital and related

  financing activities:

  Acquisition of capital assets (10,695) (22) (19)

  Capital contributions

  Proceeds from sale of equipment 569 2

  Principal paid on long-term debt (2,604) (90)

  Interest paid on long-term debt (125) (31)

    Net cash used for capital and

      related financing activities (12,855) (141) (19)

Cash flows from investing activities:

  Interest 405 31 83

Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (1,802) (451) (469)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 18,422 2,195 8,169

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 16,620 1,744 7,700

Reconciliation of operating income:

Operating income (loss) (861) 212 (2,434)

Adjustments to reconcile:

  Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 12 (17) 90

  Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 4 1 59

  Increase (decrease) in due to other funds (1,049) (368) (2,667)

  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 295 119 (873)

  Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments

  Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (3) (67) (33)

  Decrease (increase) in inventory 106 (97) 6

  Decrease (increase) in deferred credits 287

  Decrease (increase) in due from other funds (235) (124) 4,802

  Decrease (increase) in other current assets 13

  Depreciation 7,849 95 23

      Net cash provided by operating activities $ 6,118 (233) (740)

Non-cash investing and capital financing activities:

  Accrued interest $ 56 53

(Cont)
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(Cont)

Information Other

Technology Miscellaneous Total

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Cash received from customers

(including other funds) $ 125,226 2,968 311,059

   Other receipts 287

  Cash payments to suppliers (156,731) (1,313) (279,939)

  Cash payments to employees (26,837)

  Internal activity-payments to other funds (3,823) (18) (16,388)

    Net cash provided to operating activities (35,328) 1,637 (11,818)

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

  Transfers from (to) other funds 1,527 (1,209) 3,923

  Advances from (to) other funds (373)

    Net cash used for non-capital

      financing activities 1,527 (1,209) 3,550

Cash flows from capital and related

  financing activities:

  Acquisition of capital assets (7,142) (22) (20,710)

  Capital contributions 7,142 7,142

  Proceeds from sale of equipment 686

  Principal paid on long-term debt (2,694)

  Interest paid on long-term debt (156)

    Net cash used for capital and

      related financing activities (22) (15,732)

Cash flows from investing activities:

  Interest 851

Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (33,801) 406 (23,149)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 79,240 1,560 195,063

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 45,439 1,966 171,914

Reconciliation of operating income:

Operating income (loss) 2,308 1,461 10,829

Adjustments to reconcile:

  Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 95

  Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 56

  Increase (decrease) in due to other funds (3,823) 20 (5,083)

  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (36,721) 121 (38,272)

  Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments 2,795

  Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 697 (4) 546

  Decrease (increase) in inventory 1 1,040

  Decrease (increase) in deferred credits 287

  Decrease (increase) in due from other funds 2,211 5 6,334

  Decrease (increase) in other current assets 13

  Depreciation 33 9,542

      Net cash provided by operating activities $ (35,328) 1,637 (11,818)

Non-cash investing and capital financing activities:

  Accrued interest $ 92
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These funds maintain assets held in an agent capacity for other governments, organizations and individuals. 

These assets do not support the county's programs or services. Any portion of agency fund assets held at fiscal 

year end for other funds are reported in those funds rather than in the agency funds.
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Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Deductions Balance

AGENCY FUNDS

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 424,250 15,683,902 15,750,648 357,504

Cash with fiscal agents 5,835 105,888 103,559 8,164

Collections in transit 14,949 15,697 15,079 15,567

Imprest cash 5 5

Investments 1 45,387,077 45,387,077 1

Taxes receivable 218,446 3,145,695 3,169,146 194,995

Accounts receivable 13,350 513,968 511,996 15,322

Due from other funds 1,324 133,935 134,215 1,044

Total assets $ 678,160 64,986,162 65,071,720 592,602

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 369,920 369,269 651

Due to other funds 102,146 5,146,852 5,184,173 64,825

Due to other governments 515,914 14,187,975 14,238,499 465,390

Amount due for commercial paper notes 60,100 41,101 39,465 61,736

Total liabilities $ 678,160 19,745,848 19,831,406 592,602
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     STATISTICAL SECTION





1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98

General government 204,216$          166,381           172,916           186,861           184,465           

Public protection 438,051           450,419           481,691           509,142           544,585           

Public ways & facilities 66,766             62,786             69,617             64,180             66,509             

Health & sanitation 247,533           256,011           265,396           268,400           294,867           

Public assistance 932,497           1,001,420        992,263           915,302           816,620           

Education 8,419               8,879               8,973               9,375               10,097             

Recreation & cultural 7,648               6,749               7,109               7,210               9,309               

Capital outlay 111,895           60,914             115,170           74,368             91,119             

Debt service 40,694             72,894             77,705             91,914             98,150             

Total 2,057,719$       2,086,453        2,190,840        2,126,752        2,115,721        

1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03

General government 185,426$          150,879           136,714           156,517           209,874           

Public protection 575,825           667,565           728,212           809,185           1,145,171        

Public ways & facilities 80,127             72,721             83,932             95,936             123,202           

Health & sanitation 319,505           370,379           454,628           548,627           600,525           

Public assistance 703,132           737,284           747,430           827,229           1,037,467        

Education 11,325             14,263             18,621             24,005             31,013             

Recreation & cultural 11,203             12,393             13,102             16,514             20,805             

Capital outlay 47,098             55,239             57,723             72,341             83,748             

Debt service 103,448           110,221           140,000           169,311           162,593           

Total 2,037,089$       2,190,944        2,380,362        2,719,665        3,414,398        
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Fiscal Years 1993-94 Through 2002-2003
(In Thousands)

TABLE 1

Governmental funds include the General Fund, Tobacco Securitization Special Revenue Fund, Tobacco Securitization

Joint Special Revenue Fund, and Non Major Governmental Funds including Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital

Projects funds.
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1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98

Taxes 353,752$     272,831       299,383       297,314      306,203      

Licenses, permits and franchises 26,868         27,011         26,587         28,118        28,312        

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 19,576         18,156         23,787         22,972        29,396        

Use of money and property 45,432         26,069         25,319         31,089        48,968        

Aid from other governmental agencies 1,470,308    1,532,529    1,587,410    1,536,529   1,481,185   

Charges for current services 162,658       156,823       171,079       173,489      196,435      

Other revenue 17,927         17,234         17,725         27,327        18,822        

Total 2,096,521$  2,050,653    2,151,290    2,116,838   2,109,321   

1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03

Taxes 338,487$     344,393       432,468       409,969      446,835      

Licenses, permits and franchises 31,095         31,796         34,796         37,808        39,335        

Fines, forfeitures and penalties 27,015         36,235         40,139         39,691        41,236        

Use of money and property 40,939         48,519         74,244         45,567        40,733        

Aid from other governmental agencies 1,418,073    1,575,013    1,739,153    1,771,123   1,930,261   

Charges for current services 211,290       209,400       223,296       251,018      266,574      

Other revenue 31,130         28,782         37,214         70,203        70,065        

Total 2,098,029$  2,274,138    2,581,310    2,625,379   2,835,039   

Governmental funds include the General Fund, Tobacco Securitization Special Revenue Fund, Tobacco

Securitization Joint Special Revenue Fund, and Non Major Governmental Funds including Special Revenue, Debt

Service and Capital Projects funds.
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Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003

(In Thousands)

TABLE 2
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COMPARISON OF REVENUES BY SOURCE

COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98

Secured 139,889,004$ 140,737,545 142,068,531 142,356,634 145,607,295

Tax rate (county wide) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Unsecured 6,132,432 6,448,886 6,695,765 6,755,173 7,295,084

Tax rate (county wide) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

249,877 218,190 221,960 223,706 231,220

222,839 216,385 220,205 221,724 228,984

25,661 136 209 165 179

248,500 216,521 220,414 221,889 229,163

99.4% 99.2% 99.3% 99.2% 99.1%

1,377$ 1,669 1,546 1,817 2,057

1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03

Secured 155,847,593$ 171,710,387 186,548,635 204,408,552 222,255,305

Tax rate (county wide) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Unsecured 7,880,996 8,838,343 9,168,845 10,075,117 10,607,072

Tax rate (county wide) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

247,288 270,611 292,042 318,380 343,190

244,803 267,987 289,406 315,736 340,071

223 217 164 148 283

245,026 268,204 289,570 315,884 340,354

99.1% 99.1% 99.2% 99.2% 99.2%

2,262$ 2,407 2,472 2,496 2,836
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Tax levied (current and prior)

Current tax collections

Delinquent tax collections

Total tax collections

Ratio of total collections to levy

Outstanding delinquent taxes

Assessed valuations and tax rates

Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003
(In Thousands)

TA BLE 3

Total tax collections

Ratio of total collections to levy

Outstanding delinquent taxes

Assessed valuations and tax rates

Tax levied (current and prior)

Current tax collections

Delinquent tax collections
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CO M PA R ISO N  O F CO U N TY A SSESSED  VA LU E
TAXES LEVIED  AN D  TAX CO LLECTIO N S CO U N TY G EN ER AL AN D  LIBR AR Y FU N D S



1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98

Land 57,882,623$   58,065,558     58,442,660     58,743,000     59,965,573

Improvements 83,110,455     84,039,711     84,997,932     85,004,255     85,520,503

Personal property 2,173,676      2,102,662      2,241,217      2,253,372      4,125,615

Gross secured valuations 143,166,754   144,207,931   145,681,809   146,000,627   149,611,691

3,277,750      3,470,386      3,613,279      3,643,995      4,004,395

Net secured valuations 139,889,004   140,737,545   142,068,530   142,356,632   145,607,296

Land 155                74                  26,663

Improvements 1,521,429      1,588,569      1,587,308      1,759,688      1,706,300

Personal property 4,854,494      5,073,088      5,295,127      5,150,899      6,096,946

Gross unsecured valuations 6,376,078      6,661,730      6,909,098      6,910,587      7,803,246

243,646         212,845         213,333         155,414         508,163

Net unsecured valuations 6,132,432      6,448,886      6,695,765      6,755,173      7,295,083

Net valuations 146,021,436   147,186,431   148,764,295   149,111,805   152,902,379

1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03

Land 63,633,576$   70,120,054     76,745,341     84,852,228     93,104,455

Improvements 92,369,459     103,036,379   110,551,695   120,502,617   131,008,612

Personal property 4,099,352      2,957,459      3,897,721      3,926,419      3,263,353

Gross secured valuations 160,102,387   176,113,892   191,194,757   209,281,264   227,376,420

4,254,794      4,403,504      4,646,122      4,872,712      5,121,115

Net secured valuations 155,847,593   171,710,388   186,548,635   204,408,552   222,255,305

Improvements 1,803,442      2,011,700      2,144,396      2,127,362      2,450,811

Personal property 6,478,142      7,263,938      7,701,247      8,749,368      8,509,857

Gross unsecured valuations 8,281,584      9,275,638      9,845,643      10,876,730     10,960,668

400,587         437,295         676,798         801,613         353,596

Net unsecured valuations 7,880,997      8,838,343      9,168,845      10,075,117     10,607,072

Net valuations 163,728,590   180,548,731   195,717,480   214,483,669   232,862,377
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Secured property:

Exemptions:

Unsecured property:

Exemptions:

TABLE 4

Financial Report of San Diego County

COMPARISON OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS

Exemptions:

Secured property:

Exemptions:

Unsecured property:

SECURED AND UNSECURED

Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003

(In Thousands)



GROSS LESS DEBT RATIO OF NET NET

ASSESSED BONDED SERVICE  NET BONDED DEBT BONDED

POPULATION VALUE DEBT FUND BONDED TO ASSESSED DEBT PER

(1) (2) (3) (4) DEBT VALUE CAPITA

2,639 146,021,436$      718,132$   28,414   689,718      0.47 261

2,659 147,186,431        762,993     47,625   715,368      0.49 269

2,690 148,764,295        799,533     51,652   747,881      0.50 278

2,724 149,111,807        834,773     30,275   804,498      0.54 295

2,795 152,902,378        819,813     28,394   791,419      0.52 283

2,853 163,728,589        847,038     28,300   818,738      0.50 287

2,911 180,548,730        863,285     31,377   831,908      0.46 286

2,884 195,717,480        783,795     37,145   746,650      0.38 259

2,918 214,483,669        716,690     26,382   690,308      0.32 237

2,961 232,862,377        1,220,080  28,326   1,191,754   0.51 402

(1) From Table 10

(2) From Table 8

(3)

(4) Amount available for repayment of bonded debt (Redevelopment Agency excluded)
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(In Thousands)

TABLE 5

FISCAL

YEAR

1993-94

1994-95

1995-96

1996-97

Fincanial Report of San Diego County

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO

ASSESSED VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003

1997-98

Includes Lease Revenue Bonds and Certificates of Participation of various Joint Power Authorities and the San

Diego County Capital Asset Leasing Corporation and taxable Pension Obligation Bonds.

2002-03

1998-99

1999-00

2000-01

2001-02



FISCAL SPECIAL

YEAR COUNTY-WIDE* SCHOOLS CITIES DISTRICTS TOTAL

1994 1.000 0.045 0.005 0.016 1.066

1995 1.000 0.044 0.005 0.015 1.064

1996 1.000 0.044 0.005 0.016 1.065

1997 1.000 0.044 0.004 0.015 1.063

1998 1.000 0.045 0.004 0.013 1.062

1999 1.000 0.044 0.004 0.012 1.060

2000 1.000 0.046 0.004 0.011 1.061

2001 1.000 0.047 0.004 0.011 1.062

2002 1.000 0.048 0.004 0.009 1.061

2003 1.000 0.054 0.004 0.008 1.066

*

TABLE 6

Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003

Financial Report of San Diego County

COMPARISON OF SECURED PROPERTY TAX RATES - ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)
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GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY

The $1.00 per $100 of Assessed Value (Proposition 13) tax rate beginning in fiscal year 1978-1979 is

distributed according to State Law on a percentage basis to each of the eligible taxing agencies in the

County.



TOTAL GENERAL RATIO OF DEBT SERVICE

TOTAL DEBT GOVERNMENTAL TO TOTAL GENERAL

PRINCIPAL INTEREST SERVICE EXPENDITURES  (1) GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

11,815$     12,367    24,182         2,057,719              1.18

13,605      41,023    54,628         2,086,453              2.62

15,653      44,907    60,560         2,190,840              2.76

56,589      19,722    76,311         2,126,752              3.59

37,365      46,528    83,893         2,115,721              3.97

45,844      47,118    92,962         2,037,089              4.56

53,847      46,061    99,908         2,190,944              4.56

77,432      49,642    127,074        2,380,362              5.34

101,395     62,084    163,479        2,719,665              6.01

88,590      60,767    149,357        3,414,398              4.37

(1)

Financial Report of San Diego County

COMPARISON OF RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE FOR

GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO

Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003

(In Thousands)

TABLE 7

1999-2000

2000-2001

1998-1999
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TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

2001-2002

2002-2003

Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects funds. The debt service expenditures

for Lease Revenue Bonds and Certificates of Participation of various Joint Powers Authorities and the San

Diego County Capital Asset Leasing Corporation are incorporated into the County's Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report in accordance with criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. These

debt instruments function as general obligation debt of the County. The general revenues of the County,

including taxes, are the source of payment for the debt service expenditures made by these agencies. Prior

to fiscal year 1993-94, the County had no general obligation bonded debt. During 1993-94, the County

issued $430.4 million in taxable pension obligation bonds which are secured by the general revenues of the

County.

1993-1994

1994-1995

1995-1996

1996-1997

1997-1998



POPULATION TOTAL

PER OFFICIAL ASSESSED LEGAL DEBT LEGAL DEBT

U.S.CENSUS (1) VALUATION LIMIT (2) MARGIN (3)

2,639 146,021,436$     1,825,268           1,825,268           

2,659 147,186,431       1,839,830           1,839,830           

2,690 148,764,295       1,859,554           1,859,554           

2,724 149,111,807       1,863,898           1,863,898           

2,795 152,902,378       1,911,280           1,911,280           

2,853 163,728,589       2,046,607           2,046,607           

2,911 180,548,730       2,256,859           2,256,859           

2,884 195,717,480       2,446,469           2,446,469           

2,918 214,483,669       2,681,046           2,681,046           

2,961 232,862,377       2,910,780           2,910,780           

(1) Estimated

(2) The Legal debt Limit is 1.25% of Assessed Valuation

(3)

Financial Report of San Diego County

Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003

(In Thousands)

TABLE 8

COMPARISON OF COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

1993-1994

1994-1995

1995-1996

1996-1997

1997-1998

1998-1999
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Legal Debt Margin is computed by subtracting the County legal general obligation bonded debt from the Legal

Debt Limit. Beginning in 1980-81 and subsequent fiscal years the County, as a legally defined entity, had no

tax supported general obligation bonded debt outstanding.

1999-2000

2000-2001

2001-2002

2002-2003



Calendar Years 1993 through 2002

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997

(1) CONSTRUCTION

Residential units 5,602              6,935              6,608              6,868              11,402            

Non-residential units 156                 127                 254                 293                 452                 

Residential/

  non-residential valuation 1,112,652$      1,262,621       1,383,828       1,637,479       2,502,736       

Alterations/additions valuation 428,895          405,844          431,422          459,471          488,264          

Total valuation 1,541,547       1,668,465       1,815,250       2,096,950       2,991,000       

Fiscal year 1993-94 1997-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98

(2)

 Bank deposits 15,728,193$    15,332,999      15,053,416      15,105,204      17,365,228      

(3) PROPERTY VALUE 

Commerical 27,851,773$    27,034,074      26,526,398      26,426,880      27,214,630      

Residential 99,978,225      101,807,538    103,576,070    104,163,069    106,742,185

Non-taxable 3,277,750       3,470,386       3,613,279       3,643,995       4,004,395       

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

(1) CONSTRUCTION

Residential units 12,173            16,427            15,927            15,650            14,957            

Non-residential units 641                 619                 573                 475                 488                 

Residential/

  non-residential valuation 2,970,179$      3,605,497       3,685,819       3,663,378       3,357,093       

Alterations/additions valuation 555,152          717,092          713,887          696,046          623,195          

Total valuation 3,525,331       4,322,589       4,399,706       4,359,424       3,980,288       

Fiscal year 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03

(2)

Bank deposits 18,838,052$    20,103,119      22,040,351      24,132,798      (4)

(3) PROPERTY VALUE 

(5) Commerical 30,381,796$    34,406,623      38,108,162      41,522,846      44,763,100      

(5) Residential 113,347,767    124,792,674    136,721,138    150,918,286    165,975,371

(5) Non-taxable 4,254,794       4,403,504       4,646,121       4,872,712       5,121,115       

Sources:

(1)   Greater San Diego Chamber of Commerce

(2)   Federal Reserve Bank - FDIC Banks and Branches Data Book

(3)   San Diego County Property Tax Services and Assessor

(4)   Not yet available

(5)   Excludes farm land, institutional, recreational, miscellaneous fixtures and personal property
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COMPARISON OF CONSTRUCTION, BANK DEPOSITS AND PROPERTY VALUES

Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003

(In Thousands)

TABLE 9



CIVILIAN

YEAR POPULATION (1) LABOR FORCE

1994 2,638,511 1,199,100 7.4

1995 2,658,584 1,217,100 6.8

1996 2,690,255 1,232,400 5.5

1997 2,724,457          1,249,700      4.5

1998 2,794,800          1,281,600      4.2

1999 2,853,258          1,347,800      3.3

2000 2,911,468          1,401,900      3.7

2001 2,883,600          1,362,900      3.0

2002 2,918,254          1,475,300      (2) 4.2

2003 2,961,600          1,494,600      (2) 4.5 (2)

DATA SOURCES:

(1)   State Department of Finance (As of January 1)

(2)   State Employment Development Department for 2003

Financial Report of San Diego County

PERCENTAGE RATE 
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COMPARISON OF DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Calendar Years 1994 through 2003

TABLE 10

UNEMPLOYMENT



NET REVENUE

DIRECT AVAILABLE

FISCAL GROSS OPERATING FOR DEBT

YEAR REVENUE EXPENSES(1) SERVICE PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL COVERAGE

1993-94 18,300$  10,869         7,431         15 11 26 285.81

1994-95 20,885    17,816         3,069         15 10 25 122.76

1995-96 19,031    17,657         1,374         15 9 24 57.25

1996-97 19,056    11,050         8,006         15 8 23 348.09

1997-98 22,177    16,004         6,173         20 6 26 237.42

1998-99 20,917    15,494         5,423         20 5 25 216.92

1999-00 21,672    12,527         9,145         20 4 24 381.04

2000-01 16,103    11,667         4,436         20 4 24 184.83

2001-02 17,949    13,995         3,954         25 2 27 146.44

2002-03 16,721    13,907         2,814         0 0 0

(1)   Total Operating Expenses exclusive of depreciation
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

WATER AND SEWER BONDS

Fiscal Years 1993-94 through 2002-2003

(In Thousands)

TABLE 11



2002-03 Assessed Valuation: 232,862,376,749$    

Redevelopment Incremental Valuation: 15,628,820,306        

Adjusted Assessed Valuation: 217,233,556,443$    

OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable Debt 4/1/03

Metropolitan Water District 18.007 $ 80,004,201

San Diego County Water Authority 100 1,645,000

Southwestern Community College District 100 39,540,000

San Diego Unified School District 100 764,985,227

San Diego Unified School District Lease Tax Obligations 100 67,845,000

Vista Unified School District 100 92,000,541

Other Unified School Districts 100 117,377,849

Union High School Districts 100 104,425,117

School Districts 100 293,368,434

Otay Municipal Water District Improvement Districts 100 11,160,000

Other Municipal Water Districts 100 1,430,000

City of San Diego 100 15,690,000

Other Cities 100 3,375,000

San Diego Open Space Park Facilities District 100 36,475,000

Other Special Districts 100 1,360,000

Community Facilities Districts 100 963,088,754

1915 Act Bonds (Estimated) 100 222,707,850

TOTAL GROSS OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 2,816,477,973

 Less:  San Diego Open Space Park Facilities District (100% self-supporting) 36,475,000

TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 2,780,002,973

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT:

San Diego County General Fund Obligations 100 488,018,767 (1)

San Diego County Pension Obligations 100 824,395,000

San Diego County Superintendent of Schools Obligations 100 2,067,500

Community College District Certificates of Participation 100 71,990,000

San Diego Unified School District Certificates of Participation 100 30,280,000

Other Unified School Districts Certificates of Participation 100 81,212,356

High School District Certificates of Participation 100 51,261,500

School District Certificates of Participation 100 131,910,000

Municipal Water District Certificates of Participation 100 28,790,000

City of Chula Vista General Fund and Pension Obligations 100 106,136,566

City of San Diego General Fund Obligations 100 551,365,000

City of Escondido and General Fund Obligations 100 89,342,847

Other City General Fund Obligations 100 272,625,357

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District Certificates of Participation 100 10,150,000

Fallbrook Sanitary District Certificates of Participation 100 10,170,000

TOTAL GROSS DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT 2,749,714,893
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(Cont)
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ESTIMATED DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT

TABLE 12

(Includes unitary utility valuation)



Less: 26,030,000             

7,389,000               

City of Oceanside Certificates of Participation 2,280,000               

TOTAL NET DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT 2,714,015,893        

GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 5,566,192,866        (2)

NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 5,494,018,866$       

(1) Excludes tax & revenue anticipation notes.

(2) Excludes tax & revenue anticipation notes, revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds 

and non-bonded capital lease obligations.

Ratios to 2002-03 assessed valuation:

Total Gross Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 1.21 %

Total Net Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 1.19

Ratios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation:

Combined Direct Debt ($1,312,413,767) 0.60

Gross Combined Total Debt 2.56

Net Combined Total Debt 2.53

2,728,994$     
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TABLE 12 (Cont)

Otay municipal water district certificates of participation (100% self-supporting)

Grossmont union high school district certificates of participation (100% self-

supporting from tax increment revenues)

STATE SCHOOL BUILDING AID REPAYABLE AS OF JUNE 30, 2002

Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. (As of April 1,  2003)



PERCENTAGE OF

ASSESSED TOTAL ASSESSED

TAXPAYERS TYPE OF BUSINESS VALUATION VALUATION

San Diego Gas & Electric Company Gas & Electric Utility 2,546,874$     1.09

Pacific Bell Telephone Company 1,290,726      0.55

Southern California Edison Co. Electric Utility 1,244,408      0.53

Kilroy Realty L P Real Estate 539,637         0.23

Fashion Valley Mall LLC Real Estate 530,665         0.23

Qualcomm Inc. Telecommunications 465,566         0.20

San Diego Family Housing LLC Real Estate 319,510         0.14

L-O  Coronado Holding II Inc Real Estate 308,912         0.13

Cabrillo Power I L L C Electric Utility 305,158         0.13

Sea World Inc. Marine Oriented Theme Park 280,063         0.12

7,831,519$     3.35

160

Financial Report of San Diego County

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

June 30, 2003

(In Thousands)

TABLE 13



Air Pollution Control 1

Chartered County, governed by Cemetery 4

five-member Board of Supervisors Community Facilities 156

Community Services 12

San Diego,  California County Service Areas 41

Education:

July 1, 1933 Schools 47

Dept. of Education 1

July 1 Fire 16

Flood Control 1

Approximately 4,200 square miles Geological Hazard 1

Hospital 4

Infrastructure 1

Irrigation 6

Library 1

Lighting 6

Maintenance:

Lighting 1

Sewer 2

Street 1

Permanent Road Divisions 65

Sea Level to 6,500 feet Public Utility 1

Recreation and Parks 1

Carlsbad Lemon Grove Redevelopment Agencies 17

Chula Vista National City Resource Conservation 3

Coronado Oceanside Sanitation 9

Del Mar Poway Sewer 1

El Cajon San Diego Small Craft Harbor 1

Encinitas San Marcos Unified Port 1

Escondido Santee Vector Control 1

Imperial Beach Solana Beach Water:

La Mesa Vista California 3

County 5

Miscellaneous 2

Municipal 14

426

MILES OF COUNTY-MAINTAINED ROADS

(Unincorporated Areas Only): 1,899.69

(Cont)

INCORPORATED CITIES:

AREA OF COUNTY:

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION:

COUNTY CHARTER ADOPTED:

FISCAL YEAR BEGINS:

FORM OF GOVERNMENT:

COUNTY SEAT:

TABLE 14

SPECIAL DISTRICTS
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MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA

June 30, 2003

The Southwestern most county in

California and the continental United

States. Bounded by Mexico on the

South, Riverside and Orange counties

on the North, Imperial County on the

East and the Pacific Ocean on the

West. Extends North to South

approximately 60 miles and East to

West 70 miles.
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ALTITUDE:



PERSONS FOR SAN DIEGO COUNTY

Districts Connected to (In Thousands)

Metropolitan System 4

Water Pollution Control JUNE 30

Facilities 6

Sewer Lines, Miles 380 Agriculture and Fishing 10.9

Equivalent Dwelling Units Mining 0.3

Sewer Connections 51,086 Contract Construction 80.3

Manfacturing:

Machinery Manufacturing 9.9

Computer & Electronic 25.6

Aircraft & Transportation Equipment 12.9

Other Manufacturing 33.7

Paper, Printing and Publishing 26.9

Transportation and Public Utilities 29.4

Wholesale and Retail Trade 180.4

Primary Election: November 5, 2002 Finance, Real Estate and Insurance 73.9

Number Voted: 684,285 Service Industries 541.5

Percent Voted: 48.89 Government 222.1

Registered Voters: 1,399,628             Subtotal: 1,247.8

Not Elsewhere Classified 179.0

TOTAL EMPLOYED 1,426.8

UNEMPLOYED 67.8

TOTAL CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE 1,494.6

Number of

Percent of Employees

Number of Increase over Per Thousands

Year Employees Previous Year Population

1994 17,256 1.5 6.54

1995 17,470 1.2 6.57

1996 17,626 0.9 6.55

1997 17,623 (0.0) 6.47

1998 17,790   0.9 6.36

1999 17,988   1.1 6.30

2000 18,215   1.3 6.26

2001 18,725   2.8 6.49

2002 19,882   6.2 6.81

2003 19,458   (2.1) 6.57

MAJOR INDUSTRY GROUP OF EMPLOYED 

SEWERS MAINTAINED BY

WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT

June 30, 2003

TABLE 14 (Cont)
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REGISTERED VOTERS


